Public Document Pack

COTSWOLD

District Council

30 May 2025

Tel: 01285 623226
e-mail: democratic@cotswold.gov.uk

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Planning and Licensing Committee will be held in the Council Chamber -
Council Offices, Trinity Road, Cirencester, GL7 1PX on Wednesday, 11 June 2025 at 2.00
pm.

Rob Weaver
Chief Executive

To: Members of the Planning and Licensing Committee
(Councillors Dilys Neill, Ian Watson, Ray Brassington, Nick Bridges, Patrick Coleman, Daryl
Corps, David Fowles, Mark Harris, Julia Judd, Andrew Maclean and Michael Vann)

Recording of Proceedings — The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet,
and Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-
recording. Photography is also permitted.

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the
Committee Administrator know prior to the date of the meeting.

Cotswold District Council, Trinity Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1PX
Tel: 01285 623000 www.cotswold.gov.uk

Page 1


http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/

AGENDA

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence. The quorum for the Planning and Licensing
Committee is 3 members.

Substitute Members
To note details of any substitution arrangements in place for the meeting.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items to be
considered at the meeting.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 10)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 May 2025.

Chair's Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chair of the Planning and Licensing
Committee.

Public questions

A maximum of 15 minutes is allocated for an “open forum” of public questions at
committee meetings. No person may ask more than two questions (including
supplementary questions) and no more than two such questions may be asked on
behalf of one organisation. The maximum length of oral questions or
supplementary questions by the public will be one minute. Questions must relate
to the responsibilities of the Committee but questions in this section cannot relate
to applications for determination at the meeting.

The response may take the form of:
a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes);
b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or
c) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer
circulated later to the questioner.

Member questions
A maximum period of fifteen minutes is allowed for Member questions. Questions
must be directed to the Chair and must relate to the remit of the Committee but

may not relate to applications for determination at the meeting.

Questions will be asked in the order in which they were received but the Chair

Page 2



may group together similar questions.

The deadline for submitting questions is 5.00pm on the working day before the
day of the meeting unless the Chair agrees that the question relates to an urgent
matter, in which case the deadline is 9.30am on the day of the meeting.

A member may submit no more than two questions. At the meeting the member
may ask a supplementary question arising directly from the original question or
the reply. The maximum length of a supplementary question is one minute.

The response to a question or supplementary question may take the form of:
a) A direct oral response (maximum length: 2 minutes);
b) Where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or
¢) Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer
circulated later to the questioner.

Schedule of Applications

To consider and determine the applications contained within the enclosed schedule:
8. 24/02854/0UT - Land West of Kingshill Lane, Cirencester. (Pages 25 - 114)

Proposal
Residential development for up to 280 dwellings.

Case Officer
Martin Perks

Ward Member
Councillor Mike Evemy

Recommendation
PERMIT subject to no objection from Gloucestershire County Council Highways and
completion of S106 legal agreement covering provision of affordable housing, self-
build/custom build plots, highway improvements works (if required), Public Open Spac
management and maintenance, Biodiversity Net Gain, financial contributions to librari
and North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation
9. 24/03111/FUL - The Saddlery, Kineton, Guiting Power. (Pages 115 - 152)

Proposal
Removal of stables, erection of a dwelling.

Case Officer
Helen Cooper

Ward Member
Councillor Len Wilkins

Page 3



10.

11.

12.

13.

Recommendation
PERMIT

25/00045/FUL - Land North East of Braecroft, Upper Oddington. (Pages 153 -
192)

Proposal
Erection of a new self-build dwelling.

Case Officer
Helen Cooper

Ward Member
Councillor David Cunningham

Recommendation
PERMISSION subject to the completion of a unilateral undertaking.

21/01892/FUL - Outbuilding to the East of Poplars Barn, Evenlode,
Moreton-In-Marsh. (Pages 193 - 228)

Proposal
Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new dwelling.

Case Officer
Charlotte Van De Wydeven

Ward Member
Councillor David Cunningham

Recommendation
PERMIT

Sites Inspection Briefing
Members for 2 July (if required)

Councillors Dilys Neill, Ian Watson, Daryl Corps, Mark Harris, Michael Vann.

Licensing Sub-Committee
Members for 25 June 2025 (if required)

To be confirmed.

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

COTSWOLD
Planning and Licensing Committee .| District Council

P RS
14/May2025

i
K¢

N

!

Minutes of a meeting of Planning and Licensing Committee held on Wednesday,
14 May 2025

Members present:

Ray Brassington (Chair) Patrick Coleman (Vice Chair) Daryl Corps
Dilys Neill Julia Judd Andrew Maclean
Mark Harris David Fowles [an Watson

Officers present:

Helen Blundell, Interim Head of Legal Kira Thompson, Election and Democratic
Services Services Support Assistant

Harrison Bowley, Head of Planning Services Helen Cooper, Senior Planning Case Officer
Julia Gibson, Democratic Services Officer Graham Smith, Planning Case Officer
Observers:

Councillor Juliet Layton

125 Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillor Michael Vann.

126 Substitute Members

There were no substitute Members.

127 Declarations of Interest

Members acknowledged that Councillor Jeremy Theyer was known to members of the
committee as a Cotswold District Councillor.

Councillor Coleman declared that he had known the source of the public comment for
Agenda item 10 — 24/00981/FUL

Page 5



Planning and Licensing Committee
14/May2025

128 Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2025 were discussed.
Councillor Daryl Corps proposed accepting the minutes and Councillor Patrick Coleman

seconded the proposal which was put to the vote and agreed by the Committee.

RESOLVED: To APPROVE the minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2025.

Minutes (Resolution)

For Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Daryl Corps, David Fowles, Mark 7
Harris, Julia Judd and Dilys Neill

Against None 0

Conflict Of None 0

Interests

Abstain Andrew Maclean and lan Watson 2

Carried

129 Chair's Announcements

The Chair announced that he would be stepping down from the role, noting that this
meeting would be his final one as Chair.

The Chair expressed gratitude to those who had supported the work of the committee.
Thanks were extended to the staff from Democratic Services for their efforts in
organising meetings and ensuring they ran smoothly. Appreciation was given to the
Legal Services team, with particular thanks to Helen Blundell for her assistance and
reassuring presence, as well as her legal guidance throughout.

The Chair extended his thanks to the planning officers, acknowledged their
professionalism, dedication, and extensive knowledge, which had greatly supported the
Chair in his role.

The Chair expressed appreciation for the support staff within the planning department,
recognising the significant work they do behind the scenes to prepare for meetings,
and noted that their contributions were essential to the functioning of the committee.
Thanks were given to all Committee Members for their support and patience during
the Chair's tenure.

A special note of thanks was given to Councillor Julia Judd, who had served as Vice-
Chair during the Chair's first year.

The Chair offered appreciation to Councillor Patrick Coleman, the current Vice-Chair,
for his support and assistance over the past three years and his consistent backing and
contribution.

Page 6




Planning and Licensing Committee

14/May2025

The Interim Head of Legal Services thanked the Committee for their professional
conduct in her final Committee meeting and expressed her pleasure in supporting
Planning and Licensing Committee meetings.

Thanks were echoed to the Chair and Interim Head of Legal Services and Vice Chair
from Members of the Committee.

130 Public questions
There were no public questions.
131 Member questions

There were no member questions.

132 21/01892/FUL - Outbuilding to the East of Poplars Barn, Moreton-in-
Marsh.

Proposal
The proposal was for the demolition of an existing outbuilding and the erection of new

dwelling in the village of Evenlode.
Case Officer: Charlotte Van De Wydeven
Ward Member: Councillor David Cunningham

Due to the Case Officer being unavailable, the Head of Planning Services proposed that
the planning application be deferred to a later meeting.

Recommendation
The recommendation was changed to DEFER consideration of the case of planning
application 21/01892/FUL due to the Case Officer being absent.

Proposed by Councillor Judd and seconded by Councillor Harris

The recommendation to defer was APPROVED.

21/01892/FUL - outbuilding to the East of Poplars Barn, Moreton-In-Marsh. To Defer decision
(Resolution)

For Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Daryl Corps, David Fowles, Mark 9
Harris, Julia Judd, Andrew Maclean, Dilys Neill and lan Watson

Against None 0

Conflict Of None 0

Interests

Abstain None 0

Carried

Page 7




Planning and Licensing Committee
14/May2025

133 25/00505/FUL - Land off Kingshill Lane to Witpit Lane, Cirencester

Proposal
The proposal was for the Change of use of the site to a mixture of agriculture and

equestrian (Retrospective) at Land off Kingshill Lane to Witpit Lane, Preston,
Cirencester.

Case Officer: Helen Cooper
Ward Member: Councillor Mike Evemy

Original recommendation: PERMIT.

The Chair invited the Case Officer to introduce the application.
e There were no additional pages or updates provided.
e Various location maps and site photographs were shared

Members questions:
Members asked questions of the Case Officer, who responded as follows:

e It was confirmed that the site would have a mixed use, with areas designated for
both equestrian and agricultural purposes. Some parts of the field were
expected to be used for hay production, while others would be used for grazing
horses. It was intended for rotation of grazing within the site.

e A representation was noted from a resident, who had raised concerns about
odour from manure during warmer weather, attributed to the existing field
shelter. A question was raised as to whether a condition could be applied to
ensure that any field shelter or manure storage was kept a minimum distance
from residential properties.

e The Case Officer clarified that the existing field shelter was not part of the
current application, as the applicant considered it to be a temporary, moveable
structure and not classified as development requiring planning permission. If
such a structure were to be located in a certain position for a significant period
of time, the local planning authority might consider it to be operational
development and planning permission would then be required.

e Regarding manure storage, officers confirmed that the applicant intended to
manage waste by rotating grazing areas and harrowing manure into the ground,
with no manure heaps or trailers proposed. An informative had been included in
the recommendation to advise the applicant to take care in the siting of manure
and any other waste arising from the equestrian use so as not to cause a
justifiable complaint or statutory nuisance.

e A question was raised regarding Condition 4 - external lighting, asking whether
there was an application or intention to install lighting on the site. The Officer
responded that, to their knowledge, no external lighting was proposed at that

Page 8



Planning and Licensing Committee
14/May2025

time. The condition was included to ensure control should any lighting be
proposed in the future. It was also noted that the field shelter had no electrical
services connected, so any lighting installation would require a separate
application.

A proposal to permit the application in line with the officer recommendations was
proposed by Councillor Maclean and seconded by Councillor Judd. This proposal was
put to the vote and agreed by the Committee.

25/00505/FUL - Land off Kingshill Lane to Witpit Lane, Cirencester. To Permit (Resolution)

For Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Daryl Corps, David Fowles, Mark 9
Harris, Julia Judd, Andrew Maclean, Dilys Neill and lan Watson

Against None 0

Conflict Of None 0

Interests

Abstain None 0

Carried

134 24/00981/FUL - The Barn, Hills Farm, Chedworth

Proposal:

The proposal was for the construction of an agricultural building at The Barn, Hills
Farm, Chedworth.

Case Officer: Graham Smith
Ward Member: Councillor Paul Hodgkinson
Original Recommendation: PERMIT

The Chair invited the Case Officer, who introduced the applications.

There were additional pages circulated as supplementary documents which
included an updated Case Officer Report and a public objection comment.
The Case Officer shared site location plans, various maps, plans and
photographs of the application site.

Questions.

A member asked if the application was approved, could that set a precedent for
a future applications to seek a residential conversion. In response, the Head of
Planning Services confirmed that each application would be considered on a
case-by-case basis and assessed against the planning policies in force at that
time.

A member expressed concern about the substantial scale and construction of
the building, particularly given its concrete base, and questioned whether its size
was justified. The Officer stated that the proposal was considered proportionate
and appropriate for the agricultural need

A concern was raised about the removal of vegetation. The Case Officer
confirmed that some of the vegetation was under the applicant's control.

Page 9




Planning and Licensing Committee
14/May2025

A prop

However, as the site was situated within a conservation area, any removal of
trees would require permission from the local planning authority.

A Member raised a question regarding any restrictions on what the building
could be used for in the future. It was explained that different recommendations
for agricultural buildings were outlined in the Case Officer’s report.

Questions were raised about light pollution concerns. The Case Officer
explained that there were no windows in the proposed building and conditions
had been added limiting external lighting.

osal to permit the application in line with the officer recommendations was

proposed by Councillor Mark Harris and seconded by Councillor Julia Judd. This
proposal was put to the vote and agreed by the Committee.

24/00981/FUL - The Barn, Hills Farm, Chedworth. To Permit. (Resolution)

For Ray Brassington, Patrick Coleman, Daryl Corps, David Fowles, Mark 9
Harris, Julia Judd, Andrew Maclean, Dilys Neill and lan Watson

Against None 0

Conflict Of None 0

Interests

Abstain None 0

Carried

135 Sites Inspection Briefing

The Chair advised members to keep the date of 4 June 2025 free in their diaries.

136 Licensing Sub-Committee

There were no licensing sub-committees planned.

The Meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 2.41 pm

Page 10




Agenda Annex

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
11 June 2025

SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION (HP)

¢ Members are asked to determine the applications in this Schedule. My
recommendations are given at the end of each report. Members should get in touch
with the case officer if they wish to have any further information on any applications.

e Applications have been considered in the light of national planning policy guidance, the
Development Plan and any relevant non-statutory supplementary planning guidance.

e The following legislation is of particular importance in the consideration and determination of
the applications contained in this Schedule:

- Planning Permission: Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires that “where in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be
had to the development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan
unless material consideration indicates otherwise. Section 66 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of
preserving the (listed) building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest.

- Listed Building Consent: Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 - special regard to the desirability of preserving the (listed) building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest.

- Display of Advertisements: Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
(England) Regulations 2007 - powers to be exercised only in the interests of amenity,
including any feature of historic, architectural, cultural or similar interest and public safety.

e The reference to Key Policy Background in the reports is intended only to highlight the
policies most relevant to each case. Other policies, or other material circumstances, may also
apply and could lead to a different decision being made to that recommended by the Officer.

e Any responses to consultations received after this report had been printed, will be reported at
the meeting, either in the form of lists of Additional Representations, or orally. Late
information might result in a change in my recommendation.

e The Background Papers referred to in compiling these reports are: the application form; the
accompanying certificates and plans and any other information provided by the
applicant/agent; responses from bodies or persons consulted on the application; other
representations supporting or objecting to the application.

Page 11



PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 11 June 2025

INDEX TO APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AND DECISION

Parish

Application

Schedule
Order No.

Preston

Temple Guiting

Oddington

Evenlode

Land West of Kingshill Lane
Cirencester

Gloucestershire
24/02854/0UT

Outline Application

The Saddlery
Kineton
Guiting Power
Gloucestershire
GL54 5UG
24/03111/FUL
Full Application

Land North East of Braecroft
Upper Oddington
Gloucestershire

GL56 0XJ

25/00045/FUL

Full Application

Outbuilding to the East of Poplars Barn
Green Lane

Evenlode

Moreton-In-Marsh

Gloucestershire

GL56 ONN

21/01892/FUL

Full Application

Page 12



PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
11 June 2025
ADDITIONAL PAGES (Published 06.06.2025)

AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS ON AGENDA ITEMS: Page1-4

Agenda | Ref No: Content:
No:

8 24/02854/0UT | Additional objection comment received:

(Land West of | ‘1. Iobjected recently again to the application. I have now
Kingshill Lane | seen the case officers recommending, I am amending my
Cirencester) reasons for objection.

2. I withdraw the objection related to the lack of
affordable residential, as I note that a 40% provision is
being offered which is acceptable to the relevant Council
Officer.

3. I could see no reference that a Section 111 Agreement,
had been signed in relation to protecting the relevant
area. However, as it is inconceivable that this matter
would not be satisfactorily resolved, I withdraw my
objection in relation to that issue.

3. I maintain my objection on the basis of conflict with
Policy DS4. Furthermore, I do not accept that the
development is sustainable. To be so there would have to
be better bus linkage to Cirencester, including the Centre,
and to Steadings, and the RAU. The Land Availability
Assessment is of no materiel relevance, as the potential
of the site being a potential location for residential, only
featured in the Issues and Options partial review of the
Local Plan consultation. I do not recognize the document,
Integrated Assessment (IIA) for the Cotswold Local Plan
Update (February) 2024), that is noted as identifying the

Page 13




site, as part of a larger site, being least contained of six
sites, from a sustainability viewpoint around Cirencester.
The document remains a research document of no
relevance to existing Policy, which is contained in the
Local Plan.

4. The partially reviewed Local Plans is not sufficiently
advanced for this to have any material relevance.
However, of relevance is the plan for CDC to advance to
the next stage of the partial review of the Local Plan,
within the next 6 -9 months. That will include proposed
residential allocations to cover the reaming Plan period
up until 2031. Before, and after that there will
undoubtedly speculative be speculative applications for
residential on un - allocated residential, that could be
supportedq, as the 'tilted’ balance will be supported on the
basis that DS4 is out of date, and there being no other
issues, of significance, or they will be only be ‘marginal’
ones. The partially reviewed Local Plan is intended to be
adopted in the first quarter 2027. The point being that
almost 2 years of residential remains, and time remains
for the 5 years supply to be built back up, without
permitting residential on sites where there are significant
issues, that I gave before, and will again highlight.

5. I do not accept that the absence of the field being
within the Natural Landscape nor part of a Special
Landscape Area, by definition makes the landscape not
valued. Broad brush designations of Special Landscape
Areas in the Local Plan, can never be expected to identify
all areas of that have Landscape value. It can be likened
to CDC identifying buildings of local Architectural or
Historic significance which are of local significance, only
at the point when planning applications are submitted
that affect them, or their setting.

6. Considering if para 187(a) is relevant is a planning
Judgement on whether the natural and local environment,
are valued landscapes, as that need to be conserved or
enhanced. The case officer has taken a far too narrow a
view, that (a) is not relevant. My view is that it is relevant,
a wide definition by boundaries in a Local Plan is not the

Page 14




arbiter, rather it is the evidence on the ground, related to
an application, in cases where the land has no designated
in the Local Plan. The proposal would cause harm to the
natural and local environment rather than conserving it,
or enhancing it. The existing visual gap is of significance.

7. Furthermore it has been acknowledged by the case
officer that para (b), is also a determining factor,
recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the
Countryside. This would be harmed, rather than being
conserved or enhanced. There is also a conflict with Policy
EN4 of the Local Plan. The issue is also recognised in the
Preston Neighbourhood Plan. The visual gap, comprising
a park, and the application rural field, provides an
important visual gap, between Urban Cirencester, and the
small rural village of Preston.

8. I have previous acknowledged that that if the
development is considered to be sustainable, the 'tilted’
balance is relevant. As noted, I do not regard the
residential as currently sustainable. If it were I
acknowledge that the issue becomes whether the positive
elements of the application, of reducing the shortfall of
residential now needed over the next 5 users, and the
beneficial 40% affordable residential of appropriate
tenure’ outweigh the negative aspects, of losing a valued
Landscape, and also the loss of rural character, and will
reduce the visual gap between urban Cirencester, and the
rural village of Preston.

9. I remain of the view, that even taking account of the
tilted' balance the advantages of this proposal are
overcome by the substantial disadvantages that I have
highlighted. In addition stating that para 187(a), is not
relevant, because the land is neither Natural Landscape,
nor a Special Landscape Area, is incorrectly interpreting
187(a) in the context of the Local Plan. Furthermore, as
agreed by the case officer para 187(b) is relevant.

10. It is for Committee to weigh up the planning balance,
which I do appreciate will be challenging, in view of what
occurred between about 2012/13, and 2016,/2017, when

Page 15




residential development became ‘residential by planning
appeal, or ‘'residential by inevitable capitulation'’.
Obviously, with the 'tilted’ balance, refusal should only
take place where there are clear defensible reasons for
doing so, in accordance with the NPPF.’

24/03111/FUL

(The Saddlery
Kineton
Guiting Power)

Additional comment received from Temple Guiting
Parish Council:

‘Councillors were already concerned at the potential
dangers of having 2 driveways at the same point on the
single-track road through Kineton. A further site visit has
raised the issue of construction traffic and vehicle
movements on this very small site and on the road
through the hamlet. There is very little space for vehicles
to turn, either on the road or on the site, given the size of
typical construction vehicles. If they did not enter the site,
they would have to park on a single track road. This is
likely to be extremely dangerous for builders, residents
and visitors. Temple Guiting Parish Council requests that
GCC Highways reassesses its comments, taking into
account this major issue.

A site visit would demonstrate the issues clearly - unlike
the drawings - which show inaccurate proportions relative
to actual human and vehicle sizes.’

Page 16




PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

11 June 2025

ADDITIONAL PAGES UPDATE (Published 10.06.2025)

AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS ON AGENDA ITEMS: Page 5 -12

Agenda | Ref No: Content:
No:
8 24/02854/0UT | Gloucestershire County Council Highways Response:
No objection - see attached letter dated 10 June 2025
(Land West of
Kingshill Lane
Cirencester) 7 further objections and 1 withdrawal of objection

received.

Main grounds of objection are:

1)

‘The village of Preston includes an area of
conservation protection which will be negatively
impacted by this development The village
community has a neighbourhood development
plan which was agreed up and endorsed which
objects to development of this type and extent.
The village already suffers from the noise of traffic
on the dual carriageway nearby, and road traffic on
other roads too dangerous to cross easily
following previous developments in the area and
subsequent road amendments which do not
consider pedestrian or cyclist safety. This will
continue to be a problem with further
development, and increase noise pollution whilst
decreasing safety for pedestrians and cyclists in
the area.

Increased flood risk. Loss of farmland increases the
threat of unseasonal flooding due to pressure on
drainage infrastructure and increasing the

5

Page 17




1)

V)

vi)

vii)

Vilf)

potential floodwaters building in the fields in
Preston near to housing.

Cirencester is losing its distinct characteristics with
major housing development and lack of affordable
shopping and parking in and around the town, and
reductions in public transport.

The Steadings housing development and other
major housing additions has caused traffic
infrastructure around Cirencester to prove
unsuitable for greater housing development so
close to the town.

Additional pressure on the ring road and major
roundabouts.

The hospital and other medical services in the
town can no longer provide the amount of
provision needed for the current population, with
cutbacks occurring on an increasing basis, thereby
reducing the ability to cope with more residential
capacity as well as the existing capacity.
Neighbouring major hospitals with A&E services
have also proven to be over-capacity and needing
to close wards during key periods, therefore
posing an increased risk to the residents of
Cirencester when there is an even greater
population for the underfunded services to cope
with.

This planning application has been objected to
and refused on multiple occasions previously. The
developer is taking advantage of the present
government's approach on housing developments
by reapplying, but the reasons for the objections
and validity of them still remain.

The recent steadings development in Cirencester
has proven how the town cannot handle a large
scale housing development.

Page 18




Xi)

X11)

Xiif)

Xiv)

This application was rejected as recently as 2023
and I am at a loss as to why this has come to
committee again despite extremely strong
objections from local residents and local and
parish councils. This development is in complete
disregard of the Preston neighbourhood
development plan which took years to develop
and approve. The traffic in the area has been
complete chaos since the start of the sidings
development and this would only add beyond
sustainable pressure to the infrastructure. I do not
believe the proposals prevented adequately
mitigate the issues that were the cause of the
rejections previously and am dismayed to see this
process again.

Site is outside a Principal Settlement and Preston
Neighbourhood Development Plan notes the
desire of the Residents of Preston to retain the
Green buffer between Cirencester and Preston.

Preston does not have the infrastructure to
support this development and its building will
negatively impact on the quality of life for those
who live in the village. Preston Village has
sufficient resources to accommodate the existing
population, 84 properties (c160 persons). There
are no communal facilities provisions in the current
application for the increased population (to
approx. 660 persons).

The proposal will result in significantly increased
traffic on the already congested local roads and
Preston village, and the lack of provision for
pedestrian and cyclist access exacerbates this risk.

Preston will no longer be the idyllic quintessential
small village it is now. Please keep it as such.

Cirencester has seen a substantial amount of
housing development growth over the past few

Page 19




years. Not least the current and ongoing Steadings
development of 2350 houses.

xv)  Whilst I am supportive of providing prospective
families the opportunity to live in Cirencester and
enjoy its benetfits, I struggle to see what enjoyment
will remain in the coming years as the town
becomes severely overpopulated. The roads and
infrastructure cannot take the number of
commuters leaving and entering the town nor can
the town cater for the overwhelming large and
growing population.

xvi)  If Cirencester continues to propose and build more
houses, the town will become far to
overpopulated. There will be one more house
available for prospective families moving to
Cirencester when we make the hard decision to
move on from this lovely, but oversubscribed
town.

Withdrawal of objection:

As you are aware my interest in this application, is
because it is a large application within the south of CDC;
where the interpretation of the 'tilted’ balance is the key
issue, on a particular site.

I have now located, and read the 2024 document referred
to in the report that is part of the justification of the
recommendation, for approval, subject to the awaited
comments from GCC, and the Legal Agreement.

I note that the 2024 document does indeed identify the
location, as the least contained, of various locations
around Cirencester. I also now recognise the extent of
the numerical residential need, to not only satisty the
existing 5 year supply of residential, but also the further
need for identification of sites up until 2031.

Page 20




I therefore withdraw my objection to the application, as I
agree that other Polices are not sufficient to outweigh the
presumption in favour of residential development. I still
do have doubts on the sustainability of the residential.

The withdrawal of the objection, is therefore on the basis
of any views from GCC. I would hope that their view
would include the need for money for improved, non car,
accessibility to Cirencester, including to Steadings, and
the RAU. If GCC do agree that contributions are needed,
the details could be agreed subsequently, and included in
a Legal Agreement before the planning permission is
granted’

Page 21




=iiGloucestershire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Development

Cotswold District Council Management
Trinity Road Economy Environment and
Cirencester Infrastructure
Gloucestershire Shire Hall
GL7 1PX Westgate Street
Gloucester

GL1 2TG

10 June 2025

Your ref: 24/02854/0UT
Ask for: Malcolm Jones

Dear Martin Perks

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2015
ARTICLE 18 CONSULTATION WITH HIGHWAY AUTHORITY

PROPOSAL: Residential development for up to 280 dwellings, associated
works including infrastructure, ancillary facilities, open space,
landscaping and pumping station. Construction of a new
vehicular access off Kingshill Lane (Outline application)

LOCATION: Land West Of Kingshill Lane Cirencester Gloucestershire

APPLICANT: Robert Hitchins Limited

Gloucestershire County Council, the Highway Authority acting in its role as Statutory
Consultee has undertaken a full assessment of this planning application. Based on
the appraisal of the development proposals the Highways Development Management
Manager on behalf of the County Council, under Article 18 of the Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure)(England) Order, 2015 has no
objection subject to conditions and financial obligations.

The justification for this decision is provided below.

The highway authority have been involved in discussions with the applicant on this
proposed development for some time and have worked positively towards
agreement.

The submitted transport assessment has been carried out in accordance with our
requirements and has demonstrated to our satisfaction that the development is
unlikely to have a severe impact on the capacity of the local highway network.

The access proposed for the site has been designed to an appropriate standard and
therefore will not create an unacceptable reduction in highway safety.

The developer is proposing a footway/cycleway connection from the site to the local
schools as well as pedestrian provision to Preston village both of which are

Tel: 01452 42
Email: malcolm.jones@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 22



considered to benefit highway safety. These works are yet to be agreed in detail but
will be secured through a S106 Agreement

The Highway Authority has undertaken a robust assessment of the planning
application. Based on the analysis of the information submitted the Highway Authority
concludes that there would not be an unacceptable impact on Highway Safety or a
severe impact on congestion. There are no justifiable grounds on which an objection
could be maintained.

Conditions

Before any dwelling on the site is occupied it shall be provided with a number of car
and cycle parking spaces in accordance with relevant parking standards and those
spaces shall be hard surfaced and positively drained to a suitable outfall to ensure no
surface water runs onto the highway and shall be provided with a properly
constructed access to the adopted highway to at least base course level.

Prior to the occupation of any part of the proposed non-residential uses on the site
the proposed car parking, turning and servicing arrangements associated with that
part of the development shall be laid out, constructed and positively drained to a
suitable outfall to ensure no surface water runs onto the highway in accordance with
the approved plans and once occupied shall be maintained as such thereafter.
Construction traffic will be managed to ensure there is no parking on the public
highway of either staff or delivery vehicles at any time.

The site will be provided with a suitable wheel washing facility that ensures no mud
or any loose material is carried from the site onto the public highway at any time. Any
such facility shall be positively drained to a suitable outfall to ensure no surface water
runs away from the facility.

Before any part of the development hereby approved is brought into beneficial use
and irrespective of any document currently submitted a Travel Plan will be submitted
to and approved by the LPA which will include a monitoring methodology which is will
include a survey methodology for assessing the travel mode choices of residents, an
initial series of targets for modal shifts for residents and a secondary series of targets
should the initial targets not be achieved. These secondary targets could include
contributions to improving infrastructure to support sustainable travel modes as well
as or instead of other measures to drive change. The Travel Plan once approved will
be monitored and managed including an agreed surveying system to identify travel
choices of (residents/customers and staff), changes in those travel choices and
submission of annual reports from the Travel Plan Co-ordinator to the Local Authority
for at least five years from the occupation of the final part of the development or until
the targets in the Travel Plan are met.

| would also be grateful if you could add the following notes to the decision notice:

This estate road and drainage layout will require approval under Section 38 of the
Highways Act 1980 if it is to be adopted as ‘highway maintainable at public expense’.
There are detailed issues that need to be approved in order to achieve technical
approval under that process and the developer should be advised to contact
Gloucestershire County Council to ensure that approvals and agreements are
secured before commencement of works. The obtaining of planning permission for
any design/layout will not be considered as a reason to relax the required technical

Tel: 01452 42Error! Switch argument not specified.
Email: Error! Switch argument not specified.

Page 23



standards for the adoption of the road and drainage and any changes may
necessitate the submission of further planning applications. If the road is to be private
then the residents should be advised that they may be taking on the responsibilities
and liabilities of the highway authority with regards to maintenance, snow clearance
etc and advised to take advice on public liability insurance against claims associated
with those responsibilities.

Yours Sincerely

Malcolm Jones
Principal Highway Development Officer

Tel: 01452 42Error! Switch argument not specified.
Email: Error! Switch argument not specified.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 8

Residential development for up to 280 dwellings, associated works including
infrastructure, ancillary facilities, open space, landscaping and pumping station.
Construction of a new vehicular access off Kingshill Lane (Outline application) at
Land West of Kingshill Lane Cirencester Gloucestershire

Outline Application

24/02854/0UT
Applicant: Robert Hitchins Limited
Agent:
Case Officer: Martin Perks
Ward Member(s): Councillor Mike Evemy
Committee Date: 11 June 2025

RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT subject to no objection from
Gloucestershire County Council Highways and
completion of S106 legal agreement covering
provision of affordable housing, self-build/custom
build plots, highway improvements works (if
required), Public Open Space management and
maintenance, Biodiversity Net Gain, financial
contributions to libraries and North Meadow and
Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation

1. Main Issues:

Residential Development Outside a Development Boundary
Housing Mix, Affordable and Self-Build/Custom Build Housing
Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Impact on the Setting of Heritage Assets

Accessibility and Highway Safety

Flooding and Drainage

Biodiversity

- e

D
N~ ~—

AN AN N N N /S N
D O

<

2. Reasons for Referral:

2.1 This application has been referred to Planning and Licensing Committee as it
falls into the major development category.

3. Site Description:

3.1 This application relates to a group of agricultural fields located adjacent to the
eastern edge of the settlement of Cirencester. The application site measures

Page 25



3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

approximately 13.49 hectares in size and primarily consists of arable fields
bordered by hedgerows and trees. The site occupies a sloping area of land
which rises approximately 14-15m from its south to its north. The western
boundary of the application site lies adjacent to a 21st century housing
development and an allotments. The northern boundary of the site adjoins
sports field and recreation/sports/leisure development (Cirencester Town
Football Club, Cirencester Arena). Hedgerows and trees separate the site from
the respective development to the north. The eastern boundary of the
application site adjoins a highway (Kingshill Lane). A mix of trees and hedgerows
form a boundary between the aforementioned road the wider application site.
The village of Preston is located to the east of the aforementioned lane and to
the south-east of the application site. The southern boundary of the site adjoins
agricultural fields and is defined by hedgerows and a watercourse.

The western boundary of the site is located adjacent to Cirencester
Development Boundary.

Public Right of Way BPR4 extends in an east-west direction through the
application site. It lies just to the north of the central part of the site.

The application site is located approximately 320m to the west of Preston
Conservation Area. The nearest listed buildings to the site are the Grade II listed
Forty Farmhouse and the barn to its north, which are located approximately
110m and 90m respectively to the south of the application site. The Grade II*
Church of All Saints in Preston is located approximately 390m to the east of the
proposed development. The Grade II listed Church Farmhouse and Preston
Place are located adjacent to the aforementioned church.

The site is not located within the Cotswolds National Landscape nor a Special
Landscape Area.

The site is located within Flood Zone 1. However, land lying adjacent to the
south/south-west of the application site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3.

The application site is located within the zone of influence of North Meadow
and Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

A line of electricity pylons and overhead cables extend in a north-south
direction adjacent to the western edge of the application site.

Page 26



4.1

4.2

43

44

Relevant Planning History:

16/05245/0UT Outline application (with all matters reserved for subsequent
consideration) for residential development (up to 375 dwellings), infrastructure,
ancillary facilities, open space and landscaping, creation of new vehicular access
and emergency vehicular access from Kingshill Lane. Withdrawn 2018

16/05246/0UT Outline application (with all matters reserved for subsequent
consideration) for residential development (up to 130 dwellings), infrastructure,
ancillary facilities, open space and landscaping, and creation of new vehicle
access from Kingshill Lane. Withdrawn 2018

22/02351/SCR Request for Environmental Impact Assessment Screening
Opinion under Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 for residential development of up to 280
dwellings. EIA not required 2022

23/01597/0OUT Residential development for up to 280 dwellings, associated
works including infrastructure, ancillary facilities, open space, landscaping and
pumping station. Construction of a new vehicular access off Kingshill Lane
(Outline application). Refused 2023. Appeal Withdrawn 2024

Planning Policies:

e DS1 Development Strategy

e DS4 Open Market Housing o/s Principal/non-Pr
e H1 Housing Mix & Tenure to meet local needs
e H2 Affordable Housing

e ENT Built, Natural & Historic Environment

e EN2 Design of Built & Natural Environment

e EN4 The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape
e EN7 Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands

e EN8 Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species

e EN9 Bio & Geo: Designated Sites

e ENT0 HE: Designated Heritage Assets

e EN1T1 HE: DHA - Conservation Areas

e EN14 Managing Flood Risk

e EN15 Pollution & Contaminated Land

e INF1 Infrastructure Delivery

e INF2 Social & Community Infrastructure

e INF3 Sustainable Transport

e INF4 Highway Safety

Page 27



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

e INF5 Parking Provision

e INF7 Green Infrastructure

e INF8 Water Management Infrastructure

e NPP Preston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2
e NPP1 Policy 1: Preston Countryside and Landsc

e NPP2 Policy 2: Design

e NPP5 Policy 5: Footpaths and Cycleways

e NPP6 Policy 6: Community Infrastructure

e NPP7 Policy 7: Transport and Village Amenity
Observations of Consultees:

Gloucestershire County Council Highways: Awaiting response.

Gloucestershire County Council Public Rights of Way: Comments incorporated
in Officer Assessment section of this report

Gloucestershire County Council Lead Local Flood Authority: No objection
subject to conditions.

Gloucestershire County Council Community Infrastructure: Requests financial
contribution of £54,880 to library services. No education contribution is sought.

Gloucestershire County Council Archaeology: No objection subject to condition

Housing Officer: Comments incorporated in Officer Assessment section of this
report

Conservation Officer: Objection - comments incorporated in Officer Assessment
section of this report

Biodiversity Officer: No objection subject to conditions.
Tree Officer: No objection.
Environmental and Regulatory Services Air Quality: No objection

Environmental and Regulatory Services Contamination: No objection subject to
condition

Environmental and Regulatory Services Noise: No objection

Page 28



6.13 Thames Water: Comments incorporated in Officer Assessment section of this

6.14

6.15

7.1

report

Historic England: No response to date. The following comments were received
in relation to the previous application: 'Historic England provides advice when
our engagement can add most value. In this case we are not offering advice.
This should not be interpreted as comment on the merits of the application.’

Active Travel England:

6.15.1

ATE retains its recommendation that the application is refused in the
absence of a contribution towards improving accessibility to the west of
the site, between the development and the town centre, in accordance
with the recommendations of Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)'s
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

6.15.2 Consequently, this risks the potential for car-based living amongst the

new population while the proposals remain unable to demonstrate that
the site will be readily accessible to a range of local facilities (other than
local schools) by attractive, safe and inclusive walking, wheeling and
cycling routes, while public transport opportunities continue to be
limited.

6.15.3 As a result of the paucity of direct, safe and attractive linkages to local

facilities that meet modern standards, which is evidenced by the
resultant low mode share forecast for walking, cycling and public
transport and the lack of ambitious targets for modal shift or robust
Travel Plan monitoring and failsafe measures, ATE is unable to support
the application proposals in their current state.

6.15.4 The proposals consequently remain contrary to the vision-led approach

to transport planning, as expected by the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) paragraphs 109, 115, 117 and 118 where movements
by active and sustainable modes require to be prioritised.’

View of Parish Council:

16 page letter of objection received on the 27th November 2024.

Conclusion states:

Page 29



7.2

8.1

8.2

an

712

713

it is our view that the application proposals will result in the erection of
new- build open market housing on an unallocated, windfall site, outside
a Principal or Non-Principal Settlement contrary to Policy DS4 of the
Local Plan.

Furthermore, due to the scale of the proposals, it is considered that the
development would take the form of a large urban extension into the
open countryside, severing the existing green wedge between the
settlements. Set against the skyline it would appear prominent and
legible as a large urban extension. In addition, the application proposals
are considered to have an adverse impact on heritage assets.

We respectfully request therefore that the application is refused on the
basis of the overriding evidence that the proposals are contrary to the
relevant planning policies and material considerations.’

Full response is attached as an appendix to this report.

Other Representations:

38 objections received.

Main grounds of objection are:

i)

I am far more convinced over the calculations on housing supply from
CDC than the applicants. I note that whether previous oversupply of
residential is taken into account is currently a planning judgement. Whilst
residential supply is not expressed as a maximum, this development
would be a significant increase on the requirement. CDC in the last 3
years has also delivered 120% of its defined need, not the 96% stated by
the Government. There is clear evidence that CDC does not to add there
280 dwellings and the tilted balance, is not relevant.

The area's roads will not be suitable for the extra traffic following such a
development as they already struggle and the nearby Steadings
development has not yet completed. Local infrastructure including
Medical facilities, schools and community hubs are insufficient. Water
issues at the bottom of the hill/ main Swindon Road see frequent
flooding which is a major issue. Local wildlife and environment will be
heavily impacted.

Page 30



ii)

iv)

Vi)

Vii)

viii)

Xi)

Xii)

Xiii)

Xiv)

Preston village and conservation area would be heavily impacted and the
area would become part of the main town of Cirencester with no green
belt.

Using up more green land and countryside.

Not enough infrastructure for this development traffic wise.
Already so much being built in Cirencester eg the Steadings.
Loss of peaceful green leisure and wellbeing areas.

Too many houses on a small plot.

Impact on Tesco roundabout.

The development would add extra traffic to an already congested area
(especially Kingshill Lane and the 'Tesco' roundabout, would impact
heavily on the village of Preston by creating a contiguous area from
Cirencester to the village itself, and likely generate a lot of traffic through
and within the existing Kingshill Estate.

No flood risk assessment can properly and fully anticipate what will
happen to the lower levels of the propose development.

It is not clear how the proposed development would interface with the
existing estate (especially the proposed 'cycleway'.

Living in the village of Preston this will impact negatively on the village
with increased traffic through the village and in Kingshill Lane. The noise
of extra traffic will be audible in the village. Kingshill Lane doesn't have
pedestrian access ie no pavements thus dangerous for pedestrians
walking up and down.

Areas of Preston are in a conservation area and building near to the area
will have a negative impact on the village of Preston with increased traffic
driving through the village, noise levels too. Kingshill has already been
developed and I believe these additional houses will be over
development in the area, joining Cirencester to the village of Preston
means Preston loses its identity as a village.

Page 31



XV)

XVi)

Xvii)

Xviii)

Xix)

XX)

XXi)

xXii)

Xxiii)

XXiV)

XXV)

XXVi)

XXVil)

Access to the development will be a problem, increasingly traffic on
Kingshill Lane which in turn will increase traffic congestion at Preston Toll
Bar and at London Road.

Adverse impact on privacy.

There is now a danger that Cirencester and its suburbs will be over
developed and some of the precious character of a lovely market town
will be lost for good.

Continuous development around the town will just add to the overall
traffic congestion and frustration we already experience. Almost
continuous roadworks, creeping traffic at rush hour and insufficient and
(costly) parking at present will only become worse.

The proposed 280 dwelling will increase traffic congestion along
Kingshill Lane and its exit onto the A419 which is already bad in the rush

at present and will be further exacerbated.

Why do we need more houses in Cirencester after the big new
development in Chesterton?

What provision will there be for people to cycle and walk to the site?
There is currently no pavement along Kingshill Lane?

What steps will be taken to ensure there is no damage to the Kingshill
allotments during the building of the new development?

Noise and air pollution

Impact on wildlife.

Visually, the current Kingshill Meadow development is dominant on the
approach to Cirencester along the A419 from the South East, yet is
somewhat softened by the arable.

The development could result in an increase of 1000 people moving into
the area. Where is the extra school capacity, doctors and dentists

surgeries and other amenities?

With regard to the water networks, in the last few years there has been
a number of floods blocking pedestrian access to Cirencester along

Page 32



XXViil)

XXiX)

XXX)

XXXi)

XXXi1)

XXXiii)

XXXIV)

Cricklade road, Adding further developments and associated storm
waters could increase the frequency and severity of this issue. Noting
that the water networks are unsuitable for the proposed development in
any case, with no plan in principle to address this.

Preston in a village with a distinct and individual character, separate from
Cirencester which has a distinctly urban character. The development
would encroach on the rural setting of Preston and bridge the rural
buffer between the village and the outskirts of Cirencester town. The
views from the village, and the setting of the village are part of a historic
landscape, that is important to both the village, and to the wider
Costwolds area, which has significant importance to tourism in this part
of the country.

The development would be accessed from Kingshill lane, which is not a
major road, and would be unable to support the increased traffic. The
junction to the A419 in particular would be a significant issue, having
access only in one direction. The lane itself has no pedestrian pavement,
so pedestrian access would be limited, and I suspect disabled/accessible
pedestrian access would be nearly impossible. The village has limited
public transport provision, so it is unrealistic to assume residents of the
new development would use public transport options.

Preston currently population is currently approx 300 people. This
development would triple the population. I don't see any amenities such
as community hall etc in the plan. Are the current Preston amenities
expected to absorb this level of population increase?

This development will result in the loss of Preston as stand alone village
and would see it become a suburb of Cirencester. This is not what the
community of Preston want which is evidenced by Preston
Neighbourhood Plan. ( which was supported by 90% of the Village).

I don't see any reference our consideration given to the Preston
Neighbourhood Plan in this application. This is not acceptable given this

is a legal doc which was supported ( in vote) by people of Preston.

View coming into Cirencester on the Swindon road will be impacted by
this development.

the existing water network infrastructure cannot cope with the needs of
this development. Flooding in this area occurs frequently.

Page 33



8.3

8.4

xxxv) Allotment to the rear of the proposed development. Current access is
through a housing estate but once there it feels and sounds like you are
in your own tranquil countryside area while overlooking the surrounding
fields. I feel that this development would ruin that feeling for many
allotment holders and it would lose the individuality of being the place
it is once it was surrounded by houses in all directions. This development
could also cast potential shade upon the allotment causing issues with
growing produce, destroying the sole purpose of what it is intended for.

xxxvi) The drainage system in the area is already struggling to cope with the
heavy rainfall. Main roads are already subject to frequent flooding. The
building of housing on this area will affect rainwater drainage, increasing
areas of standing water, and the threat to an already flood prone area.

Cirencester Town Council

'CTC objected to this proposal when it was originally submitted in 2023
(23/01597/0UT). There has been no change, since that application was refuseq,
in policy or 5YHLS terms, and so CTC continues to OBJECT strongly to this
application for outline permission on grounds that it is contrary to Cotswold
District Council’s (CDCs) adopted Local Plan 2017-2031, in particular it does not
accord with DS4 Open Market Housing Outside Principal and Non-Principal
Settlements and DS2 and DS3 which preclude development outside the
Cirencester development boundary - as also referenced in the Preston Parish
Made Neighbourhood Development Plan 2020-2031 (Preston Countryside and
Landscape), this means that only small scale development can be allowed in
Preston. Cirencester Town Council also objects on grounds that CDC currently
has a 5 Year Housing Land Supply (5YHLS), so there is no need nor any
Justification for granting planning permission to this application . This is a
largely unspoilt agricultural section of the Preston Parish which serves an
Important purpose as a green gap / ‘'green wedge' between Cirencester and
Preston, which prevents coalescence of the two settlements, making each
settlement distinct. The Local Plan describes it as follows: 'The 'green wedges’
and views of Cirencester Parish Church tower are particular characteristics of
Cirencester when approaching the town from various directions.’ (para 7.2.3’

Siddington Parish Council:
Siddington Parish Council fully supports the other objectors’ comments, and

feels that the traffic assessment is unconvincing and the assessment of the
flooding impact is implausible. The Council also feels that the existing social

Page 34



8.5

services Infrastructure (schools, doctors' surgeries, dentists, etc) is already
overstretched.’

Cirencester Civic Society

857

852

‘Object. This is a major application. The main reasons for the refusal of
the previous application (Ref: 23/01597/0UT) are still valid. Even if the
development was considered to be acceptable in principle, many
potentially contentious aspects would need careful consideration and
further detailed collaborative work. Premature approval of some of the
outline details, without full knowledge of the implications, would make
it impossible to change them later. Increased flood risk to the
Kingsmeadow area arising from more run-off flowing into the River
Churn, must be a concern. There appears to be insufficient public open
space within the current illustrative master plan to provide amenity and
focus. Sites for landmark trees should be incorporated. The plan doesn't
show divisions between private gardens and public spaces. This suggests
it could be another featureless housing estate maximising density with
nothing to distinguish between one area and another which would give
residents a sense of belonging and identity.

Our general view is that proposals for the development of this land are
far too early. It will be sad to see Preston becoming a virtual suburb of
the town and no longer a distinctive settlement. The present rate of the
town's growth is a major concern. The rapid expansion of the population
resulting from The Steadings development will be significant. It will be
more than enough to satisfy national housing targets. Most of that
development should be built before the development of other areas
around the town are considered. That development alone will put
considerable pressure on the local infrastructure and services generally,
especially schools and healthcare provision. The latter is already over-
stretched. We have concern that this will be harmful to the town's special
character and the convenience and needs of those now living within it
More assimilation time is required to allow for the necessary changes to
be made to respond to this increase in population. This process can only
be achieved if change is properly managed in an incremental and
measured way, allowing progressive planning decisions to be made
which are relatively small in scale and are adjustable. Decisions which
prove to be impractical, or inappropriate should be reversible if negative
implications become clear.’

Page 35



10.

10.1

10.2

Applicant’s Supporting Information:

e Energy & Sustainability Strategy Briefing Note

e Preliminary Geotechnical Design Report

e Noise Impact Assessment

e Waste Management & Waste Minimisation Plan (Including Refuse Disposal
Details)

e Utility Statement

e Air Quality Assessment

e Built Heritage Assessment

e Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment

e Ecological Assessment

e Flood Risk Assessment

e Transport Assessment

e Travel Plan

e Tree Survey and Site Feasibility Report

e Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)

e Statement of Community Involvement

e Design and Access Statement

e Planning Statement

e Archaeological Assessment

e Preliminary Permeable Paving Designs

e Phase One Geo-Environmental Desk Study Report

e Ecology Addendum: Updated Habitat & BNG Assessment and Response to
Council Comments

Officer's Assessment:
Background and Proposed Development

Outline planning permission for the development of this site for 280 dwellings
was initially refused in 2023 (23/01597/0OUT). The aforementioned application
was refused on 7 grounds, including a conflict with Local Plan Policy DS4, harm
to the landscape and to heritage assets, insufficient highway information, lack
of a S106 legal agreement covering affordable housing and financial
contributions to library services, lack of an agreement to mitigate the impact
of the scheme on the North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of
Conservation and insufficient information regarding the impact of the scheme
on nesting birds and important hedgerows. The applicant lodged an appeal
against the decision which was subsequently withdrawn in 2024.

This application seeks permission for essentially the same scheme as that
determined in 2023. The applicant seeks Outline planning permission for the

Page 36



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

(a)

10.7

erection of up to 280 dwellings and associated works, including open space,
landscaping, a pumping station and new vehicular and pedestrian accesses. The
applicant is seeking to establish the principle of development on the site.
Detailed matters relating to Access, Appearance, Scale, Layout, Landscaping
have been reserved for later approval should Outline permission be granted.

An illustrative masterplan has been submitted with this planning application. It
indicates that the proposed housing would occupy the central and northern
parts of the site. A central green corridor/area of open space would be created
around the hedgerow that extends east to west across the site. The southern
part of the site (approximately 3 hectares) would be set aside as open space. It
would incorporate landscaping, biodiversity enhancement and drainage
features such as an attenuation basin. Landscape buffers would be created
along the western and eastern edges of the application site.

The illustrative plan indicates that the proposed development would be served
by a single vehicular access, which would open onto Kingshill Lane to the east.
The proposed access point is currently shown as being located approximately
100m to the south of the northern boundary of the application site. A new
pedestrian/cycle entrance is also proposed onto Kingshill Lane in the southern
part of the application site. A new pedestrian footway would be created
alongside Kingshill Lane from the aforementioned entrance to the village of
Preston.

An existing Public Right of Way which extends in an east-west direction to the
north of the centre of the site would be upgraded to provide a footpath/cycle
route. It would connect into the existing footpath network extending through
the existing residential development to the west, as well as a Public Right of
Way that extends to the village of Preston to the east. The submitted plans also
show the creation of footpath/cycle path extending up to the northern
boundary of the site, where it adjoins the adjacent recreation/sports grounds.

Following discussions with Officers, the applicant is also proposing to introduce
a new pedestrian/cycle link to the primary and secondary schools to the north
of the site.

Residential Development Outside a Development Boundary
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that 7f
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any

determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indjicate

Page 37



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

otherwise.” The starting point for the determination of this application is
therefore the current development plan for the District which, in this instance,
consists of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and the Preston
Neighbourhood Plan 2020-2031

The application is located outside Cirencester Development Boundary. It is also
located outside of a Non-Principal Settlement. The erection of new build open
market housing on the application site is subject to the following Local Plan

policy:

Local Plan Policy DS4: Open Market Housing Outside Development Boundaries
and Non-Principal Settlements

New-build open market housing will not be permitted outside Principal and
Non-Principal Settlements unless it is in accordance with other policies that
expressly deal with residential development in such locations.

In respect of Local Plan Policy DS4, the supporting text to the policy states:

6.44. Policy DS4 is intended to preclude, in principle, the development of
speculative new-build open market housing which, for strategic reasons,
is not needed in the countryside....

6.4.5:  For the purposes of Policy D54, any land that falls outside Development
Boundaries and Non-Principal Settlements is referred to as countryside,
even if it is technically previously developed land.

The current scheme would result in the erection of open market dwellings on
the application site and is therefore contrary to the above policy.

Notwithstanding the above, it is noted that the Council also has to have regard
to policies in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) when reaching a
decision. The NPPF represents a significant material consideration. In particular,
it is noted that the December 2024 update of the NPPF introduced a new
standard method for calculating local housing need. Prior to the December
changes to the NPPF, the Council could demonstrate a 7.3 year supply of
housing land. It was therefore comfortably meeting its requirement to provide
a 5 year supply of such land. However, as a result of the aforementioned
changes it is noted that the Council is now only able to demonstrate a 1.8-1.9
year supply. The new standard method means that the Council has to deliver
1036 homes per annum as opposed to the 504 homes per annum requirement
that existed prior to the December 2024 update. Moreover, the aforementioned

Page 38



10.12

update to the NPPF removed the wording in the document that enabled
previous over-supply to be set against upcoming supply. The residual
requirement for the remainder of the Local Plan period would have been 265
dwellings per annum (based on the Housing Land Supply Report August 2023)
prior to the changes in December. The December changes to the NPPF
therefore result in the Council having to deliver a far higher number of dwellings
than that required prior to December 2024. As the supply figure is now under 5
years, it is necessary to have regard to paragraph 11 of the NPPF, which states:

11.  Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable
development,

For decision-taking this means:

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-
date, granting permission unless:

2 the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a strong reason for
refusing the development proposed; or

iI. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in this Framework taken as a whole, having particular
regard to key policies for directing development to sustainable
locations, making effective use of land, securing well-designed
places and providing affordable homes, individually or in
combination.

Footnote 8 of the NPPF advises that ‘out-of-date’ for the purposes of
paragraph 11 includes ‘for applications involving the provision of housing,
situations where: the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year
supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer as set out in
paragraph 78): or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of
housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirements
over the previous three years.’ In light of this guidance, it is considered that
Local Plan Policy DS4 is out-of-date at the present time and that paragraph 11

is engaged.

Page 39



10.13 In the case of criterion d) i) of paragraph 11, it is noted that footnote 7 of the
NPPF advises that designated heritage assets, such as conservation areas and
listed buildings, or habitats sites such as Special Areas of Conservation (SACs)
are areas or assets of particular importance. Harm to such areas or assets could
therefore provide a strong reason to refuse an application for housing even if a
5 year supply of housing land cannot be demonstrated. In the case of criterion
d ii), it is necessary to weigh the benefits arising from the scheme, such as the
delivery of housing, including affordable housing, against the adverse impacts
of the proposal, such as its landscape and visual impact, its impact on habitats
site and/or heritage assets. These aspects of the proposal will be addressed later
in this report. However, in the case of criterion d) ii), it is evident that the
adverse impacts would have to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits in order for an application to be refused.

10.14 The application site, along with a parcel of land to its south-west, have been
assessed as part of the Council's Strategic Housing and Economic Land
Availability Assessment (SHELAA) process. The document titled "Strategic
Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment (2027)' gives the
application site reference C80 and the land to its south-west reference C185.
The summary section of the aforementioned report states the following in
relation to the two sites:

10.74.1 'The development of either site would be a significant eastwards
extension of Cirencester and would lose agricultural land. Both sites
have 'High /medium’ landscape sensitivity, primarily because of their
open nature and their prominent position, which is highly visible to
users of the A479(T) to the south. The development would also cause
a level of harm to the historic environment. However, there are also

opportunities for enhancements that the development could bring.

70.14.2 Recommendation

C80 is a candidate for further consideration for allocation for residential
development in the Local Plan.

C185 is unsuitable for residential development but may be considered
as part of the development of the adjacent land in order to deliver some
of the planning benefits associated with the wider scheme.’

10.15 It is evident that the application site is a candidate for consideration for

allocation as part of the Local Plan review or in a future version of the Local
Plan. The SHELAA has not therefore ruled out the residential development of

Page 40



10.16

(b)

10.17

10.18

the site on the grounds that it is unsuitable for development. Whilst it is noted
that the suitability of a site of this size for residential development would
normally be addressed through the Local Plan process, the December 2024
changes to the NPPF mean that this Council is now in a position where it has to
consider development proposals on a case by case basis. Moreover, the in-
principle policy objection to the residential development of this site as set out
in Local Plan Policy DS4 is now considered to be ‘out-of-date’ As such, it is
necessary to assess this proposal against the criteria set out in paragraph 11 of
the NPPF. This assessment is set out in the following sections of this report.

In addition to the findings of the above report, the application site has also been
assessed as part of the document titled ntegrated Impact Assessment (IIA) for
the Cotswold Local Plan Update' (February 2024). The aforementioned
document evaluates the relative sustainability merits of various areas in the
vicinity of each of the Principal Settlements in the District. The proposed site
forms part of a larger area of land identified as CIR4. Of the 6 areas of land
assessed around Cirencester, the aforementioned area ranks No.1 in terms of
its relative sustainability merits advising that ‘this makes CIR4 the relatively least
constrained area overall.’

Housing Mix, Affordable and Self-Build/Custom Build Housing

With regard to housing mix, affordable and self-build/custom build housing,
the proposed development is subject to the following Local Plan policies:

Policy H1 Housing Mix and Tenure to Meet Local Needs

7. All housing developments will be expected to provide a suitable mix and
range of housing in terms of size, type and tenure to reflect local housing
need and demand in both the market and affordable housing sectors,
subject to viability. Developers will be required to comply with the
Nationally Described Space Standard.

2 Any affordable accommodation with 2 or more bedrooms will be
expected to be houses or bungalows unless there is a need for flats or
specialist accommodation.

3. Proposals of more than 20 dwellings will be expected to provide 5% of
awelling plots for sale as serviced self or custom build plots, unless
demand identified on the Local Planning Authority's Self-Build and
Custom Register or other relevant evidence demonstrates there is a
higher or lower level of demand for plots.

Page 41



Starter Homes will be provided by developers in accordance with
Regulations and national Policy and Guidance.

Exception sites for Starter Homes on land that has been in commercial
or industrial use and which has not currently been identified for
residential development will be considered.

10.19 Policy H2 Affordable Housing

1.

All housing developments that provide 17 or more new dwellings (net)
or have a combined gross floorspace of over 1,000 square metres, will
be expected to contribute towards affordable housing provision to meet
the identified need in the District and address the Council’s strategic
objectives on affordable housing.

In settlements in rural areas, as defined under s157 of the Housing Act

1985, all housing developments that provide 6 to 10 new dwellings (net)
will make a financial contribution by way of a commuted sum towards
the District's affordable housing need subject to viability. Where financial
contributions are required payment will be made upon completion of
development,

The affordable housing requirement on all sites requiring a contribution,
subject to viability is:

A Up to 30% of new dwellings gross on brownfield sites; and
II. Up to 40% of new dwellings gross on all other sites.

In exceptional circumstances consideration may be given to accepting a
financial contribution from the developer where it is justified that
affordable housing cannot be delivered on-site, or that the District's
need for affordable housing can be better satisfied through this route. A
financial contribution will also be required for each partial number of
affordable units calculated to be provided on site.

The type, size and mix, including the tenure split of affordable housing
will be expected to address the identified and prioritised housing needs
of the District and designed to be tenure blind and distributed in clusters
across the development to be agreed with the Council. It will be expected
that affordable housing will be provided on site as completed dwellings

Page 42



10.20

10.21

10.22

by the developer, unless an alternative contribution is agreed, such as
serviced plots.

6. Where viability is questioned or a commuted sum is considered, an
"open book" assessment will be required. The local planning authority
will arrange for an external assessment which will be paid for by the
developer.

As this application is in Outline form, the final layout of dwellings on the site
would be established at the Reserved Matters stage should Outline permission
be granted. Notwithstanding this, the applicant has stated that the proposed
scheme would make provision for 40% affordable housing in accordance with
the requirements of Policy H2. The proposed affordable housing mix comprises
50 social rented units (45%), 28 affordable rented units (25%), 28 First Homes
(25%) and 6 shared ownership units (5%). A total of 112 affordable units are
proposed. In terms of size, 23 units would be 1 bedroom, 59 would be 2
bedroom, 25 would be 3 bedroom and 5 would be 4 bedroom. The proposed
mix is considered to provide a good range of dwelling sizes and tenures. It
would also provide a high number of units for social rent which will help to
ensure that the scheme accords with Cotswold District Council's document 'Our
Cotswolds Our Plan 2024-2028" which states 'We will deliver good quality
housing that is genuinely affordable, to enable local people on low incomes to
stay local.’

The Council's Housing Strategy Officer has no objection to the proposed
affordable housing mix. The final mix would be secured through a S106 legal
agreement. It is considered that the proposed development would contribute
in a significant way to the delivery of affordable housing in the District. The
benefits arising from the affordable housing are considered to carry
considerable weight and to represent a significant material consideration when
weighing the benefits of this proposal against its potential impacts.

With regard to the mix of open market dwellings, it is considered necessary to
ensure that a mechanism is put in place to secure an appropriate mix of market
dwellings, as required by Local Plan Policy H1. It would not be possible to
control the mix of the open market housing at the reserved matters stage. The
provision of larger, more expensive dwellings for open market sale can increase
average house prices across the District, which can then increase the Council's
housing needs and its housing affordability issues, both in the affordable and
open market sectors. A higher average house price can mean that more persons
fall into housing need. In contrast, the provision of smaller 1, 2 and 3 bed open
market dwellings can more reasonably address such an issue. Figures from the

Page 43



10.23

10.24

(c)

10.25

10.26

10.27

Office for National Statistics indicate that the ratio between median house
prices and median gross annual earnings in Cotswold District in 2024 (based on
a 5 year average) was 14.64 times. In comparison, the difference was 5.63 times
in 1997. The provision of a high percentage of 4 and 5 bed dwellings simply
adds to the price differential and does little to address the Council's issues
relating to house price affordability. It is noted that Table A2.19 of the
Gloucestershire Strategic Housing Market Assessment Update Final March 2014
states that 80% of new market accommodation required in Cotswold District in
the period up to 2031 would be 1, 2 and 3 bed units, with just 20% being 4 bed
dwellings and above. It is therefore recommended that a condition is attached
to a grant of Outline permission that would ensure that no more than 20% of
the completed dwellings have 4 bedrooms or more, and that the remaining
dwellings would be 1, 2 and 3 bed units.

With regard to self-build/custom build plots, a scheme of 280 dwellings would
need to provide 14 such plots in order to meet the 5% requirement set out in
Local Plan Policy H1. The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that it delivers
an adequate number of serviced self-build/custom build plots. Local Plan Policy
H1 is the principal means of securing such development. The Council continues
to receive requests to join the self-build/custom build register and the delivery
of plots to meet such needs is considered necessary and reasonable. It is
expected that the delivery of such plots would be secured as part of a S106
legal agreement.

Subject to the condition and S106 agreement set out above, it is considered
that the proposal accords with Local Plan Policies H1 and H2.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

The application site occupies an area of agricultural land located between the
town of Cirencester to the west and the village of Preston to the south-east.
Whilst the site lies adjacent to Cirencester Development Boundary it is located
within the parish of Preston. The site is not located within the Cotswolds
National Landscape, nor a Special Landscape Area.

The following policies and guidance are considered applicable to this proposal:

Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031

Local Plan Policy EN1 Built, Natural and Historic Environment

Page 44



‘New development will where appropriate, promote the protection,
conservation and enhancement of the historic and natural environment by:

a. Ensuring the protection and enhancement of existing natural and historic
environmental assets and their settings in proportion with the
significance of the asset

b. Contributing to the provision of multi-functional green infrastructure;

C. Addressing climate change habitat loss and fragmentation through
creating new habitats and the better management of existing habitats;

a. Seeking to improve air, soil and water quality where feasible; and

e Ensuring design standards that complement the character of the area
and the sustainable use of the development.’

10.28 Local Plan Policy EN4 The Wider Natural and Historic Landscape

1. ‘Development will be permitted where it does not have a significant
detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape (including the
tranquillity of the countryside) of Cotswold District or neighbouring
areas.

2 Proposals will take account of landscape and historic landscape
character, visual quality and local distinctiveness. They will be expected
to enhance restore and better manage the natural and historic
landscape, and any significant landscape features and elements,
including key views, the setting of settlements, settlement patterns and
heritage assets.’

10.29 Local Plan Policy INF7: Green Infrastructure
7. Development proposals must contribute, depending on their scale, use
and location, to the protection and enhancement of existing Green

Infrastructure andyor the delivery of new Grenn Infrastructure.

2 New Green Infrastructure provision will be expected to link to the wider
Green Infrastructure network of the District and beyond.

3. Green Infrastructure will be designed in accordance with principles set
out in the Cotswold Design Code (Appendix D).

Page 45



10.30

10.31

Preston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2020-2031

Policy 1: Preston Countryside and Landscape

‘Other than within the AONB, new development should where appropriate
promote the following.

/.

111,

V.

Vi,

Vil

Vi,

Replanting non-native tree plantations with native broadleaved native
species as part of the woodland succession planting,

Avoiding unsympathetic new woodland planting including new dense
linear shelterbelts, particularly in character areas 4a, 4b and 5, which
would enclose the character of the landscape at points where it is
currently open;,

Managing existing shelterbelts with selective thinning to retain native
specimens and open up views below their canopies; maintaining dry-
stone wall boundaries and restore any in disrepair;

Restoring historic hedgerow lines;

Maintaining the existing network of open djtches and streams to ensure
continuity of irrigation to fields and surface water management to grass
and agricultural fields,

Protecting open views between buildings of Preston’s agricultural setting
when viewed from the village main street (Witpit Lane);

Establishing a pedestrian link using the route of the old railway line to
create a public footpath which connects the whole of the parish on a
north/south axis;

Resolving footpath links across the dual carriageway to improve
connectivity across the parish. '

Policy 2: Design

10.31.1 'Proposals for new development including extensions to existing
buildings, and conversions of farm buildings, should be of the highest design
standards in accordance with the relevant policies of the Cotswold District Local
Plan, including the Cotswold Design Code.

Page 46



10.32

10.33

10.34

10.31.2 Proposals should have specific regard to the following conclusions
derived from the Design in Preston Design Statement (2017):

1) Publicly accessible green spaces (such as the formal spaces around
community infrastructure and incidental spaces such as grass verges)
within the village built-up area should be retained if possible.

1) Proposals should use locally characteristic building materials, for
example Cotswold stone and reconstituted Cotswold stone for walling,
roofing and timber for windows and doors, where appropriate.

111) Properties should have high quality boundary features, such as hedges
and Cotswold Stone walls where appropriate, particularly where these
are visible from public vantage points.’

The application site is not located within the Cotswolds National Landscape nor
a Special Landscape Area. In addition, it is not subject to any other landscape
designations. As a consequence, it is considered not to represent a valued
landscape for the purposes of paragraph 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF). Notwithstanding this, paragraph 187 b of the NPPF states
that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the local
environment by recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside. The current site consists of agricultural fields lying between the
settlements of Cirencester and Preston and is considered to contribute
positively to the rural setting of both settlements.

The application site has been assessed in the Council's Strategic Housing and
Economic Land Availability Assessment 2021 (SHELAA). The current application
site occupies an area covered by SHELAA site reference C80. A smaller parcel of
land lying to the south of the current application site has also been assessed as
part of the SHELAA under reference C185.

With regard to site C80, the SHELAA states:

'C80: The parcel was assessed as part of the 'Study of land surrounding Key
Settlements in Cotswold District Update Additional Sites: Final Report’
(Cotswold District Council and White Consultants, October 2014) report. The
description provided for this parcel is reproduced below and remains an
appropriate description:

'The site comprises of three arable fields with moderately reqular boundaries
on the sloping valley sides of the River Churn. The field boundaries are low cut
hedges running along the slopes but a mixture of low hedge and fence along

Page 47



10.35

10.36

Kingshill Lane to the east. The site is therefore open. The western boundary is
open abutting a line of pylons and power lines which are a detractor. Beyond
this to the west is the recently constructed Kingshill development which has
been built reflecting vernacular forms and has a moderately varied structure
and a positive edge, though unmitigated with vegetation at present. There is a
public footpath running along the slope through the site. To the east there is a
young mixed tree belt. To the south, the site abuts the relatively open floodplain
and views are possible across this from the busy A419(T) which also reduces
tranquillity through movement and noise. A sports building and low floodlights
are visible on the skyline to the north of the site. Listed buildings lie at Preston
Forty Farm to the south and Preston Conservation Area lies to the east beyond
the tree belt"

With regard to landscape sensitivity, the SHELAA states:
‘Landscape sensitivity C80 evaluation.: High/Medium

10.35.1 The landscape sensitivity given to the parcel as part of its inclusion
within the ‘Study of land surrounding Key Settlements in Cotswold District
Update, Additional Sites: Final Report' (Cotswold District Council and White
Consultants, October 2014) report was High/Medijum. The justification provided
for this rating is reproduced below and remains an appropriate justification for
the parcel’s landscape sensitivity:

10.35.2 'The site is susceptible to change because it is open and lies on a
prominent slope highly visible to users of the A419 to the south. Development
on this site would be a major extension of built form into open countryside. The
presence of the sports facilities to the north are not sufficient justification for a
major built extension as they are relatively low key in nature. The power lines
provide a logical boundary to the built form and the new development will
provide a positive edge once landscape planting is established'

The SHELAA goes on to state:
‘Recommendation

710.36.71 C80is a candidate for further consideration for allocation for residential
development in the Local Plan.

10.36.2 C185 is unsuitable for residential development but may be considered

as part of the development of the adjacent land in order to deliver some of the
planning benefits associated with the wider scheme.

Page 48



10.37

10.36.3 Proposed site design brief if the site was allocated in the Local Plan.

10.36.4 This following is not an exhaustive list and further guidance on design
requirements will be provided through the pre-application process. If this site
were to be redeveloped:

e The neighbouring country park should be extended into C185 to promote
health and wellbeing through recreation and also allow a greater level of
habitat management to improve biodiversity. The natural functions of the
parcel should remain and still form an active part within local flood
management and should retain a rural setting for the listed farm.

e The design of houses should be set within parkland to break up the
buildings so that their impact is minimised.

e Llandscaping should be included within the design to make appropriate
provision for significant new tree planting within and around the boundaries
of the site and maintain separation between Cirencester and Preston.

e Consideration must be given to how the impact of the power lines across
the site can be minimised.

e Demonstrate how development will to contribute towards modal shift in
transportation, permeability with the wider town/countryside and
accessibility to services and facilities.’

10.36.5 Key actions required

e An indicative masterplan that shows the mitigation of issues and a
demonstration that development is achievable.’

In addition to the SHELAA assessment, the application site has also been
assessed as part of Preston Neighbourhood Plan, which states:

‘Sensitive receptors are the users of the Country park, the village residents, users
of Kingshill Lane and of the public footpath which runs east to west along the
north of this area, and users of the A419 Ermin Way. Views of the Kingshill
Meadow estate are prominent on the approach to Cirencester, although the
presence of the recently established parkland along the road will create
screening to this development in the longer term. For any proposed
development to be considered appropriate in this sub-area, it would need to

Page 49



10.38

10.39

10.40

retain the open agricultural character of the landscape, ensure the identity of
the village of Preston to be retained as a separate settlement and with its own
countryside setting, maintain the visual amenity of PRoWs, and ensure that the
green wedge approach to Cirencester is retained. It would be appropriate if the
existing country park along the Ermin Way is extended to the east.’

Paragraph 44 of the Neighbourhood Plan states:

44, Since its first settlement, Preston village has maintained a separate identity
from other villages in the area, particularly Cirencester. Villagers have
demonstrated their passion for retaining Preston'’s separate identity throughout
the NDP consultation. The importance to them of retaining this - geographically
in terms of built development, and socially in terms of preserving a village where
people know and like one another - was stressed time and time again during
public consultation. What residents fear the most is the coalescence of Preston
with Cirencester and a merging of the two areas'’.

Paragraphs 59 and 60 go on state:

'59. The character of Cirencester is strongly informed by areas of open
landscape which, through varying degrees of parkland and agricultural
character, reach close to the town centre from several directions, principally
from the west (Bathurst estate), the north-east (Abbey Home Farm estate) and
the south-east (Preston parish & Kingshill Country Park) 9. The largely unspoilt
agricultural section of the parish serves this important 'green wedge' purpose,
which is described by the Local Plan as follows: 'The ‘green wedges' and views
of [Cirencester] Parish Church tower, are particular characteristics of Cirencester
when approaching the town from various djrections.’ (para 7.2.3)

60. In this context Preston Parish lies at a critically important location. Its
immediate proximity to Cirencester forms a major constituent of one of the
green wedge' approaches (particularly Area 4b). It also emphasises by contrast
to the open views of the urban town itself, the importance of the parish as an
open landscape setting to the largest of the Cotswold towns'.

It is evident from the above, that the application site constitutes an important
area of green space that contributes positively to the rural setting of Cirencester
and to the rural character and appearance of the parish of Preston. The site
forms part of a green buffer between the aforementioned settlements. The
introduction of development of the size now proposed onto the site could
potentially erode this buffer and result in a coalescence of the 2 settlements.
Due to the sloping nature of the site, the proposed development would be

Page 50



10.41

readily visible from a number of public vantage points in the area. Views of the
development would not therefore be limited to adjacent roads and Public
Rights of Way. Road users entering Cirencester along the A419 to the south-
east of the site would also have a clear view of the proposed development. At
present, the site has an undeveloped agricultural character and appearance,
albeit set against a backdrop of the eastern edge of Cirencester to its west and
a number of electricity pylons.

In response to the previous application for the same proposal submitted in
2023, the Council's Landscape Officer stated:

1041.71 'A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA, March 2023, Issue
3) has been completed for the site. It is identified within the LVIA that views are
available from Kingshill Lane public footpath BPR4 within the site, public
footpath BPR6 to the east of the site residents of Kingshill Meadow
development, users of the Kingshill Meadow Country Park, road users using the
A4179 road, Preston Conservation Area and from the sports fields to the north.

1041.2 It is identified within the LVIA that the most notable views are from
footpath BPR4 which lies within the site, the significance of effects at year 1 is
identified to be moderate adverse and after the establishment of mitigation
planting (10 year period) the significance would lessen to moderate / slight
adverse. Moderate adverse effects are also identified from residents of
properties in Kingshill Meadow and Kingshill Meadow Country Park, it is noted
that this would lessen to slight adverse at year 10. Slight adverse effects are
identified from users of Kingshill Lane, the A419 and users of the sports stadium,
it is identified that this would lessen to not significant at year 10. The
significance from all other visual receptors is identified to be not significant at
year 1, this includes views from Preston Conservation Area and public footpaths
to the east the LVIA states that 'in views from the south, east and west the
development would be seen in the context of the existing settlement edge
which already creates the skyline to the immediate west of the study site'
Overall the LVIA identifies that the significance of visual effects would be
moderate adverse at year 1 and moderate/slight adverse once planting of new
green infrastructure has been established.

1041.3 Igenerally agree with the visual assessment above, however I consider
that views from the south and east have been downplayed. The site provides
visual separation between the built edge of Cirencester and Preston and this is
apparent from the footpaths to the east and the A419. Furthermore, this
assessment is reliant on a robust landscape mitigation scheme and I have
concerns regarding the housing density proposed and the strength of the green

Page 51



10.42

10.43

infrastructure provided across the site. This is in relation to the width of green
buffers proposed and I also question whether the street trees shown can be
successfully accommodated within the street scene, this relates mainly to
highways maintenance and proximity of dwellings.’

In conclusion, the Landscape Officer went on to state:

1042.71 'The supporting LVIA concludes that 'the overall impacts arising from
the development to the landscape and visual amenity will be a not significant
effect’ It is noted that the site is influenced by urbanising features including
pylons, the existing settlement edge and the road network. In additional it is
noted that the features within the site are not locally scarce. Overall, it is
concluded that the development can be successfully accommodated and would
be appropriate to the setting and landscape character of the site and provides
acceptable levels of landscape mitigation.

1042.2 Ihave reviewed all the supporting material and I consider that the site

contributes positively to the rural setting of the town and provides an important
green buffer between Cirencester and Preston. The proposed development
would form a large urban extension into the countryside and would be visible,

prominent and seen against the skyline when viewed from a number of
viewpoints. While landscaping would offer some mitigation, planting would
take time to establish and I do not consider that the planting margins proposed
would provide sufficient mitigation to overcome my principle concerns. While I
accept that the layout is illustrative at this stage this should provide reassurance
that a development of this scale can be suitably accommodated.’

The concerns raised by the Landscape Officer during the course of the previous
application about the potential landscape and visual impact of the scheme are
still considered to be pertinent to this current application. In response to these
comments, and following discussions with Officers, the applicant has submitted
a broad illustrative masterplan which sets out areas of potential future housing
development and areas that can be set aside for landscape buffer zones and
open space. The submitted plan indicates that a reasonable level of green
infrastructure can be introduced across the site. Such infrastructure would help
to mitigate the landscape and visual impact of the development to a certain
extent. In order to provide further re-assurance that a future reserved matters
application would adhere to the principles set out in the illustrative masterplan,
a condition is proposed that will require the submission of a detailed
masterplan prior to the submission of a reserved matters application. The
aforementioned masterplan can set out parameters for the arrangements of
streets, building heights and densities, landscape buffer zones, public open

Page 52



10.44

10.45

space etc, which would then form the basis for detailed plans to be submitted
at the reserved matters stage should Outline permission be granted.

It is noted that the existing site is seen against a backdrop of residential
development when viewed from Kingshill Lane to the east and the A419 to the
south. The site is therefore seen in context with existing urban development
rather than as a distinct parcel of land unrelated to existing residential
development. A number of electricity pylons and overhead lines also extend
along the western edge of the application site. The aforementioned features
also have an impact on the landscape and visual quality of the existing site. As
a consequence, it is considered that the introduction of residential development
onto the site would not represent a form of development that would appear as
an incongruous feature within the landscape. Notwithstanding this, it is still
acknowledged that the development of the site will result in a discernible
encroachment of built development into the open countryside and would
therefore impact on its prevailing character and appearance, even if mitigation
landscaping can be secured. However, in contrast to the previous application
when there was no overriding need to release the land for development, there
is now a strong need to release suitable land for new housing. The need to
deliver additional housing is therefore a significant material consideration that
weighs in favour of the proposed scheme and which is considered to outweigh
the landscape and visual impact arising from the release of the land for housing.

With regard to the impact of the proposal on the village of Preston and the
potential coalescence of the aforementioned settlement with Cirencester, it is
noted that Kingshill Lane lies between the site and Preston. In addition, a belt
of woodland extends alongside much of the eastern side of the aforementioned
road. At present, there is strong definable boundary between the site and the
eastern side of the road where the village is located. Views of the site from the
northern, central and eastern parts of the village are largely screened by existing
woodland, with the result that the village will continue to retain a separate
identity when viewed from these locations. Views are available of the site from
the western edge of the village, however, these place the site against a backdrop
of existing residential development forming the eastern edge of Cirencester.
The creation of the open space proposed at the southern end of the application
site would ensure that a degree of separation would be retained between the
proposed development and the village of Preston. Whilst it is considered that
the proposal would result in a closure of the gap between Preston and
Cirencester, it is considered that a reasonable degree of space will continue to
exist between the 2 settlements thereby ensuring that the rural identity of
Preston can be retained.

Page 53



10.46

10.47

(d)

10.48

10.49

In principle, it is considered that the site is of sufficient size to accommodate
appropriate levels of green infrastructure and open space, whilst also delivering
up to 280 dwellings.

At the time of the determination of the previous application in 2023, the Council
could demonstrate a robust 5 year supply of housing land. As a consequence,
there was no overriding need to release greenfield sites outside development
boundaries for residential development. The landscape and visual harm arising
from the development was considered to outweigh the need to deliver
additional housing. However, following the changes made to the NPPF in
December 2024, the Council now has to more than double the number of
dwellings it delivers per annum. As a result, far greater weight now has to be
given to the delivery of new housing than existed prior to the aforementioned
date. Whilst it is considered that the current proposal would still have an impact
on the character and appearance of the area, it is also considered that this
impact is outweighed by the need to deliver a significant increase in housing
numbers, of which 40% are affordable units. Moreover, as the site is not located
within the Cotswolds National Landscape nor a Special Landscape Area, it is not
afforded the same level of protection as if it were a designated or valued
landscape. In light of the fact that the proposal would make a significant
contribution to the Council's housing supply and that the scheme can be
delivered in a manner that would ensure that a degree of separation would be
retained between the settlements of Cirencester and Preston, it is considered
that the benefits of the proposal outweigh the landscape and visual impacts
arising from the proposed development.

Impact on the Setting of Heritage Assets

The application site is located approximately 320m to the west of Preston
Conservation Area. The nearest listed buildings to the site are the Grade II listed
Forty Farmhouse and the barn to its north, which are located approximately
110m and 90m respectively to the south of the application site. The Grade II*
Church of All Saints in Preston is located approximately 390m to the east of the
proposed development. The Grade II listed Church Farmhouse and Preston
Place are located adjacent to the aforementioned church.

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that when considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the Local Planning
Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it

Page 54



10.50

10.51

10.52

possesses. Considerable weight and importance must be given to the
aforementioned legislation.

The following policies and guidance are considered applicable to this
application:

Local Plan Policy EN10 Designated Heritage Assets

7 In considering proposals that affect a designated heritage asset or its
setting, great weight will be given to the asset’s conservation. The more
important the asset, the greater the weight should be.

2 Development proposals that sustain and enhance the character,
appearance and significance of designated heritage assets (and their
settings), and that put them to viable uses, consistent with their
conservation, will be permitted.

3 Proposals that would lead to harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset or its setting will not be permitted, unless a clear and
convincing justification of public benefit can be demonstrated to
outweigh that harm. Any such assessment will take account, in the
balance of material considerations:

e The importance of the asset:
e The scale of harm; and
e The nature and level of the public benefit of the proposal.’

Local Plan Policy EN11 Designated Heritage Assets - Conservation Areas

‘Development proposals, including demolition, that would affect Conservation
Areas and their settings, will be permitted provided they:

a. Preserve and where appropriate enhance the special character and
appearance of the Conservation Area in terms of siting, scale, form, proportion,
design, materials and the retention of positive features;

b. Include hard and soft landscape proposals, where appropriate, that respect
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area;

c. Will not result in the loss of open spaces, including garden areas and village

greens, which make a valuable contribution to the character and/or appearance,
andyor allow important views into or out of the Conservation Area.

Page 55



10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

d. Have regard to the relevant Conservation Area appraisal (where available),
and

e. do not include internally illuminated advertisement signage unless the
signage does not have an adverse impact on the Conservation Area or its
setting.’

Paragraph 210 of the NPPF states '/n determining planning applications, local
planning authorities should take account of:

a) The desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage
assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;,

b) The positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make
to sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

c) The desirability of new development making a positive contribution to
local character and dlistinctiveness.’

Paragraph 212 states 'when considering the impact of a proposed development
on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given
to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the
weilght should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts
to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.’

Paragraph 213 states ‘any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within
its setting) should require clear and convincing justification.’

Paragraph 215 states that ‘where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including
securing its optimum viable use.’

With regard to the historic environment, the SHELAA states:
" Historic Environment (excluding archaeology) These comments are made on
the basis of a desktop and site survey conducted by a Principal Planning Policy

Officer. A full historic environment or heritage assessment would be required
of any development proposal. The 350 dwelling planning application on C80

Page 56



10.58

10.59

included a response from the Council's Conservation Officer. The issues
identified are relevant to both sites and included:

e Preservation of the character of Kingshill Lane, which is a predominantly
rural road. The development will encroach on the boundary of the lane and
will potentially suburbanise the character of this part of the lane, which
would be an adverse impact.

e Forty Farm is located to the south-east of the site. There are two Grade II
Listed buildings associated with the farmstead, the Farmhouse and the
threshing barn. Other structures within the site may be considered curtilage
listed. The proposal was considered to cause harm to the significance of the
listed building and its setting.

e Setting of Preston Village, Conservation Area and associated listed buildings
to the east - Preston village is located to the south-east of the site. The
historic core of the village contains several buildings that are Grade I and I
listed including All Saints Church. The core of the village is also located
within a Conservation Area. The response identified that the proposal for
375 houses would not provide capacity to introduce appropriate buffers and
tree screening from the southern and eastern boundaries in order to protect
the setting of listed buildings including the setting of Forty Farm and also
the Preston Conservation Area. Nor did the proposal appear to provide
capacity for suitable public amenity space. This would need to be addressed
if the site were allocated in the Local Plan.

e The development of either site would be a significant eastwards extension
of Cirencester and would lose agricultural land. Both sites have 'High /
medium' landscape sensitivity, primarily because of their open nature and
their prominent position, which is highly visible to users of the A4719(T) to
the south. The development would also cause a level of harm to the historic
environment. However, there are also opportunities for enhancements that
the development could bring.’

The open agricultural character of the existing site contributes to the rural
setting of the listed buildings to its south and the village of Preston to its east.
The SHELAA identifies that the proposed eastwards extension of Cirencester
could result in harm to the historic environment.

In response to the current application, the Council's Heritage and Design Officer
has advised the following:

Page 57



Forty Farm.

10.59.1 Forty Farm, which includes a grade II listed farmhouse, and a grade II
listed barn, lies at the southern edge of this north-south buffer/green corridor,
Just to the south of the current application site. The farmhouse itself lies to the
south, and is orientated primarily south, with a range of farm buildings to the
north, including both the listed barn, and other modern agricultural buildings;
the whole complex forming a visually distinct and coherent farmstead.

10.59.2 Although the farmhouse itself is well screened, this farmstead group
as a coherent whole is readily visible and appreciable from Kingshill Lane, from
where the rising ground of the application site forms an appropriate, open,
agricultural backdrop. As such, the application site forms part of the setting of
the farmstead, in so far as it forms part of the surroundings within which it is
experienced.

10.59.3  Whilst much of the significance of the listed buildings relates to their
intrinsic fabric and architectural form, their fundamental character, specifically
as a farmhouse and a barn, does have wider associations and implications, as
farmhouses and agricultural buildings, have a direct interrelationship with the
wider, working agricultural landscape, which can complement and reinforce the
buildings' historic character, thereby not just forming an aesthetically attractive
backdrop, but actively making a positive contribution to their significance. This
contribution would be enhanced by the historical functional relationship
between the Forty Farm and the site, which is considered probable by the
submitted heritage statement. Historic England’s Setting of Heritage Assets
identifies that features such as topography, green space, openness, functional
relations, landscape character, tranquillity, sense of seclusion and land use can
all contribute positively to significance.

10.59.4 Paragraph 9 specifically advises that: 'Settings of heritage assets which
closely resemble the setting at the time the asset was constructed or formed
are likely to contribute particularly strongly to significance’. The application site
certainly appears little altered since the first edition O.S. map. No tithe map or
enclosure map appears to be readily available and whilst enclosure may have
affected the method of agriculture, the fundamental agricultural character of
the site is likely to be little altered.

10.59.5 The wider setting of Forty Farm has undergone change with the
development of Kingsway to the east and the dual-carriageway A417 to the
south in the latter-20th century, the aforementioned development to the north-
west in the early-21st century. However, the visual impact of the former two is

Page 58



comparatively limited due to their position, and the modest scale and height of
the development. The 21st century development is at some distance from Forty
Farm, it does not form a backdrop to it and where the two are visible, open
land between them forms a clear buffer. It is acknowledged that these previous
developments have already encroached on, and eroded the rural setting of
Forty Farm, but the surviving agricultural land and backdrop to the north still
retains this historic physical and visual relationship between the agricultural
farmstead, and the working agricultural landscape thereby sustaining and
reinforcing the significance of the listed buildings within the farmstead.

10.59.6 A further development of relevance is the permitted, but not yet
implemented redevelopment of the modern agricultural buildings to the north
of Forty Farm. The proposal would see the modern buildings, set well back from
Kingshill Lane, replaced with three contemporary, barnstyle dwellings, and the
Dutch barn that runs parallel to the listed barn replaced with a linear, shelter-
shed style parking barn. This scheme would not erode the visual
interrelationship between the farmstead and the agricultural fields behind, as
they replace existing buildings. The dwellings are set back so would not impede
in the key views from Kingshill Lane, and the proposed parking barn is lower
than the existing Dutch barn.

10.59.7 The current proposal, whilst retaining a modest, rather urban, park-like

space immediately to the rear of the farmstead, would entail the suburban
development of the agricultural, sloping backdrop, severing the last remaining
link between the farmstead and the agricultural landscape that was its historical
raison d'étre; from Kingshill Lane the farmstead would be seen not against a
sloping agricultural field, but against a cascade of modern roofs and housing,
street-lighting, vehicular movements, and suburban bustle and spraw/
generally. This fundamental transformation of the historically and functionally
appropriate surviving rural backdrop would harm aspects of the setting that
contribute positively to the listed buildings’ significance, which would thereby
not be sustained. The harm would be less-than-substantial, but would be
considerable.

Preston conservation area and listed buildings.

All Saints' Church.

10.59.8 The historic settlement of Preston is centred on All Saints' Church
(grade II*), Church Farm (grade II) and Preston Place (grade II). The listed

buildings are at some distance from the application site. The church itself is
substantially screened from views to the west by the existing buildings of

Page 59



10.60

Church Farm. Whilst some glimpses of any development upon the application
site may be possible, there would be little impact upon any aspects of the
setting that contribute positively to the church's significance.

Church Farm.

10.59.9 The farmstead of Church Farm lies to the west of the historic core, and
would potentially have some views towards the application site. These views are
currently somewhat limited by the coniferous screening belt that currently runs
along the eastern side of Kingshill Lane. However, this screening belt is not
within the application site, and its long-term existence cannot be assured; and
indeed, the very character of a coniferous belt of trees is itself, contrary to the
traditional character of the Cotswolds. The weight that can be placed on the
screening provided by this potentially ephemeral and itself incongruous
screening belt is limited.

10.59.10 As with Forty Farm, the rural agricultural context of Church Farm does
make a positive contribution towards its significance, and the further
encroachment of suburban sprawl! towards the farmstead would erode this
significance; however, due to the greater distance the impact would be
proportionally smaller, being at the lower end of less-than-substantial.

Preston Conservation Area.

10.59.17 The significance of the Preston Conservation Area rests in part in the
character and history of Preston as a small, rural, distinct settlement. As such,
both its rural, agricultural setting, and its separation from nearby Cirencester,
are aspects of the conservation area’s character and setting that contribution
positively to this significance.

10.59.12 The proposed development, both by the further encroachment of
suburban development towards the rural settlement, and the halving in width
of the green buffer/corridor that separates the two settlements, would
harmfully erode aspects of Preston's distinct character and setting that
contribute positively towards its significance. The level of harm would be less-
than substantial, but would be moderate.’

It is evident that the Heritage and Design Officer has concerns about the
proposal with regard to its impact on designated heritage assets. With regard
to statutory consultees, Historic England has not responded to this application.
However, it advised the following in relation to the application previously
submitted in 2023: ' Historic England provides advice when our engagement

Page 60



10.61

10.62

10.63

can add most value. In this case we are not offering advice. This should not be
interpreted as comment on the metrits of the application.’

The current proposal would result in the encroachment of development into
the agricultural landscape that currently contributes to the historic and rural
setting of the listed buildings at Forty Farm to the south of the application site.
The existing fields reinforce the rural identity of the farmstead and are therefore
considered to contribute to its significance. The applicant's Heritage Note
submitted with this application also acknowledges that the proposed
development would have an impact on the setting of the aforementioned listed
buildings. It states that the harm arising from the development would be ‘very
minor, less than substantial harm, at the lowermost end of this spectrum of
harm."In light of the comments of both the Heritage and Design Officer and
the applicant, it is considered that the proposed development would cause less
than substantial harm to the setting of the listed buildings at Forty Farm.

With regard to the impact of the proposal on the setting of Preston
Conservation Area, the Grade II* All Saints' Church and the Grade II listed Church
Farm) and Preston Place, it is noted that the aforementioned heritage assets are
located 300m-400m to the east of the application site. Kingshill Lane, a
woodland and a line of trees (planted in a plantation style) provide a buffer
between the site and the conservation area and listed buildings. A range of
fields are also located between the heritage assets and the land/roadside
planting. The degree of intervisibility between the application site and the
heritage assets is severely limited by existing vegetation. The rural space lying
immediately around the conservation area and listed buildings would therefore
largely remain unaltered should this development proceed. However, it is noted
that the loss of the roadside trees in the future would open up views of the
application site. In such circumstances, the residential development of the site
would have a far greater impact on the setting of the heritage assets within the
village than would be the case if the field remained in agricultural use. The
applicant's Heritage Note considers that the proposal will not cause harm to
the heritage assets in Preston. However, Officers consider that it is necessary to
have regard to a situation where the roadside trees are felled/removed as part
of woodland management practises or bad weather. If this were to be the case,
it is considered that the proposal could cause less than substantial harm to the
setting of the heritage assets in the village.

On the grounds that the proposal is considered to cause less than substantial
harm to a number of heritage assets, it is necessary to have regard to paragraph
215 of the NPPF which requires harm to weighed against the public benefits of
the proposal. In the case of this application it is noted that the proposed

Page 61



10.64

(c)

10.65

10.66

development would deliver 280 dwellings (including 112 affordable dwellings).
The delivery of the housing is necessary to meet house building requirements
set out by central government. The current proposal would therefore make a
sizeable contribution to the Council's housing supply. As a consequence, it is
considered that significant weight must be given to the need to deliver
additional housing within the District. In addition, the delivery of an additional
280 dwellings would contribute to the local economy both during the
construction phase of the development and by virtue of potential expenditure
arising from future residents of the scheme. It is therefore considered that the
proposed development would generate significant public benefits. In addition,
sympathetic layout, design and landscaping could mitigate some of the less
than substantial harm that has been identified. For instance, a degree of open
space would be retained between the Forty Farm site and the built area of the
proposed development. In addition, residential development is taking place on
the Forty Farm site which has implications for the historic character of the
existing farmyard. Whilst considerable importance and weight must be given to
the protection of heritage assets, it is considered that the public benefits arising
from the proposal, most notably the delivery of a significant amount of new
housing (including affordable housing), would outweigh the less than
substantial harm arising from the proposed development in this instance.

Whilst there may be instances where harm to heritage assets can provide strong
grounds to refuse an application, even when there is a deficit in the housing
land supply, it is considered that the public benefits in this case outweigh the
less than substantial harm that has been identified.

Accessibility and Highway Safety

The following Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plan policies are considered
applicable to this proposal:

Local Plan Policy INF3: Sustainable Transport

Development will be permitted that assists the delivery of the objectives of the
Local Transport Plan and in particular:

a. Actively supports travel choice through provision, enhancement and
promotion of safe and recognisable connections to existing walking,
cycling and public transport networks (including, where appropriate, the
rail network);

Page 62



10.67

h.

Gives priority to pedestrians and cyclists and provides access to public
transport facilities taking account of the travel and transport needs of all
people;

Does not have a detrimental effect on the environment by reason of
unacceptable levels of noise, vibration or atmospheric pollution,

Ensures links with green infrastructure including Public Rights of Way
and, where feasible, wider cycle networks;

Makes a positive contribution, where appropriate, to the restoration of
former railway lines by retaining existing embankments, cuttings,

bridges and related features;

Incorporates, where feasible, facilities for secure bicycle parking and for
charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles

Accommodate, where appropriate, the efficient delivery of goods and
supplies; and

Considers the needs of people with disabilities by all modes of travel.

Local Plan Policy INF4 Highway Safety

Development will be permitted that:

Is well integrated with the existing transport network within and
beyond the development itself, avoiding severance of communities as a
result of measures to accommodate increased levels of traffic on the
highway network;

creates safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic
and cyclists or pedestrians, avoids street clutter and where appropriate
establishes home zones;

Provides safe and suitable access and includes designs, where
appropriate, that incorporate low speeds;

Avoids locations where the cumulative impact on congestion or other

undesirable impact on the transport network is likely to remain severe
following mitigation; and

Page 63



10.68

10.69

10.70

e Has regard , where appropriate to the Manual for Gloucestershire
Streets or any guidance produced by the Local Highway Authority that
may supersede it.

Neighbourhood Plan Policy 7: Transport and Village Amenity

Where appropriate, development proposals that are likely to lead to an increase
in motorised traffic in the parish, particularly at the Toll Bar junction, on Kingshill
Lane and on the village high street, will be encouraged to mitigate impacts to
maintain or improve upon the 2018 baseline with regard to:

a. Traffic speed’s;
b. Noise and vibration;
C Conflict with other road users and feelings of safety.

In terms of national guidance, Paragraph 116 of the NPPF states 'Development
should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on
the road network, following mitigation, would be severe, taking into account all
reasonable future scenarios.’

Paragraph 117 states that 'Within this context applications for development
should:

a) give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the
scheme and with neighbouring areas; and second - so far as possible -
to facilitating access to high quality public transport with layouts that
maximise the catchment area for bus or other public transport services,
and appropriate facilities that encourage public transport use;

b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in
relation to all modes of transport

c) create places that are safe, secure and attractive - which minimise the
scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid
unnecessary street clutter, and respond to local character and design
standards;

d) allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and
emergency vehicles; and

Page 64



10.71

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

e be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission
vehicles in safe, accessible and convenient locations.’

The proposed development would be served by a new vehicular entrance onto
Kingshill Lane to the east. This would in turn result in additional movements
onto the A419 to the south and the A417 to the north. The proposal therefore
has the potential to impact on the operation of the local highway network.
Pedestrian and cycle access would also be available through the existing
housing development to the west. The proposed scheme also seeks to create a
new pedestrian footway linking the site to the village of Preston to the south-
east. A pedestrian/cycle link is also proposed from the northern boundary of
the application site to the primary and secondary schools to the north.

Public Right of Way BPR4 extends in an east-west direction through the
application site. It lies just to the north of the central part of the site. The
aforementioned route would be retained and upgraded to serve additional
pedestrian flows. The existing route of the Public Right of Way would ultimately
need to be crossed by the principal estate road serving the proposed
development.

This application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment (TA) and Travel Plan
(TP). The TA includes speed survey information relating to traffic movements on
Kingshill Lane. The aforementioned road has a 60mph speed limit where it
passes the proposed site entrance. The 85th percentile road speeds for
northbound and southbound traffic are recorded as 51.5mph and 53.2mph
respectively. Vehicle speeds therefore fall below the established speed limit for
the road. The submitted information demonstrates that the requisite visibility
of 160m in both directions can be achieved from the proposed site entrance.

With regards to trip rates, the TA states that the proposed development would
generate 39 arrivals and 97 departures during the AM Peak (08:00-09:00) and
98 arrivals and 60 departures during the PM Peak (17:00-18:00).

With regard to traffic flows, the applicant has undertaken an assessment of the
capacity of the following junctions:

e Kingshill Lane Access Junction;

e Junction 1 - A419 Swindon Road/Kingshill Lane;

e Junction 2 - A417 London Road/Kingshill Lane;

e Junction 3 - A419 Swindon Road/Cirencester Road/Siddington Park
Roundabout;

Page 65



10.76

10.77

10.78

e Junction 4 - Kingshill Lane/Preston;

e Junction 5 - A417 London Road/A429 Burford Road;

e Junction 6 - A429 Swindon Road/London Road/Grove Lane roundabout;
and

e Junction 7 - A419 Swindon Road/Bristol Road/Middlemead roundabout

The TA has assessed the impact of traffic flows on the junctions set out above.
It has also taken into account potential traffic movements arising from the
approved development for 2,350 dwellings, 9.1 hectares of employment, a
primary school and a neighbourhood centre on the land at Chesterton Farm
(The Steadings) which was granted permission in 2019 under reference
16/00054/0UT. With regard to junction capacity, the TA has adopted the
following approach:

The impact of development traffic and need for mitigation has been based upon
the following:

e Does the impact of the development traffic result in the Degree of
Saturation (DoS) exceeding the standard threshold of 0.85 ratio of flow to
capacity (RFC) at priority and/or roundabout junctions and 90% at signal
Junctions, and if so to what extent: and

o [fthe RFC or DoS threshold is exceeded, does the development make the
situation significantly worse and the impact can be considered to be severe.

The TA indicates that the majority of the above junctions would continue to
operate within capacity, or in instances where capacity is already exceeded
(such as Junction 7 in the PM Peak period), the resulting increase in traffic would
have a negligible impact on traffic flows ( eg an increase in queue length of 1.3
vehicles in the case of Junction 7). The only junction that is predicted to be
subject to a material change is Junction 1 to the south of the application site
where the RFC would increase from 0.89 in the AM Peak period to 1.04, or a
queue increase from 5.9 to 184 vehicles. The TA indicates that existing
vegetation limits visibility at the junction which can hamper traffic flows. The
clearance of vegetation could change the RFC to 0.91 in the AM Peak period
which would equate to a queue of 7 vehicles or an increase of 1.1 vehicles when
compared to the current situation.

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Highways is currently in discussions with

the applicant and a formal response to this application has yet to be received.
However, it is expected to be available in time for the Committee meeting.

Page 66



10.79

10.80

10.81

With regard to the accessibility of the site by modes other than the private
motor car, it is noted that the application site joins onto existing residential
development to the west which provides connectivity for pedestrians and
cyclists to Cirencester town centre and an existing bus stop. With regard to bus
stops in general, the nearest stops can be found at Mulberry Court within
Kingshill Meadow to the west and at Preston Toll Bar to the south. The bus stops
are located approximately 500m and 600m from the centre of the application
site respectively. No bus stops are proposed within or adjacent to the
application site. The introduction of a new pedestrian footway alongside
Kingshill Lane to Preston to the south-east would, however, provide a dedicated
pedestrian route from the site to the bus stop at Preston Toll Bar.

In more general terms, the application site is located adjacent to the Principal
Settlement of Cirencester, which is the largest and most sustainable settlement
in the District in terms of the availability of services and facilities on offer within
the settlement. The town offers a range of retail, employment, educational,
leisure and healthcare facilities. In addition, a range of bus services operate to
and from the town. With regard to the location of the site in relation to existing
services and facilities, the site is located approximately 30m minutes from the
town centre in terms of walking time. Employment development, such as that
at Love Lane, is a similar distance from the site. Healthcare facilities, leisure and
college/university facilities are more distant. However, the nearest primary and
secondary schools to the site are Watermoor Church of England Primary School
and Cirencester Kingshill Secondary School. The aforementioned schools are
located approximately 480m and 650m respectively from the northern
boundary of the application site. However, in order to access the schools from
the site it is necessary to walk/cycle through the housing development to the
west, which equates to a distance of approximately 1.45km to 1.8km. In
addition to the aforementioned facilities, Cirencester Arena and Cirencester
Town Football Club are located to the north of the application site (between the
schools and the application site). Kingshill Meadow Country Park is also located
adjacent to the south-western edge of the application site.

With regard to walking distances, the TA refers to the Institute of Highways and
Transportation (IHT) 'Guidelines for providing for Journeys on Foot' (2000) in
relation to acceptable walking distances to services and facilities'. It sets out a
preferred maximum walking distance of 800m to town centres, 2000m to
schools and 1200m to other locations. Officers note that the site falls beyond
the aforementioned distances in relation to the town centre and a number of
other facilities such as the hospital, colleges or employment estates. Active
Travel England (ATE) has raised concerns about the accessibility of the site to a
range of services and facilities by pedestrians and cyclists. ATE is the

Page 67



10.82

government's ‘executive agency responsible for making walking, wheeling and
cycling the preferred choice for everyone to get around in England’. 1t is a
statutory consultee in relation to applications for developments in excess of 150
dwellings. ATE states:

10.81.1 'ATE retains its recommendation that the application is refused in the
absence of a contribution towards improving accessibility to the west of the
site, between the development and the town centre in accordance with the
recommendations of Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)'s Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP).

10.81.2 Consequently, this risks the potential for car-based living amongst the
new population while the proposals remain unable to demonstrate that the site
will be readily accessible to a range of local facilities (other than local schools)
by attractive, safe and inclusive walking, wheeling and cycling routes, while
public transport opportunities continue to be limited.

10.81.3 As a result of the paucity of direct safe and attractive linkages to local
facilities that meet modern standards, which is evidenced by the resultant low
mode share forecast for walking, cycling and public transport and the lack of
ambitious targets for modal shift or robust Travel Plan monitoring and failsafe
measures, ATE is unable to support the application proposals in their current
state. '

The comments of ATE are noted. It is also noted that the distance of the site
from a number of services and facilities means that future occupants of the
proposed development would need to walk in excess of the preferred maximum
walking distance set out previously. Notwithstanding this, the town of
Cirencester is constrained by a number of factors, such as heritage, landscape,
flood and archaeological constraints. The availability of suitable sites around
the town is therefore limited, especially in light of the fact that land to the south-
west of the town already has permission for residential development. Moreover,
the current site provides footpath connections with the existing footway
network to the west thereby providing a safe route for pedestrians to the town
centre and other facilities within the town. Bus stops are also within reasonable
walking distance of the site. In addition, the current proposal seeks to provide
footpath/cycle connections to the schools to the north of the application site
and an improved footway connection with the village of Preston. It is therefore
considered that the location of the site combined with the proposed
infrastructure improvements would ensure that the proposed development
would have a reasonable degree of pedestrian and cycle connectivity with the
rest of the town. In light of the Government's desire to significantly increase the

Page 68



(f)

10.83

10.84

10.85

10.86

amount of new housing that is delivered across the District, it is inevitable that
compromises will need to be made when considering the accessibility of new
sites for development. This is considered to be of particular relevance to rural
settlements where the availability of public transport services and facilities in
general tend be more limited than larger urban conurbations. In this instance,
it is considered that the site does offer reasonable connectivity to services and
facilities for non-car users and that the proposal accords with Local Plan Policy
INF3, Neighbourhood Plan Policy 7 and Section 9 of the NPPF in these respects.

Flooding and Drainage

The application site is located within Flood Zone 1, which is the lowest
designation of flood zone and one in which new residential development can
be acceptable in principle. This application is accompanied by a Flood Risk
Assessment and Drainage Strategy report which states that the proposed
development would incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). On-site
infiltration is the preferred means of surface water drainage, with water directed
to an infiltration basin in the southern part of the site. It is also possible to
discharge water at a controlled rate into an ordinary watercourse that crosses
the southern part of the site.

Gloucestershire County Council Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) in its role as
a statutory consultee has assessed the submitted information and raises no
objection in relation to surface water drainage matters. The applicant has
provided additional drainage information during the course of the application
to address initial comments from the LLFA relating to infiltration and potential
flow routes. The Preliminary at Source Infiltration Assessment document
outlines how infiltration features could be incorporated into the design of the
development and demonstrates that there will be sufficient space on site to do
so.

With regard to foul drainage and water supply, Thames Water states 'Thames
Water recognises this catchment is subject to high infiltration flows during
certain groundwater conditions. The scale of the proposed development
doesn't materially affect the sewer network and as such we have no objection,
however care needs to be taken when designing new networks to ensure they
don't surcharge and cause flooding. In the longer term Thames Water, along
with other partners, are working on a strategy to reduce groundwater entering
the sewer networks.’

With regard to foul water, Thames Water states that it has identified ‘an inability
of the existing foul water network infrastructure to accommodate the needs of

Page 69



10.87

(9)

10.88

10.89

this development proposal.’ 1t therefore recommends the attachment of a
condition requiring ' 7. All foul water network upgrades required to
accommodate the additional flows from the development have been
completed; or- 2. A development and infrastructure phasing plan has been
agreed with the Local Authority in consultation with Thames Water to allow
development to be occupied. Where a development and infrastructure phasing
plan is agreed, no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the
agreed development and infrastructure phasing plan.’ Thames Water has also
requested a condition requiring ' all water network upgrades required to
accommodate the additional demand to serve the development have been
completed; or - a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed
with Thames Water to allow development to be occupied. Where a
development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take
place other than in accordance with the agreed development and infrastructure
phasing plan.’

It is considered that the proposed development can be undertaken without
having an adverse impact on foul or surface water drainage and in accordance
with the requirements of Local Plan Policy EN14 and guidance in Section 14 of
the NPPF.

Biodiversity

This application is accompanied by an Ecological Assessment and a Biodiversity
Net Gain report. The site primarily consists of large open arable fields bordered
by hedgerows. The field is considered to be of low ecological value. However,
the hedgerows are considered to be of a high ecological value with a number
also qualifying as important hedgerows under the Hedgerow Regulations 1997.
It is proposed to retain the existing hedgerows in and around the site, although
there will be a need to cut through the hedgerow on the eastern site boundary
and through the central hedgerow in order to facilitate access to and through
the site in the future.

The submitted ecological report has included a number of species surveys,
including reptiles, bats, otter, water vole, great crested newt and badger
surveys. The report summary states:

7.6 ‘No evidence of reptiles, Otter or Water Vole was recorded during the

surveys undertaken. Specific eDNA surveys of ponds within 250m of the site
recorded no evidence of Great Crested Newts being present.

Page 70



10.90

7.7. Only low levels of bat activity were recorded associated with the hedgerows
within the site.

7.8. A potential outlier/subsidiary Badger sett was observed on site during the
updated surveys in 2024. Monitoring requirements have been outlined, and a
mitigation licence regarding this protected species may need to be obtained
from Natural England prior to the commencement of works.

7.9. A suite of breeding bird surveys carried out in 2024 recorded a total of 34
bird species which categorised the site to be of Local importance. Within the
assemblage recorded, low numbers of five bird species of conservation concern
were recorded to probably be breeding on site. Precautionary measures have
been outlined in regard to the nesting bird season during the site clearance /
construction phase, and habitat enhancements have been recommended to
provide enhanced opportunities for birds post-development.

7.10. The planting of new native trees and hedgerows and the creation of new
areas of open space, including areas of wildflower grassland and a new SuDs
feature, will diversify habitats present and provide enhanced and new foraging
opportunities for Badgers, foraging and navigational opportunities for bats, and
foraging and nesting opportunities for birds.’

The Council's Biodiversity Officer considers the reports to be acceptable and
that the proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on any of the
aforementioned species. However, further information was requested during
the course of the application in relation to ground nesting birds and badgers.
In relation to former, the Council's Biodiversity Officer states:

10.90.1 'Additional information submitted to address ground-nesting birds,
important hedgerows and badger is considered sufficient. No additional survey
work is required at this stage however, a construction ecological management
plan condition, informed by an up-to-date ecological impact assessment should
be imposed, ensuring protected and priority species are safequarded during the
construction phase of the development.

Lighting

10.90.2 Hedgerows are of greatest ecological value within the context of the
site, with all hedgerows except for H4 considered to be species-rich and
hedgerows HZ2, H7 and H9 potentially qualifying as ‘important’ under the
Hedgerow Regulations 1997. In addition, most of the bat activity recorded was
associated with these features, particularly H1, H7 and HSY, whilst H3 was

Page 71



10.91

10.92

10.93

10.94

10.95

identified as a key commuter route for badger. Consequently, a lighting
condition should be imposed to ensure all external lighting is sensitively
designed to minimise light spill towards these features.

Skylark mitigation strategy

10.90.3 Whilst the inclusion of skylark plots in the scheme is welcomed, the
presence of a multi-use games area adjacent to the proposed plots will permit
disturbance and prevent skylark from utilising this habitat. Therefore, I would
aavise that the MUGA is moved away from the proposed plots or alternatively,
suitable off-site provision for skylark should be secured. A condition to secure
an appropriate skylark mitigation strategy should be imposed to ensure the
development delivers suitable compensatory nesting habitat for ground-
nesting birds.’

With regard to badgers, the applicant has undertaken additional survey work
which indicates that the sett is no longer in use, although there is evidence of
badgers utilising the site. The existing sett forms part of an existing hedgerow
which is to be retained. The protection of the existing badgers will be covered
by the proposed construction ecological management plan condition.

The latest illustrative plan submitted by the applicant also shows increased
buffer zones around hedgerows, especially around the central hedgerow, which
will mitigate the impact of the development on existing wildlife corridors.

With regard to Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG), the Biodiversity Officer states:
Biodiversity net gain

The pre-development biodiversity values are considered accurate, the
biodiversity metric demonstrates a net gain in both habitat (17.97%) and
hedgerow (13.29%) units is achievable on-site. Due to the size of the scheme a
5106 agreement is required to secure monitoring fees.’

It is considered that the proposed development can reasonably meet the
minimum 10% biodiversity enhancement required by BNG legislation.

The application site is located within the Zone of Influence of the North
Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation (SAC). The SAC is an
internationally important biodiversity site. Over recent years, recreational
pressures from visitors to the site have increased and are now causing
considerable damage to the wildlife value of the SAC. Visitor surveys have been

Page 72



10.96

10.97

undertaken at the SAC and this has shown that the majority of visitors come
from within 9.4km of the SAC. Under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended) and other relevant legislation and guidance,
Local Planning Authorities have to assess whether any development proposal
could harm the biodiversity value of an SAC. This works on the precautionary
principle. In order to permit any proposals there has to be certainty that the
proposals will not cause any significant likely effects (i.e. negative impacts) on
that SAC either on their own or in combination with other proposals. As the
proposed development falls within Zone of Influence and will provide additional
living accommodation, there is potential for the proposal to lead to more
visitors to, and thus more recreation pressures on the SAC.

The applicant has confirmed they will enter into a s.106 agreement to make a
financial contribution to deliver mitigation consistent with the North Meadow
and Clattinger Farm SAC Interim Recreation Mitigation Strategy (2023). On this
basis, and provided that the s.106 agreement is signed prior to determination
of the application, Officers have reached the conclusion, based upon the best
available scientific evidence, that there will not be an adverse effect on the SAC,
arising from the application, either alone or particularly in combination with
other projects and proposals. Therefore, Officers have no objections to this
application on the grounds of the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), insofar as this relates to adverse recreational
effects on the North Meadow SAC.

It is considered that the application accords with Local Plan Policies EN1, EN8
and EN9 of the Local Plan and paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the NPPF.

Other Matters

10.98

10.99

The application site is bordered by existing residential development, allotments,
agricultural land, a road and recreational/sports grounds. It is considered to be
a location that could be developed for residential purposes without resulting in
future occupants being subject to unacceptable levels of noise, odour, pollution
or general disturbance. It is also considered that the site is of a size that could
reasonably accommodate adequate outdoor amenity space and gardens in
accordance with the aspirations of the Cotswold Design Code.

With regard to archaeology Gloucestershire County Council Archaeology states
that 7can confirm that desk based research, geophysical survey and trial trench
evaluation have been carried out within the proposed development site which
have identified the presence of archaeological remains of interest with
settlement and field systems dating from the late prehistoric to Roman period

Page 73



and one feature of possible Anglo-Saxon date. In line with the advice by my
predecessor, I recommend that a condition is attached to planning permission
to ensure that the archaeological remains within the site are investigated via a
programme of strip, map and sample excavation prior to construction works.'
Subject to condition, it is considered that the proposed development can be
undertaken without having an adverse impact on archaeology.

10.100The Council's Environmental and Regulatory Services section raises no
objection in relation to air quality, noise or contamination.

10.101With regard to the impact of the proposal on Public Right of Way BPR4, which
extends in an east-west direction through the site, the submitted illustrative
plan indicates that the existing route would be retained, although it may be
subject to re-surfacing. In addition, the route would also need to cross a new
estate road. Whilst final details relating to layout and surfacing would be
addressed at the Reserved Matters stage should Outline permission be granted,
GCC Public Rights of Way has advised 'The developer's attention is drawn to
DEFRA Rights of Way Circular (1/09) par 7.8, In considering potential revisions
to an existing right of way that are necessary to accommodate the planned
development, but which are acceptable to the public, any alternative alignment
should avoid the use of estate roads for the purpose wherever possible and
preference should be given to the use of made up estate paths through
landscaped or open space areas away from vehicular traffic. GCC Public Rights
of Way has also advised of the applicant's requirement to obtain the consent of
GCC for works that affect a Public Right of Way such as diversion, temporary
closure, changes to surfacing, encroachment onto the Public Right of Way or
the storage of building materials on the route.

10.102The applicant states that the agricultural land falls into the Class 3/Class 4
category. Whilst Class 3 is typically split into Class 3a and Class 3b for land
classification purposes, it is noted that land in Class 3b or 4 would not fall into
the best and most versatile agricultural land category. With regard to land in
Class 3a, paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should
recognise the '/ntrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider
economic benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services - including the
economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land.'In
this instance, the economic benefits arising from the arable use of this particular
site are considered to be limited given its size and relative disconnection from
other agricultural land. It is considered that the benefits arising from the
delivery of the new housing would outweigh the more limited impacts arising
from the loss of the agricultural land.

Page 74



10.103With regard to energy efficiency, the applicant has submitted an Energy &

Sustainability Strategy Briefing Note which sets out various measures such as
air source heat pumps, solar panels, water conservation, solar gain and
sustainable construction. It is recommended that a condition is attached to a
decision notice requiring the details submitted at the reserved matters stage to
accord with the recommendations in the aforementioned document.

10.104 With regard to financial contributions, GCC Community Infrastructure requests

contributions of £54,880 to library services. No education contribution is sought
as GCC considers that existing schools are deemed to have capacity to
accommodate the proposed development. Having regard to the size of the
development it is considered that the requested contributions are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms, directly related to the
proposed development and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to
the development. The contribution request is considered to accord with
Regulation 122 of the Community and Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010.

10.105This application is liable for the Community Infrastructure (CIL) and there will

11.

11.1

be a CIL charge payable. Section 143 of the Localism Act 2011 states that any
financial sum that an authority has received, will, or could receive, in payment
of CIL is a material 'local finance consideration' in planning decisions.

Conclusion

It is considered that the proposed development would make a significant
contribution towards the Council's supply of housing and help to address the
need to deliver additional housing in the District. Moreover, the proposal would
provide 112 affordable homes, which would also make a very notable
contribution to the Council's affordable housing needs. Whilst the proposal is
contrary to Local Plan Policy DS4, recent changes to the NPPF mean that the
aforementioned policy is now considered to be out-of-date. As a result, it is
necessary to assess the proposal against the criteria set out in paragraph 11 of
the NPPF, which tilts the planning balance in favour of new residential
development when a 5 year supply of deliverable housing land cannot be
demonstrated. Whilst it is considered that the proposal will have a landscape
and visual impact and cause less than substantial harm to the setting of
designated heritage assets, it is considered that the benefits arising from the
delivery of 280 dwellings (including 112 affordable dwellings) are significant.
They are also considered to represent notable public benefits. In the context of
paragraph 11, the benefits of the scheme are therefore considered to outweigh
the harm arising from the proposal.

Page 75



11.2 ltis therefore recommended that the application is granted permission, subject
to no objection from Gloucestershire County Council Highways and the
completion of a S106 legal agreement covering affordable housing, self-
build/custom build plots, highway improvements works (if required), Public
Open Space management, Biodiversity Net Gain, and financial contributions to
libraries and North Meadow and Clattinger Farm Special Area of Conservation

12. Proposed Conditions:

1. Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local
Planning Authority by three years from the date of this decision notice.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The development shall be started by 2 years from the date that the last of the
reserved matters is approved.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

3. The development shall not be started before approval of the details relating to
Access, Appearance, Layout, Landscaping and Scale have been given in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: These are "reserved matters" and were listed in the application for later
approval. Thisis only an outline planning permission and these matters require further
consideration by the Local Planning Authority. This condition is imposed to comply
with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

4. This decision relates to the land outlined in red on drawing number: 310.P.1 B

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework.

5. No reserved matters application shall be submitted and no development shall
start until a Detailed Master Plan for the whole application site has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submissions for the
approval of reserved matters shall accord with the approved Detailed Master Plan. The
Detailed Master Plan shall include:

i) the arrangement of principal and secondary roads;

Page 76



i) the density and mix of housing;

iii) an indication of building heights and massing;

iv) areas proposed as public open space and children's play areas;
v) existing landscape features to be retained;

vi) character areas;

vii) areas proposed for biodiversity enhancement.

Reason: In order to establish parameters which will guide the submission of future
reserved matters applications thereby avoiding delay at the reserved matters stage,
and which ensure that the development will accord with Local Plan Policies EN1, EN2,
EN4, EN7, EN8, EN10, INF3, INF4 and INF5.

6. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted (unless an
alternative timeframe is first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority), a
footway/cycleway shall be constructed between the application site and Cirencester
Kingshill Secondary School and Watermoor Church of England Primary School fully in
accordance with details that have first been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The submitted details shall include the means of construction of the footway/cycleway,
its surfacing details, any external lighting, fencing and details relating to the future
maintenance and management of the footway/cycleway. The development shall be
undertaken fully in accordance with the approved details and permanently
maintained/managed in accordance with the approved details thereafter.

Reason: In order to ensure that adequate provision is made for pedestrians and
cyclists to safely access the stated schools in the interests of sustainable development
and highway safety in accordance with Local Plan Policies INF3 and INF4.

7. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted (unless an
alternative timeframe is first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority), a
footway/cycleway shall be constructed between the application site and the village of
Preston fully in accordance with details that have first been approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

The submitted details shall include the means of construction of the footway/cycleway,
its surfacing details, any external lighting, fencing and details relating to the future

Page 77



maintenance and management of the footway/cycleway. The development shall be
undertaken fully in accordance with the approved details and permanently
maintained/managed in accordance with the approved details thereafter.

The route of the footway/cycleway shall be in broad accordance with the details shown
in the drawing titled 'Cycle Route Details - Route 2' 310.E.4.2 (Appendix E Transport
Assessment SEPTEMBER 2024)

Reason: In order to ensure that adequate provision is made for pedestrians and
cyclists to safely access the village and vice versa in the interests of sustainable
development and highway safety in accordance with Local Plan Policies INF3 and INF4.

8. An application for reserved matters shall include a drawing/schedule which sets
out the proposed size and mix of dwellings and which shall include the number of
bedrooms in each respective dwelling. No more than 20% of the dwellings shall have
4 bedrooms or more, with the remainder of the development being 1, 2 and 3
bedroom dwellings. The development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with the
approved drawing/schedule.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development contains an appropriate mix of
dwellings in accordance with the requirements of Local Plan Policy H1.

0. No development shall take place within the application site until the applicant,
or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme
of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has
been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

Reason: It is important to agree a programme of archaeological work in advance of
the commencement of development, so as to make provision for the investigation and
recording of any archaeological remains which may be present. The archaeological
programme will advance understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in
accordance with paragraph 218 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

10.  No development shall commence on site until a detailed Sustainable Drainage
System (SuDS) Strategy document has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority, this should be in accordance with the proposal set out in
the approved submission (Outline Drainage Strategy (Infiltration Basin; 584-P-104-B)
/ Outline Drainage Strategy (Attenuation Basin; 584-P-108)). The SuDS Strategy must
include a detailed design, infiltration tests carried out to the standard of BRE 365, a
timetable for implementation, and a full risk assessment for flooding during the
groundworks and building phases with mitigation measures specified for identified

Page 78



flood risks. The SuDS Strategy must also demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability
of the drainage system through the use of SuDS to manage the flood risk to the site
and elsewhere and the measures taken to manage the water quality for the lifetime of
the development. The approved scheme for the surface water drainage shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is first
put in to use/occupied.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage
and thereby preventing the risk of flooding in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN14.
It is important that these details are agreed prior to the commencement of
development as any works on site could have implications for drainage, flood risk and
water quality in the locality.

11.  Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a SuDS
Management and Maintenance Plan for the lifetime of the development, which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its
lifetime, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved SuDS Management and Maintenance Plan shall be implemented in full
in accordance with the agreed details.

Reason: To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features
serving the site and avoid flooding in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN14.

12.  Prior to the commencement of development a Construction Phase Surface
Water Management Plan' (CPSWMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be undertaken fully in accordance
with the approved CPSWMP.

Reason: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure
flooding is not exacerbated in the locality in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN14.
If the surface water design is not agreed before works commence, it could increase the
risk of flooding in the area.

13.  No dwelling shall be occupied until either:
i) all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional demand to
serve the development hereby permitted have been completed and the completion

details have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; or

i) a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Where a development and infrastructure phasing plan is

Page 79



agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
development and infrastructure phasing plan.

Reason: The development may lead to no / low water pressure and network
reinforcement works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity
is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated from the new
development.

14.  No dwelling shall be occupied until either:

i) all foul water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows from
the development hereby permitted have been completed and the completion details
have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority; or

i) a development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Where a development and infrastructure phasing plan is
agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
development and infrastructure phasing plan.

Reason: Network reinforcement works are likely to be required to accommodate the
proposed development. Any reinforcement works identified will be necessary in order
to avoid sewage flooding and/or potential pollution incidents in accordance with Local
Plan Policies EN14 and EN15.

15.  In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and
where remediation is necessary, a remediation scheme must be prepared to bring the
site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to
human health, buildings and other property, and which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity in
accordance with Local Plan Policy EN15 and Section 15 of the NPPF.

16.  The development shall not commence until a 30-year Habitat Monitoring and
Management Plan (HMMP), prepared in accordance with an approved Biodiversity
Gain Plan, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The approved HMMP shall be strictly adhered to and implemented in full for
its duration and shall contain the following:

i) Description and evaluation of the features to be managed;

Page 80



i) Ecological trends and constraints on site that may influence management;

iii) Aims, objectives and targets for management - links with local and national species
and habitat action plans;

iv) Description of the management operations necessary to achieving the aims and
objectives;

v) Prescriptions for management actions;

vi) Preparation of a works schedule, including annual works schedule;

vii) Details of the monitoring needed to measure the effectiveness of management;
viii) Details of the timetable for each element of the monitoring programme;

ix) Details of the persons responsible for the implementation and monitoring;

x) Mechanisms of adaptive management to account for necessary changes within the
work schedule to achieve the required targets; and

xi) Reporting on year 1, 2, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 with biodiversity reconciliation
calculations at each stage.

17.  The HMMP shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and
all habitats shall be retained in that manner thereafter. Notice in writing shall be given
to the Council when the habitat creation and enhancement works as set out in the
Biodiversity Gain Plan have commenced and once all habitat creation and
enhancement works have been completed.

Reason: To secure the delivery of at least a 10% biodiversity net gain through
successful establishment and management of all newly created and enhanced habitats
in accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021), paragraph 187, 192 and 193 of
the NPPF, and Local Plan policy ENS.

18.  Applications for approval of reserved matters shall include a Construction
Environmental Management Plan - Biodiversity (CEMP-B) informed by an up-to-date
ecological impact assessment. The CEMP-B shall include, but not necessarily be limited

to, the following:

i. Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities;

Page 81



ii. Identification of "biodiversity protection zones";

iii. Details of deep excavations to be infilled or ramped access provided to prevent
pitfall danger to mammals;

iv. Measures taken to safeguard hedgerows;

v. Practical measures (both physical and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce
impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements);

vi. The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features
(e.g. daylight working hours only starting one hour after sunrise and ceasing one hour
before sunset);

vii. The timing during construction when ecological or environmental specialists need
to be present on site to oversee works;

viii. Responsible persons and lines of communication;

ix. The role and responsibility on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similar
person;

x. Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs, including advanced
installation and maintenance during the construction period;

xi. Ongoing monitoring, including compliance checks by a competent person(s) during
construction and immediately post-completion of construction works.

The approved CEMP-B shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the
construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect biodiversity in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), the Protection of Badgers Act 1992, the Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187,
192 and 193 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Local Plan policy EN8, and
Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

19.  Prior to the installation of external lighting for the development hereby

approved, a lighting design strategy for biodiversity shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall:

Page 82



i. Identify areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for nocturnal wildlife,
including foraging/commuting bats and badgers;

ii. Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of
appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications) so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using
their nocturnal corridors.

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the approved strategy and
retained thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (Chapter 15), local plan policy EN8 and in order for the Council to
comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

20.  Applications for approval of reserved matters shall include a Skylark
Compensation Strategy. The approved strategy shall be implemented in full according
to the specified timescales and all compensation features thereafter shall be
permanently retained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure skylark are protected in accordance with the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of
the National Planning policy Framework, Local Plan policy EN8 and in order for the
Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006.

21.  The details submitted at the Reserved Matters stage shall demonstrate how the
development hereby permitted will incorporate the measures recommended in the
document titled 'Energy & Sustainability Strategy Briefing Note' Revision 02 Date: 21st
March 2023 and the development shall be undertaken fully in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development addresses the impact of climate
change in accordance with Local Plan Policy EN1.

Informatives:

1. IMPORTANT: BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN CONDITION - DEVELOPMENT CANNOT
COMMENCE UNTIL A BIODIVERSITY GAIN PLAN HAS BEEN SUBMITTED (AS A

Page 83



CONDITION COMPLIANCE APPLICATION) TO AND APPROVED BY COTSWOLD
DISTRICT COUNCIL.

The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
is that planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed
to have been granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that
development may not begin unless:

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan in writing.

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a
Biodiversity Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be
Cotswold District Council. There are statutory exemptions and transitional
arrangements which mean that the biodiversity gain condition does not always apply.
Based on the information available this permission is one which will require the
approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because none of the
statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements are considered to apply. If the
onsite habitats include irreplaceable habitats (within the meaning of the Biodiversity
Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitats) Regulations 2024) there are additional
requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans. Advice about
how to prepare a Biodiversity Gain Plan and a template can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/submit-a-biodiversity-gain-plan.

Information on how to discharge the biodiversity gain condition can be found here:
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-
biodiversity/biodiversity-net-gain-bng/

2. Please note that the proposed development set out in this application is liable
for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended). A CIL Liability Notice will be sent to the applicant, and any other person
who has an interest in the land, under separate cover. The Liability Notice will contain
details of the chargeable amount and how to claim exemption or relief, if appropriate.
There are further details on this process on the Council's website at
www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

3. Drainage
i) The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) will give consideration to how the proposed

sustainable drainage system can incorporate measures to help protect water quality,
however pollution control is the responsibility of the Environment Agency.

Page 84


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversity-net-gain-bng/
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversity-net-gain-bng/
http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

i) Future management of Sustainable Drainage Systems is a matter that will be dealt
with by the Local Planning Authority and has not, therefore, been considered by the
LLFA.

iii) Any revised documentation will only be considered by the LLFA when resubmitted
through suds@gloucestershire.gov.uk e-mail address. Please quote the planning
application number in the subject field.

Page 85


mailto:suds@gloucestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



&

Z

ETL

Stand

Football Ground

1
@e (4
OWN
3 3,
B3
&
£
WA
¢ 7
“5‘3 ©
&
7 > +
/e
Sub
Sta »
B =
o
18 -
2| |21
sl \&
5z 2
B 2 =
s B 8
3
24 -
49 g Z
¥ %
o of
A B 10 z
51 83
= 2
° 2 110
o
(S
\ =
= 8t 8
o
o »n
o
| 3 = HOME ROAD
v
o6
¥e
7L __
e
A\
>,
\ b
ICOMBE _WAY D)
% ’ <
<]
>
.
v \ -
=
|
=
5 = I
& < ) NI\
O
g £
7/ =
(M WAY ° Q‘b
&
f 17\/ /A
S
p &£
[/
o ©)
£ £
I3

PRigy

Issues
FB
0,0/}7
Drqin
B
o
>
DN
*040 &i‘?/l,oo/v
o, %
S
&
/?04777/})
7Y h’o
Ro¥
“o

Wildwood Residential Caravan Park

Drain y

103.3m

D\'d‘“

Preston Bridge

FB

Preston Forty

noQ sjuueL

Forty
Farmhouse

4

<7
D

Pa

107.3m,

/\
H
3
H
H
x
=]
Recreation Ground
3
J
¢
x
o El [Sub Sta
14
i \
KINGSW, 2 D
°
Ty
\
Kelfield 8
108)7 Cﬁ =
& Q Osbourne
House
Dormans
Ermin
Cottage The Timbers
Garden
Cottage
GP
Path (um)

¥T

The Rectory %

k-01.j|
ck-01.Jpg

RobertHitchins

The Complete Development Solution

Land west of Kingshill Lane
Drawing Title:
Location Plan
Drawing Number: Revision:
310.P.1 B
Drawn By: Checked by [ Date: Scale:
POK|] GRJ 09.02.2022 1:2000 @ A2

The Manor, Boddington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TJ
Tel: 01242 680694

www.robert-hitchins.co.uk

CAD Ref:



AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Dormans

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Osbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Preston Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
The Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Wildwood Residential Caravan Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
GRIFFITHS

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
BUNCOMBE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
SHILHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
103.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
OVENS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
Legg Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
CLIFFORD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
CRICKLADE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
PRICE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Matthews Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
SWINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
50


This page is intentionally left blank



EE

i

i

ATH
T

|
==
ey
T

A
=
|

e

NN

0 10

50m

N \\\\ \

Drain

Preston Forty

Forty

El Sub Sta

¢ PROPOSED VEHICULAR ACCESS
INTO THE SITE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

RESIDENTIAL TO INCLUDE AMENITY GREEN
SPACE, INCIDENTAL INFORMAL OPEN SPACE,
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE SYSTEMS,
ROADS AND LANDSCAPING. PREDOMINANTLY
2 STOREY BUT WITH ALLOWANCE FOR UP TO
3 STOREY.

‘ EXISTING VEGETATION

EXISTING FOOTPATH RETAINED

PROPOSED CYCLE/FOOT LINK

PROPOSED FOOTPATH

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

TO INCLUDE NEW TREES AND
HEDGEROWS, SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE, INFORMAL FOOTWAYS,
FORMAL FOOTWAYS AND ANY
NECESSARY MITIGATION FOR SKYLARKS

CENTRAL GREEN
INFRASTRUCTURE CORRIDOR
TO INCLUDE FORMAL AND
INFORMAL PLAY OPPORTUNITIES

TRIM TRAIL AREA OF PLAY

LINEAR LOCAL EQUIPPED AREA
OF PLAY (LEAP)

MULTI USE GAMES AREA
(MUGA)

ATTENUATION BASIN

OVERHEAD ELECTRICITY LINES
AND PYLON

FOUL WATER PUMP STATION
ACCESS FROM KINGSHILL LANE

Robert Hitchins

The Complete Development Solution

Site Name:

LAND WEST OF KINGSHILL LANE

Drawing Title:

ALTERNATIVE ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

Drawing Number:

310.UD.01

Revision:

Drawn By: Checked By: Date: Scale:

LSD GRJ

06/05/2025 1:1250 @ A2

The Manor, Boddington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TJ

Tel: 01242 680694

www.robert-hitchins.co.uk

CAD Ref: REFERENCE

Page 89




This page is intentionally left blank



\\war-fs1\shared\Projects\38606 Land West of Kingshill Lane\5 Design\Drawings\Acad\1.) Site access design\38606 - Lea023.dwg Originator: BETTINA.BERNARD

JEP
{ /\ Proposed kerb to tie
\ into existing

o

| 'l El Sub Sta

l
L

— L ——i ——

7.3m

Proposed kerb to tie
into existing

e

Notes /

1. The proposed ;w is based
\\\\\ on a 50mph design speed.
\\\\\\\ 2. Assumed highway boundary

extrapotated from data provided
b}GCC.

=
— I~
—

Key Client

EI Existing Robe?
EI Proposed
Land west of Kingshill Lane

E 160m x 4.5m visibility splay (DMRB 50mph) cand weet
E Assumed highway boundary Transport Assessment

Appendix E
Application drawings: Site access
Priority junction with a right turn ghost

island
Oom 50 m
| I I
Scale 1:1000 @ A3 \\ \ )
© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 March 2023

Ordnance Survey 0100031673

Page 91 38606 - Lea023



AutoCAD SHX Text_229
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
I.L. 118.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
I.L. 117.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
I.L. 117.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
I.L. 117.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
I.L. 116.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
I.L. 113.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
1.3m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
1.3m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
1.3m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
0.9m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
0.9m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
0.9m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
1m mr

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
0.8m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
0.85m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
we

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
stile

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
KINGSHILL LANE


This page is intentionally left blank



] CUT LINE

' A
N

New Pedestrian Crossing to be
installed and existing footpath

to be regraded to suit
[

[l |

; Proposed gully to tie into
existing kerb drainage.

VA /
Diag. 956
ounting Height |2.5m
300mm Diameter

z 7
Uiz
.

4
|

N\
SEhe
KEY:
Proposed footway/cycleway

el
MountiEgGgI;Ie?gﬁ 2.5m
/g\ 300mm Diameter
Existing maintenance
access to be maintained .
o Proposed verge L
Z
Gji\%) = Proposed Sign -
e _
. . =
Diag. 956 Link to Skatepark Proposed tactile paving %
Mounting Height 2.5m
300mm Diameter @
Skate odr K ~ EEE Proposed corduroy tactile paving - §
Mountigiqagllle?gi? 2.5m § \J
306 Diometer 5 - Indicitave street lighting X
o T Proposed kerb line to follow
Proposed Gully ﬂ + existing edge of carriageway
\ [ north of football club access.
. . — — Proposed transition kerb 119.5m
Continuation on existing @ 9 |
| facilities - — Proposed dropped kerb
3.0000
Proposed edging kerb
* - Existing kerbs to remain
Ground
| \ Proposed HB2 kerbs
Regrading of existing footway
Mounting Height 2.5m
] 300mm Diameter
-7 3 DISMOUNT
| S avilion 3
1 A XN
W § onf ves
ounting Height 2. 00 y ~ .
00mm  Diameter I.L. . 6
Skatepark B v NUIE | [
V% o 115':5; 62 s §“
X ' Mountigiqagllle?gﬁ 2.5m ﬁé%?? 18 gg’:ﬁ ;5 §A : 511;8.55
T@ m K ) ( 300mm DiGTiLer g{85 . :: g _: ;“ veg
»118.6f e [
m 11?".65 - : :.
STN 161 M) 57 Z 5?“
40402%6%’8 East 1187674 <t | Hf/=
201375/349 North 3 ™ pipe oo
118.671m L. 117.97 1 - gg b
éich%%TNsT 118.78{] ~ S gokA
ot . Diog. 966 hedge S 5:; | m:
b s Sta SIS] il £
\ 225mm pipe 5 Fe~ vee
,j I.L. 117.77 g
118 = 118.69
S— § J 18.88
118.644 ;
118¢ E’;

\ 4m
hedge -
) .
| .89

o+
11857 S /.
=2 .
~A < /1864
Nv»‘\
o T
. J[] = eg
g Fields el N
o+ 4m )
hedge kS -
T N L5 9.06
— 3 00 118, ¢hs
__1.7m 118. I
hedge ] gat ool
—— diteh—(neot suruauay im mr ]
— = G - J/m 4m 1}18.
| T i : o bedge , f38, SR
. . o= B.44 1 118! } 15 U SPE-11)18.95
| Continuation | - +TT8. - i S
‘ . . W s :
of existing * (11821 7S
+118 o 2 & 3
ot T
i 294
= ‘r 18.03
118 9‘ | nil g
+ o ey
1 1 Y 1 2
1279 5m Continuation of segregated :
¢ S
cycle route as per the Nue = K .
. y v 1~ V. g
Illustrative Master Plan _ : | e
N ,118.06 ;s"' == A D;ameter i~ 86 ~ - Mounted back to back
il ol +117.86 § §
off | HE
Carriageway || 17 pr S [
Link .|~ G
il o 117 Biods E(P M) 7]
] 11 ) 711230 T 12 72¥80North | 117, g . L]
— o 'E"HTHJ ' SR -
| S L117Y73 | 3= 4
| L S 4 118.27
S 3 ¢
igh Land 7.93 - o
1ghway Lan - T 117,99
L]nk o+ . - Fl, 117 '7(21’)51 .
. p O 1CC
, D p A17.74 117.9%. .7761 E 3 5
/ Sijwes | o 118.0
i 117.87] {v.8 ) 300mm pipe
/ LL. 116.65 .
e LB {17.75] Junction layout to be as per
7...---0 A s i ,’/ i~ L
o L % .{;/c ) /’/// m 3 | . .
e [P Lo : - Amec design drawings.
i e el ) N hedge
s s L g / F | S
~@ = [ g /
B e o P =" 7 Qe ~+E
7 :' ,’//’// S IR ags ::J 11/4. (1;0
£ / el 8.12
5
*| SNE!
i —_
/7 5
 — = ¥ L0 3
; - 11 o Al
[ o 3 3 T,
- ‘\\5’{;7 L ¢ 1.3m c . z‘?&f I
= — \\" i X %! +1 p.w feng Ay N
\ == e 117.43 =
! ﬂ = -'/:; +
== - ,117.34 / . .
1 Location Plan P B T L S
S — =3 f iy R
= | Scale: NTS ot ! = o .
. C T LINE < Highway Land Plan
\ . 117,
Off Carriageway Plan - al 1 4 Scale 1:500
i | - —
Scale 1:500 \ R N =
\ ) ) imm Sm
+ B (Lg U@gé’ hedge
) - ops -
. i.f 5m
- ;
Dia A R/ ] hedge edge of brambles
Mounting . crops
Mounted back to back p ops & ) ’
o Mountiﬁﬁ;legfg%? b & Diag. 956
300RH DiaMéter Mounting Height 2.5m
h // // ; 300mm Diameter
Continuation of segregated - > caze o :
P ] /// P B
cycle route as per the eoe : p 5.5 b
. %7) = // G s & .
lllustrative Master Plan ‘ Z : s N
. P! STN 1614
s ~ \. 403969.6
20787.1(
j ’ ) /// 7z > em o 9
e — [ oS /// //
el »& 1.1m |cp| &
ég N o > Vg*’ 74 pw fe
Z hedge &Q* / 4 edge g;
Z //ng / caPs ;! P P 1.3m cp
~ = 20 e yd edge of & igf 1(821:1 S { & cl fence
4 Crons p. yd .
ity i L , g }
S w ‘ Proposed Realigned edge of 2 »
; 2 /S £l [Su
7 LL. 105.85 (approx) . L edge P hedfe
— 05 (appros) carriageway and new Lining to [ o >
I L. 105.75 . . . .
4 s - maintain a 6m wide carriageway Lo
00mm pipe | | = ) B } 7 edge of l.lm cp
I.L. 108.39 y hedge crops pw fence
£
) Z 2 1.2m 3.
> edge of vee &@0 \g} e
gt o | > : i 500
edge of S j; gate o
% o R pipe S :
6.§OO 106.04 // [ .
Q,
Im cp & / / ¢1@c.30 fce};me \\ /
pw fence // \\
) STN\ 161408
g S % = §m cb / ) 101064853
: : . . L e b fen Z, 9.574m
. /fuo/| Potential localised Pinch Point - Lo e @
\ \ L, 1.4m ﬁ. RAGES shru
\Y hedge
\ = E
\\ soffit= edge of 4 -: S u
< 105.09 crops {] L 1
\ Diag- T - & A\
\ < Mounting| Height 2 s Diag. 966 o o M.H. \(storm) border\ |3 SR
\ ) 300mm Diame L Mounting Height 2.5m P %) i Yoo s Q.
> L. 104.67 300mm  Diameter 2.2m BUILDING & LL.{108, - S ohi
(11/2/16) - hedge 1.9m cb = border
Q% o CYCLISTS fence < 1.8m cb y 2
2 s 3 0 DISMOUNT M B fence M\H. (fo\l) 24m N
* ‘ n C.L. 108\36 0.5 = hedge edge s
n _ I 105.81 ge\ hedge »5?/ y N
2 %% im pr t e
B te]@ grass fence
~ g | |4 N OO’I) N
3\ Kelfield  o4m sw —3 |
G ! &\
: Mountiglqgllleggi? 2.5m border||g % . .
BUILDING s 7 6 .- iameter b SR Robert Hitchins
1 bu I %%Tr?T g g The Complete Development Solution
;:=:==’=’ Site Name:
L.5m A 5] ghass ={ 310 - Kingshill Lane, Cirencester
D &y < e - '——: ave Drawing Title:
. ;7 bench, © Cycle Route Details - Route 1
0/12 ), fjll ¢ /:,—:”: — Drawing Number: Revision:
N S__ — »3XSV 1.7m 310.E.4.1
/ ‘ 1;92‘&:"’ Z hedge Drawn By: Checked By: ] Date: Scale:
D TGF EJA 17.04.2024 1:500 @ AO
The Manor, Boddington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TJ
Tel: 01242 680694
www.robert-hitchins.co.uk

(‘\
N

)
brambles /
DISMOUNT
Diag. 956
Mounting Height 2.5m
Forty
“ oo -| New Shared footway to align
with existing eastbound
%/ igf {goul) Sty Preston Link 2 miﬁ?g’es
77| Scale 1:500

edge of
crops
2
(@
- Dig. 966 oy
Mounti t %
Lo Sanetr
: 300mm Diameter
edge of )
crops s
¢ edg; of P gl .
2 crops e 2 C
%% P g o ,,,6' 00 A
s AT = STN 161 ilti)
= \ el el .
Lem pr SLEUT LN Preston Link 1 footway link to Preston /
2 ayd 1im |cp| & Scale 1:500 BUILDING 7/ 4 1045
< & // pw fe ° fon
YA
& // edge 7 ra 1.3m hedge
g 'J s L . > rs\"O
M.H._(storm L2 1.3m cp STN 161406 (Nail
Page 93


AutoCAD SHX Text_303
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
118.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
118.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
118.64 

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
118.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
118.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
118.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
118.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
118.53 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
118.47 

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
118.31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
118.19 

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
118.11 

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
118.20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
118.40 

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
118.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
118.46 

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
118.64 

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
118.64 

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
118.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
118.79 

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
118.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
118.83 

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
118.84 

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
118.87 

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
118.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
118.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
118.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
118.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
118.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
118.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
118.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
118.84 

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
118.76 

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
118.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
117.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
117.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
117.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
117.76 

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
117.93 

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
118.04 

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
117.99 

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
118.04 

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
117.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
118.04 

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
118.55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
118.55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
118.88 

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
118.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
118.64 

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
119.06 

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
118.95 

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
118.94 

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
118.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
118.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
118.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
118.27 

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
117.99 

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
118.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
117.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
117.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
117.97 

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
118.18 

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
118.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
118.49 

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
118.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
118.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
118.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
118.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
118.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
118.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
118.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
118.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
118.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
118.57 

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
118.57 

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
118.58 

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
118.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
118.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
118.85 

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
118.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
118.17 

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
118.14 

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
118.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
119.16 

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
118.57 

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
118.57 

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
118.55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
118.65 

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
118.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
118.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
118.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
118.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
118.07 

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
117.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
118.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
118.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
118.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
118.50 

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
118.45 

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
118.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
118.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
118.19 

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
118.09 

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
117.90 

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
117.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
117.52 

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
117.34 

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
117.18 

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
116.90 

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
116.56 

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
118.58 

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
118.57 

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
118.64 

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
118.78 

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
118.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
118.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
118.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
118.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
118.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
118.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
118.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
118.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
118.35 

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
118.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
118.32 

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
118.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
118.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
118.31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
118.38 

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
117.41 

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
117.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
117.56 

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
117.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
117.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
117.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
117.58 

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
117.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
117.23 

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
116.97 

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
116.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
116.91 

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
117.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
117.47 

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
117.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
117.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
117.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
117.76 

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
117.93 

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
118.04 

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
118.15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
118.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
118.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
117.90 

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
117.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
117.79 

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
117.85 

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
118.13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
118.16 

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
118.01 

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
118.03 

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
118.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
118.08 

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
117.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
117.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
117.26 

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
117.27 

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
117.17 

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
117.09 

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
118.15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
118.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
117.84 

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
117.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
117.56 

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
117.45 

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
117.41 

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
117.30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
117.11 

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
116.79 

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
117.20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
117.49 

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
117.45 

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
117.58 

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
117.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
117.55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
117.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
117.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
116.96 

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
117.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
117.39 

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
117.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
118.20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
118.18 

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
118.08 

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
117.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
117.24 

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
117.44 

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
117.55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
117.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
118.02 

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
118.12 

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
117.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
117.93 

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
117.53 

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
117.27 

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
117.51 

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
117.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
117.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
I.L. 118.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
I.L. 117.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
I.L. 117.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
I.L. 117.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
I.L. 116.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
STN 161404 (Nail)

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
404028.698 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
201375.389 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
118.671m

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
STN 161403 (PGM)

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
404009.342 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
201237.215 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
117.965m

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
118.44 

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
118.41 

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
118.20 

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
118.16 

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
118.21 

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
118.15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
118.03 

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
118.15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
117.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
117.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
117.76 

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
117.65 

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
117.49 

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
117.43 

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
117.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
117.21 

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
117.39 

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
117.32 

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
117.27 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
117.26 

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
117.34 

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
117.34 

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
117.34 

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
117.43 

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
117.51 

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
117.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
117.56 

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
117.47 

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
117.47 

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
117.42 

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
117.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
117.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
117.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
117.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
117.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
117.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
117.44 

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
117.46 

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
117.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
117.59 

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
117.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
117.87 

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
117.87 

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
117.92 

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
117.92 

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
117.96 

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
118.06 

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
118.24 

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
118.35 

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
117.71 

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
117.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
117.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
117.79 

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
117.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
117.93 

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
117.97 

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
117.95 

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
117.89 

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
117.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
117.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
117.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
118.13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
118.06 

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
117.98 

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
117.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
117.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
117.87 

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
117.98 

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
117.91 

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
117.99 

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
118.12 

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
118.17 

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
118.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
118.36 

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
118.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
118.21 

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
118.16 

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
118.12 

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
118.12 

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
118.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
118.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
118.43 

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
118.50 

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
118.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
118.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
ditch (not surveyed)

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
1.3m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
1.3m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
1m mr

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
0.8m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
0.85m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
5m veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
I.L. 106.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
600mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
I.L. 105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
I.L. 105.90 (approx)

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
2x225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
I.L. 105.85 (approx)

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
2.5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
mp

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
W.L. 105.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
600mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
I.L. 105.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
C.L. 107.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
107.384m

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
STN 161405 (Hilti)

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
403969.646 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
20787.104 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
107.179m

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
W.L. 104.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
(11/2/16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
(11/2/16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
105.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
ret sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
ret sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
1m 

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
o/h elec 

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
STONE TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
cw

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
C.L. 107.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
I.L. 106.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
STN 161405 (Hilti)

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
403969.646 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
20787.104 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
107.179m

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
1.3m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
M.H. (U.T.L.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
C.L. 106.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
fh

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
C.L. 106.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
I.L. 104.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
cv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
3xsv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
C.L. 108.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
I.L. 105.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
C.L. 107.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
I.L. 105.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
1.9m cw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
C.L. 109.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
I.L. 108.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
1m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
STN 161406 (Nail)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
403955.223 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
STN 161408 (Nail)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
404064.853 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
20706.338 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
109.574m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
2.2m 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
1m pw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
1.9m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
o/h elec cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
o/h elec 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
STONE TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
1m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
1m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
sf

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
1.8m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
1.8m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
cv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
box

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
1.3m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
4x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
hedges

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
red

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
1.2m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
0.8m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
1.3m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
o/h telecom

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
2xcv

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
1.5m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
1.7m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
0.4m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
1m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
0.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
GARAGES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
bin 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
o/h telecom

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
PRESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
Preston Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
113.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
112.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
Forge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
112.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
Beechnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
The Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
17a to 17e

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
Village Farm Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
Dormans

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
Church Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
Preston

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
Hayden

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
The Pigeon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
Osbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
Pear

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
Paddock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
Village Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
Cherrytrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
11 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
Kings Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
The Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
The Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
GRIFFITHS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
Craig a Don

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
FRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
ROSE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
Mulberry Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
BUNCOMBE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
GEGG CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
Cafe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
River Churn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
Rosador

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
Gordon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
Corbeirre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
CROSS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
MIDDLE MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
SHILHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
103.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
Penarth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
GILLMAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
OVENS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
Legg Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
A 419

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
BISHOP MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
Lonsdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
Mortimer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
Rosetrevor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
Meadowside

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
Greystones

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
CHERRY TREE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
CLIFFORD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
A 429

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
CRICKLADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
CRICKLADE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
ZACHARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
PRICE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
Casita

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
Elfin House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
Matthews Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
SWINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
Craig

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
121.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
GOLDEN FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
123.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
95a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
Watermoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
MILLENNIUM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
A 417

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
2O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
ORPET PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
FOSSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
PARTRIDGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
122.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
Norcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
CENTURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
Cirencester

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
Keepers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
Kingshill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
PARTRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
52b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
LB


This page is intentionally left blank



Continuation on existing
facilities

S ond

Vs
Vs
Vs
Vs
/
v

|

\X = \ b d !
= A\ - = \ 1
N . | | :
R \ XA I i !
AN /1 = won I I e !
\ 2 ! -
*N\ T 1
- \ 2 | \
e | \
e o) ! | \
— 5 /o
= NS " \ i\ { - |
& . i W A |
s AR i
e BLSE } |
SO IZ | \
sso =\ - | 1
= \\ 7 | b
78 J \ NEW [NILLS |
! |
4 : 2 I\ | \‘\\“
3 Sl 3 i P d ‘
3 /] = | ropose i
3 2 i (W
1

yd = it \Z | Cycle Link
i J \ | H
,,,,, (e \‘»\‘\ ,1' H
TS =T \ ) i
,,/ “ y. o )
il o)}

5 ¢
;;;;
4 S

%
#
#

Proposed alignment to

avoid existing pond /
Site Access ;
2 /
7@ ///; Qyres
) [
3.0000 - T
lllll == - b —m \E |
" Location Plan .
—| \-=| Scale NTS
Proposed Cyclepath to
use existing gap in hedge
=
o)
)
KEY:
Proposed Footway/Cycleway
- Proposed Verge
;=§ .
%g = Proposed Sign
i Proposed tactile paving
FEFEE Proposed corduroy tactile paving
- Indicitave Street lighting Stand
re Football Ground
Proposed Gully
- — Proposed Transition Kerb
S)
o)
— Proposed dropped kerb
i | — Proposed edging kerb
— Existing Kerbs to remain
Proposed HB2 Kerbs
Proposed fencing
+o
= - 3.0000— —~—
™, \**\ :>
N\ r\ ©7 N BN [,
65
51
+0
o2
Q - AN
o 95
119
=
o
N +0
N g Diag. 957
3 300mm dia
AN 4\ 29 Mounted back to back
I M
/;/’l =£
N
\\ 1.3m pr 4111:&26 diteh—(
fence 119.84 119.804 1q go l.e(me _———— —
+ " brambleslzo. 119.9 trough. _—— 1.7m ditch (not surveyed) Lo = =
ble hed 82 119.82 1n12;67 hedge
- 1 119.97 v119.‘926 & L [105di ==
96 g 356 S | \
v3 o Diameter E an an |
: S e . Continuation of segregated = " .
g - = e oe] ] L118.
T 12m o | cycle route as per the o — Af
Off Carriageway Plan Illustrative Master Plan | +
Scale 1:1000 —er——  E——
119.67
B
: é;}% : gxendge ,;/’// edge of brambles
9 : yd crops
Mounted back to back // /}/ #rops & Diag. 966 - i3
. // ‘,/’/ Mo;ggaﬁlgg%taﬁér / Mo;&t)iglga gHgigE:g t2.5m
Continuation of segregated i - o)) h cdge o ,.
cycle route as per the feoric / | & w5l om0 '
. 5 a0 ay = =/ ¢ - g
Illustrative Master Plan Z S A a
/ Vi P i
* :j // ,,,, 7 1.2m pr \ 3823%’56 CU T
S I, / LINE
m § / . @1@‘ Y g 7 1.1m |cp| &
(_Uj) &b 5m /, ,,,,,,, ©2 Y@& // pw fe
Z hedge /’/ /'/ p %Q’&Q‘ 7/ edge of &3
- S ) / // crop. QY m e
e =, ] ’ /’/ // edge of . %&0 g / l(\}/III:I 1(8";0&1311 : écISCI feglce
30 Pipe 4 S/ crops Py pd I.LL. 106.48 1
- 5.90 (approx) ///' //’ - - :
p f_f?&g&%g}fme yd ; / Proposed Real]gned edge of mol;?;ge ml E‘ S U
| s0omm pipe | carriageway and new Lining to —
. LL. 105.75 L , 2 . . . . 1.5 74
_ | maintain a 6m wide carriageway bedfe
I_gf)nll(r)n_ "be T hedge ’ crops pwnflerfge
1.2m yd .
edge of vee \(z,o / .;? é 3
crops ?é% o gy
edge of , S _ _5 gate .5?9
6?00 : 106-g4p 7 1.5m
o fCP v w éclsc fceglce . //
pw fence . \
5 : Y Q O\ STN\ 161408
Q e ? Dem cb / \ g it G:Ei.ggs
X Potential localised Pinch Point @ e
\\\ X }11.e4(;1gle = RAGES shru
N\ - b g
A odge o g ] “ A
\“ iq 8 ~ . 7 S
\\\ \\ MountiEg I;Ieight 2.5m :;5 Diag. 966 o s A — order'ﬁ"s 2 “l,‘%;‘
\ W.L. 104.67 S00mip Plmeter o Diometer ¢ 2'2m BUILDING é{; c1. 409.47 oXs
(11/2/16) N hedge 1.9m cb = . b r“der/ =y
>0 § 3100 s Lo o LA ) :
= L. ) T hedge caee .
stay m - ) IC : 110058. 3161m gf ge\| hedge ¢ /,N;é’ v X
B & tejeo grass fence — =
2 .

g;lggs of brambles { ] 0%; K € ‘ :ﬁ @‘ d O-dmsw - o gra
, 1 j / Mounﬁ?qgl;le??ﬁ 25m border | | % r . » )
- L \ BUILDING ST 3 wa {maﬁq % e Robert Hitchins
C. LL I cveLsTts 1.3m SY . The Complete Development Solution
DISMOUNT g -

Mountir t & Diag. 956
3005&?3%];&&% / Mounting Height 2.5m
: / 300mm Diameter 1.5m .
S A gnrass ,.—-—”'f‘é = 7 T
gy

ra
o
e

—

Site Name:

310 - Kingshill Lane, Cirencester

ave Drawing Title:

Cycle Route Details - Route 2

Forty

edge of
crops =
edge of 7 gl . rav .”:: bench, ©
% crops vy A ¥l S - —
e/@ b y 5 //:\é.c 00 [ F @ r m h © LJ S { N eW S h a red footway to a l] gn X ! 1@ . 3 — = D;‘tlng NuEmb:: 5 Revision:
’ S AT N —] 9TN 161~ with existing eastbound | e L LT, e
s 1.2 / 20v87.1¢ C . : V7 — - TGF | EJA 17.04.2024 1:500 @ AO
2 o / s CUT LINE Preston Link 1 footway link to Preston /M (toul) i, |Preston Link 2 7
- / ) ) — The Manor, Boddington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TJ
&2 1.1m |cp| & Scale 1:500 BUILDING 1 for0 _—7~"Scale 1:500 “Tel: 01242 680694
‘0 §’$ 7 o te 3 A #&ton www.robert-hitchins.co.uk
/;;OQQ' / edge of P /'/,'/ S 1.3m hedge CAD Ref:
% 4 cro AP Ts\®
A4 M.H. (storm > 22 1.3m cp 2 STN 161406 (Nail

Page 95


AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
119.61 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
119.65 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
119.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
119.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
119.83 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
119.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
119.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
119.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
119.31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
119.14 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
118.96 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
118.60 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
118.44 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
118.41 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
119.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
119.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
119.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
119.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
119.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
119.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
119.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
119.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
119.77 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
119.72 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
119.58 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
119.38 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
119.18 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
118.97 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
118.69 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
118.46 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
118.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
118.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
119.01 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
119.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
119.40 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
118.32 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
118.13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
118.06 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
118.12 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
118.17 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
118.29 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
118.47 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
118.66 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
118.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
118.36 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
118.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
118.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
118.75 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
118.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
118.88 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
119.03 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
119.07 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
119.32 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
119.51 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
119.74 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
119.96 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
120.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
120.08 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
120.09 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
119.56 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
119.51 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
119.37 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
119.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
119.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
119.82 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
119.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
119.80 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
119.84 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
119.95 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
120.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
120.00 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
120.19 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
120.11 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
120.23 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
120.15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
119.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
119.92 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
119.97 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
120.10 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
119.96 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
119.90 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
120.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
119.67 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
1.3m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
ditch (not surveyed)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
ditch (not surveyed)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
I.L. 106.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
600mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
I.L. 105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
300mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
I.L. 105.90 (approx)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
2x225mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
I.L. 105.85 (approx)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
2.5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
mp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
W.L. 105.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
600mm pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
I.L. 105.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
stay

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
C.L. 107.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
107.384m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
STN 161405 (Hilti)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
403969.646 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
20787.104 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
107.179m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
W.L. 104.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
(11/2/16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
(11/2/16)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
soffit=

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
105.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
ret sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
ret sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
1m 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
o/h elec 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
STONE TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
veg

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
cw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
C.L. 107.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
I.L. 106.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
STN 161405 (Hilti)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
403969.646 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
20787.104 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
107.179m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
1.3m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
M.H. (U.T.L.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
C.L. 106.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
fh

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
C.L. 106.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
I.L. 104.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
rs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
cv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
3xsv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
C.L. 108.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
I.L. 105.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
M.H. (foul)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
C.L. 107.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
I.L. 105.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
1.9m cw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
mkr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
M.H. (storm)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
C.L. 109.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
I.L. 108.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
gy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
border

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
1m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
STN 161406 (Nail)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
403955.223 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
STN 161408 (Nail)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
404064.853 East

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
20706.338 North

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
109.574m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
edge of

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
crops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
2.2m 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
1m pw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
1.9m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
o/h elec cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
o/h elec 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
STONE TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
o/h elec

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
cables

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
5m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
1m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
1m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
1.1m cp &

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
pw fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
1.2m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
1.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
sf

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
1.3m cp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
& cl fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
1.8m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
1.8m cb

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
cv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
box

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
1.3m hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
4x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
hedges

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
red

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
1.2m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
0.8m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
1.3m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
o/h telecom

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
2xcv

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
1.5m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
1.7m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
0.4m sw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
1m pr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
0.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
tmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
gt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
ek

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
GARAGES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
bin 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
o/h telecom

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
marker posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
PRESTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
Preston Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
113.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
112.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
112.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
Beechnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
The Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
Allotment

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
17a to 17e

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
Village Farm Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
Dormans

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
Church Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
Preston

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
Hayden

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
The Pigeon

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
Osbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
Pear

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
Village Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
Cherrytrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
Kings Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
The Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
The Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
GRIFFITHS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
Craig a Don

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
FRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
ROSE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
Mulberry Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
BUNCOMBE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
GEGG CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
Cafe

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
River Churn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
Rosador

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
Gordon

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
Corbeirre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
CROSS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
MIDDLE MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
SHILHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
103.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
Penarth

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
GILLMAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
OVENS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
Legg Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
A 419

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
BISHOP MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
Lonsdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
Mortimer

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
Rosetrevor

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
Meadowside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
Greystones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
CHERRY TREE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
CLIFFORD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
A 429

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
CRICKLADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
CRICKLADE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
ZACHARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
PRICE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
Casita

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
Elfin House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
Matthews Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
SWINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
Craig

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
121.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
GOLDEN FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
123.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
95a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
Watermoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
MILLENNIUM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
A 417

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
2O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
WINSTONE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
ORPET PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
FOSSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
PARTRIDGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
122.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
Norcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
CENTURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
Cirencester

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
Keepers

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
Kingshill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
PARTRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
52b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
Avery

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
LB


This page is intentionally left blank



; L/
r Realigned Kerb line with 12m radii to tie in with junction é
Diag. 956
Mounting Height 2.5m
300mm Diameter
; KEY:
! CYCLISTS
3 DISMOUNT Proposed Footway/Cycleway
,,,,,,,, Diag. 966
/ | Mounting Height 2.5m Proposed Verge
{ 300mm Diameter
I = Proposed Sign
Proposed tactile paving
xisting highway grip to be piped I _
a ! - Proposed corduroy tactile paving
I< | QCE L .- Indicitave Street lighting
;‘ — <C . Proposed Gully
< —
= Existing gateway sign to be carefully removed to store and installed on new | S Proposed Transition Kerb
O rpassively safe posts with a 2.8m mounting height 1
o= % — Proposed dropped kerb
O .
= — Proposed edging kerb
********************************* - | i .
I — Existing Kerbs to remain

Potential Pinch Point

Existing warning sign to be carefully removed to store and installed on new

post at the back of proposed footpath with a 2.8m mounting height

““t{ Continuation

SR L NG % | Hd
% s~y of existing
\\\’R{;\ .L I\\ s of o .‘Ir”-’w
S 3¢ facilities
: \I\‘ I\\:\\\ : \ f& 4
II b \;\ Ve | o st

I

I

I

| Viewport
| Sheet 1
|
|
I

Viewport pd
Sheet 2 //o

I
il
/l
]
/II
1
///
/f
e Qyrm
/
1
i
/I/I/
//
//II
/i
i
f
IIII
i
lII
/
i
i
//I Path (um)
e -
7
y |
VA
7
1
\
\
IQ\ —E
- \/ E
i
= \ &
e ] g
\ - 5
\ = B
\ a
=

{ e

~|Location Plan £
Scale: NTS =

{
I I3m wide shared footway/Cycleway

Realign Kerbs to maintain existing
carriageway width if required

Viewport

Sheet 1

7777777777777
1

300mm Diometer .

Diag. 966 !
Mounting Height 2.5m!
300mm Diameter |

CYCLISTS
DISMOUNT

-~ Diog: 956~
Mounting Height 2.5m
300mm Diameter |

Diag. 956
Mounting Height 2.5m

Diag. 966

Mountin gHgﬂéé.@ SI[ q

300mm

Diag. 956
Mounting Height 2.5m
300mm Diameter

Viewport

Sheet 2

Page 97

BT
.L,_ — \\\
.
tH

Proposed HB2 Kerbs

Regrading of existing Footway

LTy
LTt
T
H

> Existing tactile crossing to be extended to 3m wide.

Realign kerb line to maintain 3m running lanes and tapers

Diag. 957
300mm dia
Mounted back to back

i |

Junction layout to be as per Amec design
drawings.

Robert Hitchins

The Complete Development Solution

Site Name:

310 - Kingshill Lane, Cirencester

Drawing Title:

Cycle Link Initial Concept

Revision:

Drawing Number:

310.E.2

Scale:

Date:

11.12.2024

Checked By:

GRJ

Drawn By:

TGF

1:500 @ A1

The Manor, Boddington, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TJ
Tel: 01242 680694
www.robert-hitchins.co.uk

For details of the southern pedestrians

connection to Preston refer to drawings 310.E.4

CAD Ref:



AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
Diag. 956

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
Diag. 966

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
Mounting Height 2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
300mm Diameter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
Preston Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
113.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
112.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
Forge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
112.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
Beechnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
The Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
17a to 17e

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
Village Farm Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
Dormans

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
Church Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
Preston

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
Hayden

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
The Pigeon

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
Osbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
Pear

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
Paddock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
Village Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
Cherrytrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
11 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
Kings Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
The Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
The Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
GRIFFITHS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
Craig a Don

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
FRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
ROSE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
Mulberry Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
BUNCOMBE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
GEGG CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
Cafe

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
River Churn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
Rosador

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
Gordon

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
Corbeirre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
CROSS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
MIDDLE MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
SHILHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
103.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
Penarth

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
GILLMAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
OVENS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
Legg Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
A 419

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
BISHOP MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
Lonsdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
Mortimer

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
Rosetrevor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
Meadowside

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
Greystones

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
CHERRY TREE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
CLIFFORD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
A 429

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
CRICKLADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
CRICKLADE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
ZACHARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
PRICE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
Casita

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
Elfin House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
Matthews Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
SWINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
Craig

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
121.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
GOLDEN FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
123.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
95a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
Watermoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
MILLENNIUM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
A 417

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
2O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
ORPET PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
FOSSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
PARTRIDGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
122.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
Norcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
CENTURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
Cirencester

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
Keepers

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
Kingshill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
PARTRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
52b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
Preston Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
113.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
Farmhouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
112.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
Wychwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
Ermin

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
Forge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
112.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
Beechnut

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
The Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
17a to 17e

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
Village Farm Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
Dormans

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
Preston Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
Church Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
Preston

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
Hayden

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
The Pigeon

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
Osbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
Pear

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
Kelfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
Paddock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
Village Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
Cherrytrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
11 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
107.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
Forty

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
KINGSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
Kings Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
The Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
The Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
GRIFFITHS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
Craig a Don

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
NORTH HOME ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
FRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
Peckham Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
Superstore

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
ROSE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
Mulberry Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
BUNCOMBE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
GEGG CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
Cafe

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
River Churn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
Rosador

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
Gordon

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
Corbeirre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
Bennett Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
CROSS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
MIDDLE MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
SHILHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
103.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
Penarth

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
GILLMAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
OVENS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
Legg Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
A 419

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
BISHOP MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
Lonsdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
Mortimer

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
Rosetrevor

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
Meadowside

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
Greystones

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
CHERRY TREE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
CLIFFORD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
A 429

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
CRICKLADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
CRICKLADE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
ZACHARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
PRICE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
Casita

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
Elfin House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
BREWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
Matthews Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
SWINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
Ermin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
Craig

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
122.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
121.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
NEW MILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
GOLDEN FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
123.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
95a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
Watermoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
MILLENNIUM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
A 417

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
2O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
ORPET PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
FOSSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
PARTRIDGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
122.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
Norcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
CENTURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
Cirencester

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
Keepers

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
KINGSHILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
Kingshill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
CRABTREE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
Playing Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
PARTRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
52b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
KINGSHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
PHEASANT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
MIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
HA1-54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
HA1-54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
KES-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
3B89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
KES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
2B61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
4B130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
3B89C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
4B-119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
4B130


This page is intentionally left blank



PLAN|A

Our ref:  AP/P/L-040A
Your ref: 24/02854/0UT

01285 643644
info@plan-a-planning.co.uk
Martin Perks www.plan-a-planning.co.uk

Cotswold District Council

For the attention of Martin Perks

25" November 2024

Dear Martin,

LAND WEST OF KINGSHILL LANE CIRENCESTER GLOUCESTERSHIRE GL7 1HS — APPLICATION NO.
24/02854/0UT — OBJECTION TO OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF PRESTON
PARISH COUNCIL

Plan-A Planning & Development Ltd have been instructed by our client, Preston Parish Council, to
make representations in respect of the application — reference 24/02854/0UT - submitted in
conjunction with the above site for:

Residential development for up to 280 dwellings, associated works including infrastructure,
ancillary facilities, open space, landscaping and pumping station. Construction of a new
vehicular access off Kingshill Lane (Outline application)

The application was received on the 24" September 2024 and validated on the 215t October 2024 with
a consultation expiry date of the 28" November 2024. The application site has a detailed planning
history. This application is the resubmission of an outline planning application which was refused on
27th September 2023 (23/01597/0UT) by Cotswold District Council with seven reasons for refusal. An
appeal to this application was lodged but withdrawn on 23rd May 2024, to which we submitted a
separate objection on behalf of Preston Parish Council.

The application site itself relates to a group of agricultural fields in open countryside adjacent to the
eastern edge of the settlement of Cirencester. The site measures approximately 13.49 hectares in size
and primarily consists of arable fields bordered by hedgerows and trees. The site occupies a sloping
area of land which rises approximately 14-15m from its south to its north.

The site is an unallocated site and for housing purposes would be a ‘windfall’ site. The site should be
seen in context within the agricultural landscape lying between Cirencester and the village of Preston
and as contributing positively to the rural setting of both settlements.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, —
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, 45 RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) 4!‘?/ Chartered Town Planner

Page 99 company No: 7044338



Public Consultation
We are surprised that the applicant has not sought to undertake further public consultation given:

a) The level of public interest in the previous application and subsequent appeal; and,

b) The new rationale that the applicant is relying upon in relation to the Council’s adopted
housing numbers.

We respectfully request that the current application is withdrawn to allow for a full public consultation
and for the applicant to outline the details of the application.

Principle of Development

The development plan is at the heart of the planning system with a requirement set in law that
planning decisions must be taken in line with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Plans set out a vision and a framework for the future development of the area,
addressing needs and opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, community facilities and
infrastructure — as well as a basis for conserving and enhancing the natural and historic environment,
mitigating and adapting to climate change, and achieving well designed places.

The starting point for an assessment of the application site is the current development plan for the
District which, in this instance, consists of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and the Preston
Neighbourhood Plan 2020-2031 (adopted May 2021).

The application site is an unallocated site located outside of the Cirencester Development Boundary
and outside of a Non-Principal Settlement. The site sits within the Parish of Preston. The adopted
Preston Neighbourhood Plan identifies that the parish lies at a critically important location. Its
immediate proximity to Cirencester forms a major constituent of one of the ‘green wedge’
approaches. The adopted local plan recognises that the ‘green wedges’ are particular characteristics
of Cirencester when approaching the town from various directions.

Like the previous application and subsequent withdrawn appeal, the current application is also
considered to be premature and prejudicial to the Local Plan Review process. The Local Plan Review
process it as an early stage and as such consideration of the application scheme is not considered to
be consistent with the Local Plan Review process.

Furthermore, as will become clear, the Council are able to demonstrate more than a 5-year housing
land supply and as such the Council’s housing needs can be met from sites within Development
Boundaries or Non-Principal Settlement’s.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, y —-
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Af RT P I
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) % Chartered Town Planner

Page 100company No: 7044338



Residential Development in this location

The erection of new build open market housing on the application site is subject to several
Development Plan policies.

Local Plan Policy DS4 states that new-build open market housing will not be permitted outside
Principal and Non-Principal Settlements unless it is in accordance with other policies that expressly
deal with residential development in such locations. In respect of Local Plan Policy DS4, the supporting
text to the policy states at 6.4.4 that the policy is intended to preclude, in principle, the development
of speculative newbuild open market housing which, for strategic reasons, is not needed in the
countryside. At paragraph 6.4.5, any land that falls outside Development Boundaries and Non-
Principal Settlements is referred to as countryside, even if it is technically previously developed land.

The application scheme will result in the erection of speculative, open market dwellings, in the
countryside contrary to Policy DS4 of the Local Plan. In contrast, the Local Plan development strategy
for the District seeks to direct new build residential development to sites within Development
Boundaries (Policy DS2), or in the case of small scale residential development, within Non-Principal
Settlements such as villages and hamlets (Policy DS3).

The Council's housing needs for the Local Plan period — to 2031 - can be addressed through the
provision of housing within such locations. The Council can demonstrate a robust supply of deliverable
housing land at the present time (7.2 years) and as such there is no overriding need to release further
land for new build open market housing outside such areas. It is not therefore sustainable to release
further land for such development when the Council's housing needs can be met within Development
Boundaries or Non-Principal Settlements. The application scheme is not considered to meet the
requirements of either Local Plan Policy DS2: Development within Development Boundaries nor Policy
DS3: Small Scale Residential Development in Non-Principal Settlements. There is therefore a strong
policy presumption against the erection of new build open market dwellings on the site.

The current proposal is in conflict with the Council's development strategy with regard to the location
of new open market housing. The District is on course to deliver approximately 9,671 dwellings over
the plan period through the existing development strategy without a need to grant planning
permissions for further dwellings in locations that are contrary to the strategy. The figure of 9,671
dwellings is in excess of the objectively assessed need for 8,400 dwellings agreed by the Local Plan
Inspector. The strategy is therefore delivering a level of housing in excess of the needs set out in the
Local Plan. It is noted that the Government wishes to boost significantly the supply of homes.
However, it is also of note that paragraph 60 of the NPPF states that 'it is important that a sufficient
amount and variety of land can come forward where it is needed'. The Council's Development Strategy
seeks to both boost significantly the supply of homes in the Local Plan period and to direct new homes
to locations where they are needed in accordance with the aspirations of Paragraph 60.

The weight that can be given to the erection of new housing in this location, when the Council's land
supply position is significantly in credit, is considered to be very limited. The current development
boundary was drawn in order to ensure that future development would be proportionate to the level
of services on offer in the settlement during the Local Plan period. The development boundary ensures
that development in the Local Plan period will be at a level appropriate for the services and facilities
on offer. The release of land for residential development in an ad hoc manner around Cirencester

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 10&ompany No: 7044338



would potentially threaten the balance of the settlement and the long term strategy for the town
which has been deemed to be acceptable through the Local Plan examination process; which is at an
early stage.

Furthermore, provision has been made for the delivery of 2,350 dwellings on land to the south of
Cirencester (16/00054/0UT). The Local Plan has therefore made provision for a significant level of
new housing adjacent to the settlement in order to meet the needs of both the town and the District
as a whole. Furthermore, the application site along with a parcel of land to its south-west have been
assessed as part of the Council's Strategic Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment
(SHELAA) process. The document titled 'Strategic Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment
(2021)" gives the application site reference C80 and the land to its south-west reference C185. The
summary section of the aforementioned report states the following in relation to the two sites: 'The
development of either site would be a significant eastwards extension of Cirencester and would lose
agricultural land.

Both sites have 'High / medium' landscape sensitivity, primarily because of their open nature and their
prominent position, which is highly visible to users of the A419 to the south. The development would
also cause a level of harm to the historic environment. However, there are also opportunities for
enhancements that the development could bring. Recommendation C80 is a candidate for further
consideration for allocation for residential development in the Local Plan. C185 is unsuitable for
residential development but may be considered as part of the development of the adjacent land in
order to deliver some of the planning benefits associated with the wider scheme.'

It is evident that the application site is one that could be considered for allocation as part of the Local
Plan review or in future versions of the Local Plan. However, such consideration will have regard to
the strategic implications arising from the level of development proposed, future housing needs and
the availability of alternative sites. It is appropriate that developments of this size are assessed in a
strategic manner as part of the Local Plan process rather than as ad hoc standalone development
proposals. The SHELAA assessment does not therefore indicate that the site is one that should be
released without further consideration and examination as part of the Local Plan process; it is
understood that this is still at a very early stage. It is considered therefore that the application scheme
conflicts with the Council's development strategy insofar as the location of new build open market
housing is concerned.

It is noted that the applicant is relying upon engaging the tilted balance as set out in paragraph 11d of
the NPPF to justify the development proposal in the absence of a five-year housing land supply. The
applicant is seeking to argue that because of the proposed changes to the NPPF and in particular the
Standard Method, the Council’s annual housing land supply position should be 3.81 years.

It is considered that the Council’s current housing land supply figure is of 7.2 years is reliable, and that
it demonstrates that there is no overriding need to release further land for new build open market
housing. If the applicant’s figure of 3.81 years were applied and the tilted balance engaged, it is
considered that planning permission should not be granted as the public benefits of the scheme do
not outweigh the adverse impacts.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 102Zcompany No: 7044338



Green Buffer/Coalesence/Landscape Sensitivity

Appendix 1 below incorporates relevant planning policies from the Development Plan as well as
excerpts from the SHELAA Review (Strategic Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment
Update, October 2021). The Preston Parish Design Statement (PPDS) (adopted 26" April 2017) is also
considered to this objection, partially because approximately 50% of the village of Preston responded
to the questionnaire distributed in October 2015 that sought to direct the direction of the design

statement.

Page 4 of the PPDS considers that despite its proximity to Cirencester, the fact that most of the land
is arable farmland and subject to rotational cropping helps to maintain the distinctly rural feel of the

parish. Within the village of Preston, the farmland “gap” in the middle also helps add to that rurality.

Furthermore, Page 9 of the PPDS relates that the village is surrounded by farm land and there are still
some large green spaces along the village’s single street which contribute to giving the village its rural

and tranquil feel.

Page 13 of the PPDS provides an important summary. It states that in response to the questionnaire,
that had a response rate of approximately 50%, the respondents valued the existing rural atmosphere
in the Village and Parish and particularly valued the “greenbelt” between the Western extremity of
the village of Preston and the Eastern extremity of Cirencester which, therefore, needs to be preserved
in order to ensure retention of the rural “atmosphere” and individual identities. A photo referencing

the rural buffer between Preston Village and Cirencester is provided at the bottom of Page 13.

It is recognised that this document is informal planning guidance and not formally part of the
Development Plan. However, what it shows is the high value that is placed by residents on the existing
rural buffer between Preston Village and Cirencester. A response rate of approximately 50% is high
for a questionnaire of this type, and this goes to show the relevance of strategic planning policies such

as Local Plan Policy DS4.

In the SHELAA Review of the application site, C80, is considered to have a High/Medium landscape
sensitivity. The original outline application was accompanied by a Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (March 2023). The LVIA overall identifies that the significance of visual effects would be
moderate adverse at year 1 and moderate/slight adverse once planting of new green infrastructure

has been established. In contrast, in relation to the previously refused application (these comments

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 108ompany No: 7044338



are considered extremely relevant to the determination of the current application), the Council’s
Landscape Officer stated that the site provides visual separation between the built edge of Cirencester
and Preston and this is apparent from the footpaths to the east and the A419. Furthermore, the officer
stated that the LVIA is reliant on a robust landscape mitigation scheme and that he has concerns
regarding the housing density proposed and the strength of the green infrastructure provided across

the site.

It is interesting and relevant to note that in relation to the current planning application, the Council’s
conservation officer has recommended refusal of the application. In relation to Kingshill Lane, it is
considered that the proposed development, by bringing the suburban sprawl all the way east to
Kingshill Lane, would radically erode and suburbanise the still predominantly rural character of the
lane. In relation specifically to the Preston Conservation Area, it is noted that the significance of the
Preston Conservation Area rests in part in the character and history of Preston as a small, rural, distinct
settlement. As such, both its rural, agricultural setting, and its separation from nearby Cirencester,
are aspects of the conservation area’s character and setting that contribution positively to this
significance. The officer concludes by stating that the proposed development, both by the further
encroachment of suburban development towards the rural settlement, and the halving in width of the
green buffer/corridor that separates the two settlements, would harmfully erode aspects of Preston’s
distinct character and setting that contribute positively towards its significance. The level of harm

would be less-than substantial but would be moderate.

Based upon an assessment of the relevant Development Plan policies, the comments made by the
Council’s Conservation Officer on the current application, and the position adopted by the Council’s
Landscape Officer on the previous application, we consider that the application site constitutes an
important area of green space that contributes positively to the rural setting of Cirencester and to the
rural character and appearance of the parish of Preston. The site acts as a green wedge between the

two settlements and plays an important strategic role.

The introduction of development of the size now proposed onto the site would eat away at this wedge
and result in a coalescence of the two settlements. It would result in a significant extension of the
eastern edge of Cirencester. The parish of Preston is composed mainly of countryside with scattered
dwellings and small businesses. The A417 effectively severs the north and south of the parish from
each other. Due to the sloping nature of the site, the proposed development would be readily visible

from a number of public vantage points in the area. Views of the development will not therefore be

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 104company No: 7044338



limited to local views. Due to the scale of the proposals, the application scheme would take the form
of a large urban extension into the open countryside, severing the green wedge between the

settlements. Set against the skyline it would appear prominent and legible as a large urban extension.

Conclusion

As has been identified, it is our view that the application proposals will result in the erection of new-
build open market housing on an unallocated, windfall site, outside a Principal or Non-Principal

Settlement contrary to Policy DS4 of the Local Plan.

Furthermore, due to the scale of the proposals, it is considered that the development would take the
form of a large urban extension into the open countryside, severing the existing green wedge between
the settlements. Set against the skyline it would appear prominent and legible as a large urban
extension. In addition, the application proposals are considered to have an adverse impact on heritage

assets.

We respectfully request therefore that the application is refused on the basis of the overriding

evidence that the proposals are contrary to the relevant planning policies and material considerations.

Yours sincerely,

John Vale BSc (Hons) MSc

Associate Director
Email: jv@plan-a-planning.co.uk

PLAN—A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue,
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, RT P I
Cirencester, GL7 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i T Diakies

Page 10Bompany No: 7044338



Appendix 1

Relevant Planning Policy
PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 confirms that where
determination is to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In
this case the Development Plan comprises the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and the
Preston Neighbourhood Development Plan, although the NPPF also represents a material

consideration.

Cotswold District Local Plan to 2031

Policy DS4 — Open Market Housing Outside Principal and Non-Principal Settlements

1.2 This policy states that new-build open market housing will not be permitted outside Principal
and Non-Principal Settlements unless in accordance with other policies which allow for such

development.

Policy H1 — Housing Mix and Tenure to Meet Local Needs

1.3 Under the terms of this policy, all housing developments will be expected to provide a suitable
mix and range of housing in terms of size, type and tenure to reflect local housing need and
demand in both the market and affordable housing sectors (subject to viability). Furthermore,
proposals of more than 20 dwellings will also normally be expected to provide 5% of dwelling

plots as serviced self or custom build plots.

Policy H2 — Affordable Housing

14 This policy identifies that all housing developments that provide 11 or more dwellings (or
which have a combined floorspace of over 1,000sgm), will be expected to contribute towards
affordable housing provision. Subject to viability, brownfield sites should make a contribution
of up to 30% of new dwellings. However, a financial contribution in lieu of on-site provision
may be considered acceptable where the need for affordable housing can be better satisfied
through this route. The type, size, mix and tenure split are to be agreed with the Council and
should be distributed across the development. Where viability is questioned, or a commuted
sum considered, an open book assessment will be required and will be subject to an external

assessment paid for by the developer.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 106company No: 7044338



Policy EN1 — Built, Natural and Historic Environment

15 This policy seeks to ensure that new development will, where appropriate, promote the
protection, conservation and enhancement of the historic and natural environment. The
policy’s criteria include a requirement to ensure that design standards compliment the

character of the area and the sustainable use of the development.

Policy EN2 — The Built Environment

16 This policy is supportive of development which accord with the updated Cotswold Design
Code. The policy requires that proposals should be of a design quality that respects the

character and distinctive appearance of the locality.

1.7 The revised Cotswold Design Code emphasises the importance of designing development that
either follows an authentic vernacular and traditional approach in line with local architectural
character, or that it is designed in a high quality contemporary and innovative manner which
reflects and respects local character. The plan recognises that the decision as to whether to
adopt a traditional or contemporary approach will depend on the type of development

proposed, the site and its setting.

Policy EN4 — The Wider Natural and Historic Landscape

1.8 Policy EN4 of the Local Plan states that development will be permitted where it does not have
a significant detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape (including the
tranquillity of the countryside) of Cotswold District or neighbouring areas. This policy requires
that proposals will take account of landscape and historic landscape character, visual quality
and local distinctiveness. They will be expected to enhance, restore and better manage the
natural and historic landscape, and any significant landscape features and elements, including

key views, settlement patterns and heritage assets.

Policy EN7 — Trees, Hedgerows and Woodlands

1.9 This policy stipulates that, where trees, woodland or hedgerows are to be removed as part of
development, compensatory planting will be required and should have regard for the

potential for new or extended woodland to assist in carbon storage.

Policy EN8 — Biodiversity and Geodiversity: Features Habits and Species

1.10 This policy confirms that development will be permitted which conserves and enhances

biodiversity and, where possible, provides net gains. Proposals that promote the creation,

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 10@ompany No: 7044338



restoration and beneficial management of ecological networks, habitats and features will also

be permitted, particularly in areas subject to landscape-scale biodiversity initiatives.

Local Plan Policy EN10 Designated Heritage Assets

1.11  States that:

1 In considering proposals that affect a designated heritage asset or its setting, great weight
will be given to the asset's conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be.

2 Development proposals that sustain and enhance the character, appearance and
significance of designated heritage assets (and their settings), and that put them to viable

uses, consistent with their conservation, will be permitted.

3 Proposals that would lead to harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset or its
setting will not be permitted, unless a clear and convincing justification of public benefit can
be demonstrated to outweigh that harm. Any such assessment will take account, in the
balance of material considerations: - The importance of the asset; - The scale of harm; and -

The nature and level of the public benefit of the proposal.

Local Plan Policy EN11 Designated Heritage Assets - Conservation Areas

1.12  States that:

Development proposals, including demolition, that would affect Conservation Areas and their

settings, will be permitted provided they:

a. Preserve and where appropriate enhance the special character and appearance of the
Conservation Area in terms of siting, scale, form, proportion, design, materials and the

retention of positive features;

b. Include hard and soft landscape proposals, where appropriate, that respect the character

and appearance of the Conservation Area;

c. Will not result in the loss of open spaces, including garden areas and village greens, which
make a valuable contribution to the character and/or appearance, and/or allow important

views into or out of the Conservation Area.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue,  —=
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, A%i:? RT P I
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i 4—‘5" Chartered Town Planner

Page 108:ompany No: 7044338



d. Have regard to the relevant Conservation Area appraisal (where available); and e. do not
include internally illuminated advertisement signage unless the signage does not have an

adverse impact on the Conservation Area or its setting.'

Policy INF2 — Social and Community Infrastructure

1.13  This policy sets out the necessary provisions which should accompany community facilities
(including open space) required as a consequence of development proposals. In particular,
provision of community facilities should be synchronised with the delivery of the
development; accessible to the local community on foot, bicycle or by public transport; and

provision made for the ongoing management/maintenance of the facility.

Policy INF4 — Highway Safety

1.14  This policy outlines that development will be permitted so long as it provides safe and suitable

access that is well integrated with the existing transport network.

Policy INF5 — Parking Provision

1.15 This policy seeks to ensure that developments for new residential properties comply with the

corresponding parking standards and associated guidance.

Policy INF7 — Green Infrastructure

1.16  This policy confirms that, where appropriate, development proposals should contribute to the

delivery of new Green Infrastructure and link to the wider Green Infrastructure network.

Preston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2020-2031
Policy 1: Preston Countryside and Landscape 'Other than within the AONB, new development should
where appropriate promote the following:

i. Replanting non-native tree plantations with native broadleaved native species as part
of the woodland succession planting;

ii. Avoiding unsympathetic new woodland planting including new dense linear
shelterbelts, particularly in character areas 4a, 4b and 5, which would enclose the
character of the landscape at points where it is currently open;

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, y —
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, ;\5 RT P I
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) s%‘/ Chartered Town Planner

Page 108ompany No: 7044338



iii. Managing existing shelterbelts with selective thinning to retain native specimens and
open up views below their canopies; maintaining dry-stone wall boundaries and
restore any in disrepair;

iv. Restoring historic hedgerow lines;

iv. Maintaining the existing network of open ditches and streams to ensure continuity of
irrigation to fields and surface water management to grass and agricultural fields;

v. Protecting open views between buildings of Preston's agricultural setting when
viewed from the village main street (Witpit Lane);

vi. Establishing a pedestrian link using the route of the old railway line to create a public
footpath which connects the whole of the parish on a north/south axis;

viii. Resolving footpath links across the dual carriageway to improve connectivity across
the parish.

Policy 2: Design 'Proposals for new development, including extensions to existing buildings, and
conversions of farm buildings, should be of the highest design standards in accordance with the
relevant policies of the Cotswold District Local Plan, including the Cotswold Design Code.

Proposals should have specific regard to the following conclusions derived from the Design in
Preston Design Statement (2017):

i) Publicly accessible green spaces (such as the formal spaces around community
infrastructure and incidental spaces such as grass verges) within the village built-up area
should be retained if possible.

ii) Proposals should use locally characteristic building materials, for example Cotswold
stone and reconstituted Cotswold stone for walling, roofing and timber for windows and
doors, where appropriate.

iii) Properties should have high quality boundary features, such as hedges and Cotswold
Stone walls where appropriate, particularly where these are visible from public vantage
points

In addition to the SHELAA assessment, the application site has also been assessed as part of Preston
Neighbourhood Plan, which states:

‘Sensitive receptors are the users of the Country park, the village residents, users of Kingshill Lane
and of the public footpath which runs east to west along the north of this area, and users of the A419
Ermin Way. Views of the Kingshill Meadow estate are prominent on the approach to Cirencester,
although the presence of the recently established parkland along the road will create screening to
this development in the longer term. For any proposed development to be considered appropriate in
this sub-area, it would need to retain the open agricultural character of the landscape, ensure the
identity of the village of Preston to be retained as a separate settlement and with its own countryside
setting, maintain the visual amenity of PROWSs, and ensure that the green wedge approach to
Cirencester is retained. It would be appropriate if the existing country park along the Ermin Way is
extended to the east.’

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 110company No: 7044338



Paragraph 44 of the Neighbourhood Plan states: '44. Since its first settlement, Preston village has
maintained a separate identity from other villages in the area, particularly Cirencester. Villagers have
demonstrated their passion for retaining Preston's separate identity throughout the NDP
consultation. The importance to them of retaining this - geographically in terms of built development,
and socially in terms of preserving a village where people know and like one another - was stressed
time and time again during public consultation. What residents fear the most is the coalescence of
Preston with Cirencester and a merging of the two areas'.

Paragraphs 59 and 60 go on state: '59. The character of Cirencester is strongly informed by areas of
open landscape which, through varying degrees of parkland and agricultural character, reach close
to the town centre from several directions, principally from the west (Bathurst estate), the north-east
(Abbey Home Farm estate) and the south-east (Preston parish & Kingshill Country Park) 9 . The
largely unspoilt agricultural section of the parish serves this important ‘green wedge' purpose, which
is described by the Local Plan as follows: 'The "green wedges' and views of [Cirencester] Parish Church
tower, are particular characteristics of Cirencester when approaching the town from various
directions.' (para 7.2.3)

60. In this context, Preston Parish lies at a critically important location. Its immediate proximity to
Cirencester forms a major constituent of one of the 'green wedge' approaches (particularly Area 4b).
It also emphasises by contrast to the open views of the urban town itself, the importance of the
parish as an open landscape setting to the largest of the Cotswold towns'.

2021 SHELAA Review

Since the adoption of the Cotswold Local Plan, the appeal site has been assessed as part of the recent
SHELAA Review (Strategic Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment Update, October 2021)

and was given the reference C80.

The assessment notes that:

i) The parcel was assessed as part of the ‘Study of land surrounding Key Settlements in
Cotswold District Update, Additional Sites: Final Report” (Cotswold District Council and
White Consultants, October 2014) report. The description provided for this parcel is

reproduced below and remains an appropriate description;

ii) The site comprises of three arable fields with moderately regular boundaries on the sloping
valley sides of the River Churn. The field boundaries are low cut hedges running along the
slopes but a mixture of low hedge and fence along Kingshill Lane to the east. The site is
therefore open. The western boundary is open abutting a line of pylons and power lines
which are a detractor. Beyond this to the west is the recently constructed Kingshill

development which has been built reflecting vernacular forms and has a moderately varied

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 11&ompany No: 7044338



structure and a positive edge, though unmitigated with vegetation at present. There is a
public footpath running along the slope through the site. To the east there is a young mixed
tree belt. To the south, the site abuts the relatively open floodplain and views are possible
across this from the busy A419(T) which also reduces tranquillity through movement and
noise. A sports building and low floodlights are visible on the skyline to the north of the
site. Listed buildings lie at Preston Forty Farm to the south and Preston Conservation Area

lies to the east beyond the tree belt’

iii) C80 evaluation: High/Medium The landscape sensitivity given to the parcel as part of its
inclusion within the ‘Study of land surrounding Key Settlements in Cotswold District
Update, Additional Sites: Final Report” (Cotswold District Council and White Consultants,
October 2014) report was High/Medium. The justification provided for this rating is
reproduced below and remains an appropriate justification for the parcel’s landscape

sensitivity:

iv) The site is susceptible to change because it is open and lies on a prominent slope highly
visible to users of the A419 to the south. Development on this site would be a major
extension of built form into open countryside. The presence of the sports facilities to the
north are not sufficient justification for a major built extension as they are relatively low
key in nature. The power lines provide a logical boundary to the built form and the new
development will provide a positive edge once landscape planting is established”; and in

summary states that

)] The development of either site would be a significant eastwards extension of Cirencester
and would lose agricultural land. Both sites have ‘High / medium’ landscape sensitivity,
primarily because of their open nature and their prominent position, which is highly visible
to users of the A419(T) to the south. The development would also cause a level of harm to
the historic environment. However, there are also opportunities for enhancements that

the development could bring

With regard to the historic environment, the SHELAA states:

Historic Environment (excluding archaeology) These comments are made on the basis of a
desktop and site survey conducted by a Principal Planning Policy Officer. A full historic
environment or heritage assessment would be required of any development proposal. The 350
dwelling planning application on C80 included a response from the Council's Conservation

Officer. The issues identified are relevant to both sites and included:

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, =
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, Jé}-ﬁ? RT PI
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i :‘{7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 11Zcompany No: 7044338



0 Preservation of the character of Kingshill Lane, which is a predominantly rural road. The
development will encroach on the boundary of the lane and will potentially suburbanise the

character of this part of the lane, which would be an adverse impact.

0 Forty Farm is located to the south-east of the site. There are two Grade Il Listed buildings
associated with the farmstead, the Farmhouse and the threshing barn. Other structures within
the site may be considered curtilage listed. The proposal was considered to cause harm to the

significance of the listed building and its setting.

o0 Setting of Preston Village, Conservation Area and associated listed buildings to the east -
Preston village is located to the south-east of the site. The historic core of the village contains
several buildings that are Grade | and Il listed including All Saints Church. The core of the village
is also located within a Conservation Area. The response identified that the proposal for 375
houses would not provide capacity to introduce appropriate buffers and tree screening from
the southern and eastern boundaries in order to protect the setting of listed buildings including
the setting of Forty Farm and also the Preston Conservation Area. Nor did the proposal appear
to provide capacity for suitable public amenity space. This would need to be addressed if the

site were allocated in the Local Plan.

The development of either site would be a significant eastwards extension of Cirencester and
would lose agricultural land. Both sites have 'High / medium' landscape sensitivity, primarily
because of their open nature and their prominent position, which is highly visible to users of
the A419(T) to the south. The development would also cause a level of harm to the historic
environment. However, there are also opportunities for enhancements that the development
could bring.' The open agricultural character of the existing site contributes to the rural setting
of the listed buildings to its south and the village of Preston to its east. The SHELAA identifies
that the proposed eastwards extension of Cirencester would result in harm to the historic

environment.

PLAN-A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue,  —=
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, A%i:? RT P I
ClrenCGSter, GL? 1QG GL7 2HB (Registered Office) i 4—‘5" Chartered Town Planner

Page 118ompany No: 7044338



PLAN—A PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 1 Bowling Green Avenue, _—
Phoenix House, Phoenix Way Cirencester, Gloucestershire, 4.' RT Pl
Cirencester, GL7 1QG GLT7 2HB (Registered Office) -7 Chartered Town Planner

Page 114company No: 7044338



Agenda Item 9

Removal of stables, erection of a dwelling with associated works including
parking, landscaping, and new access at The Saddlery Kineton Guiting Power
Gloucestershire GL54 5UG

Full Application

24/03111/FUL
Applicant: The President and Scholars of Corpus Christi College
Agent: Fowler Architecture & Planning Ltd
Case Officer: Helen Cooper
Ward Member(s): Councillor Len Wilkins
Committee Date: 11 June 2025
RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT

1. Main Issues:

(@) Principle of development

(b) Design and Impact upon Heritage Assets
(c) Landscape Impact
(
(

d)  Impact upon Residential Amenity
e) Biodiversity

4 Highways

2. Reasons for Referral:

2.1 ClIr Len Wilkins has requested that the application be considered by the
Planning and Licensing Committee for the following reasons:

2.1.1 In breach of DS3- In the pre-applications it was noted that it would fall
down against criteria (b) and (c)

2.1.2 In breach of DS4 - outside development boundaries and Non-Principle
settlements

2.1.3 In breach of EN1 - damage to the environment and AONB

2.1.4 In breach of EN2 - not in Cotswold vernacular in breach of EN4 - Will
cause significant detrimental impact on landscape, and wildlife

2.1.5 In breach of EN5 - Conservation of ANOB

Page 115



3.1

3.2

3.3

N/A

2.1.6 In breach of EN8 - Biodiversity - will affect wildlife. This needs an
independent view. Much wildlife within 100 meters and used in the
evening by wildlife to move around the village.

2.1.7 In breach of Section 16 - NPFF loss of significance of heritage assets will
detract from the character of existing development. Opposite two listed
buildings. Amenity.

2.1.8 The Saddlery is an important amenity to the villagers and to Cotswold
residents. It is the only Saddlery for miles around and is used for liveries,
riding lessons and for children, including those with learning difficulties
to learn about rural life.

Site Description:

The application site consists of a parcel of agricultural/equestrian land located
within the southern part of the village of Kineton. The site is located west of the
road leading through the village and the site is slightly elevated in relation to
the dwellings located on the other side of the road. A traditional Cotswold stone
wall forms the eastern boundary treatment at the site and this is set on top of
a grass bank adjacent to the road. A single storey stable block is currently
located at the site and this is set adjacent to the south boundary. Two large
agricultural buildings lie to the south of the site on the adjacent piece of land.
Greenback Cottage, lies to the immediate north of the application site and open
fields lie to the west of the site. A pond is currently sited to the front of the
stable block.

The village constitutes a Non-Principal Settlement as designated in the
Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031. There are several listed buildings in

proximity to the site, which lie on the other side of the road.

The site lies within the Cotswolds National Landscape. The footpath Temple
Guiting Footpath 21" also lies to the south.

Relevant Planning History:

Planning Policies:
e NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

e EN1 Built, Natural & Historic Environment
e EN2 Design of Built & Natural Environment

Page 116



6.1

6..2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

e EN4 The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape
e EN5 Cotswolds AONB

e EN7 Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands

e EN8 Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species
e ENT0 HE: Designated Heritage Assets

e EN15 Pollution & Contaminated Land

e DS3 Small-scale Res Dev non-Principal Settle
e INF4 Highway Safety

e INF5 Parking Provision

Observations of Consultees:

Public Rights of Way Officer: Development does not appear to affect the nearby
PRoW.

Biodiversity Officer: Following the submission of additional information no
objection raised subject to conditions.

Arboricultural Officer: No objection subject to condition.

GCC Highways: No objection subject to condition

Conservation Officer: Following amendments, no objection subject to condition
View of Town/Parish Council:

Temple Guiting Parish Council held a site visit on December 11th 2024 to review
the planning application for a new 3 bedroom house on land currently the site
of stables adjoining Greenbank Cottage, Kineton GL54 5UG.

Background: The application had been submitted to CDC for pre-application
aavice. The applicant was advised that permission would be refused in it's form
at the time. Plans were then apparently modified although information about
these changes was not available to councillors or residents. Having reviewed
the plans and discussed the details with Mark Pettit Temple Guiting Parish
Councillors decided unanimously to object to this application for the following
reasons:

1. Access
1.1 Access to the proposed building would involve a second driveway very

close to the current driveway for Greenbank. There is potential for
dangerous situations when vehicles attempt to enter or exit the site in

Page 117



2.1

2.2

23

24

close proximity. The driveway to the proposed house would be very
steep. There is frequent traffic through Kineton village particularly during
holiday periods and at school drop off and collection times. The
popularity of the village pub creates a great deal of strain on the verges
as visitors park all along the road leading to much reduced visibility, as
well as restricting an already narrow road. Villagers are already aware of
one accident at the entrance to Greenbank Cottage.

Prominence and design

Councillors noted the contents of the Conservation Officer's report and
are highly supportive. The building is contrary to a number of Cotswold
District Local Plan policies including Policy DS3, which states that small-
scale development in non-principal settlements will be permitted
providing that it meets certain criteria, including that it: ‘complements
the form and character of the settlement.

Both from the public footpath and from the road, the house would be
extremely prominent, dwarfing the adjacent listed buildings. It would be
situated on top of a high bank and would dominate the edge of the
village, where currently buildings taper off. The barn next door is set
deep into the side of the field and so is less dominant. It is also screened
by large trees and, as a barn, is entirely consistent with a small Cotswolds
hamlet. The application states that the proposal will deliver
‘Enhancements to the appearance of the site and surrounding area,
through the removal of an existing stable building, and, one high-quality
home, which will make a positive contribution to the character of the
local area.’ Councillors noted that the current stables are small and rural,
typical of those found in villages across the Cotswolds. It makes a strong
contribution to the rural nature of Kineton. The proposed building, on
the other hand, does not contribute to the nature of a north Cotswold
habitation, rather it resembles an ‘executive’ home in a generic style
which would dominate rather than complement the hamlet.

Nor does the building help with the shortage of affordable housing in
the North Cotswolds. The Cotswold National Landscape Board policy
CE12.7 states that housing delivery .. 'should be focused on meeting
affordable housing requirements, particularly housing that is affordable
in perpetuity such as social rented housing'

Neither does it support Cotswold Local Plan policy EN4, which states that
development should take into account historic landscape character and

Page 118



25

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.7

local distinctiveness. This building does not appear to comply with these
requirements as it ignores the landscape character and the local design
and village format.

Policy EN5 states that within the A.O.N.B. and its setting, great weight
will be given to the conservation and enhancement of the natural beauty
of the landscape, its character and special qualities. The building does
not support this policy. Policy ENT10 reiterates the N.P.P.F.'s concern that
great weight should be given to the conservation of designated heritage
assets. It states that proposals that sustain the character, appearance and
significance of designated assets will be permitted, but that proposals
that would harm the significance of an asset or its setting would not
unless there was a public benefit. The setting of this proposal clearly
affects the setting of the heritage assets in Kineton with no mitigating
public benefit.

In section D of the Cotswold Design Code paragraph 10 states that
settlements are distinctive in how they sit within the landscape with their
layouts and patterns of streets. Any new development should reflect this
in its location and design. By siting this development at one of the
highest points in the village, the building does not fit with the existing
layout of the hamlet and it dominates the profile of the southern end of
the village.

Paragraph 13 states that the particular character of existing streets
should be respected, 'including gaps between buildings, which can often
be important. Paragraph D.14 states that in designing new
developments, attention should be paid to the site and its setting in
terms of density, grain, scale and form, as well as the architectural design
of the buildings, and to the landscaping around them. Both these
paragraphs can be applied here, as the gap between the last house in
the village and the (mostly hidden) barn is important in signifying the
edge of the hamlet and providing open views across fields.

The proposed style and materials of the timber boot room are not
consistent with the surrounding buildings, which either Cotswold stone
or reconstituted stone made to resemble Cotswold stone.

Size relative to the plot

Policy DS3 states that the development must be 'of proportionate scale
... 'yet this building and hardstanding would occupy approximately two

Page 119



4.1

5.7

6.7

7.1

8.1

thirds of the plot plus a further amount for the driveway. This lack of
context around the building would be contrary to the pattern of housing
in the hamlet one of the criteria included in Section D of the Cotswold
Design Code. It is also a major contributor to the large loss of biodiversity
which would be caused by the development

Glazing

The large amount of glazing facing directly onto the field containing a
public footpath is excessive and totally out of keeping with the local
architecture. It would be uncomfortable for anyone living in the house to
be exposed to walkers on the footpath.

Light pollution and biodiversity loss

Councillors noted the report from the Biodiversity officer which stated
that loss of biodjversity would be 57.65% (through loss of a tree and of
a ponad, two vital environmental features) and that there was no provision
for the mandatory 10% increase in biodiversity in the plans. The
replacement of 5 minute PIR timers with 1 minute timers and the
requirement for a lighting strategy to protect dark skies. A proposal to
mitigate for biodiversity loss outside the current site is concerning as the
local area would lose a valuable resource.

Inappropriate dormer windows

These do not comply with the Cotswold Design Standards and should be
omitted or revised.

Unspecified roofing materials

The roofing materials have not been specified but Cotswold stone tiles
should be a condition of the development.

Sustainability

Policy DS3 also states that the development must 'demonstrably
support(s) or enhance(s) the vitality of the local community and the
continued availability of services and facilities locally’ As there are no
local services and facilities other than a pub, (no shops no public
transport no health facilities) the development does not meet these

Page 120



7.3

74

criteria. The stables and pond which the proposal plans to remove have
however been used for therapeutic purposes for children.

Revised Drawings:

"Second consultee response from Temple Guiting Parish Council for planning
application, following revisions to the application 24/03111/FUL Removal of
stables, erection of a dwelling with associated works including parking,
landscaping, and new access

Temple Guiting Parish Council held a site visit on December 11th 2024 to review
the planning application for a new 3 bedroom house on land currently the site
of stables adjoining Greenbank Cottage, Kineton GL54 5UG. When the plans
were first made public, the Council decided to object strongly to the proposal.
The latest revisions have made the proposed development even less acceptable
and none of the PC's concerns have been addressed. The new plans add to the
existing list of concerns:

7. Location within the site and size

1.1 The new plans show the house sited closer to the neighbouring property
and still located above the neighbour. The house is large in comparison
to the neighbour, a property which was built several hundred years ago
and has been the home of the current owner for the past 45 years. The
revised plans make no attempt to reduce the size of the house, or the
height of the building, both issues identified by Temple Guiting Parish
Councillors.

1.2 The block plans do not show the location of Greenbank, the immediate
neighbour, so an informed judgement of the suitability of the proposed
building is difficult. The combined result is the proposed house has an
overbearing presence, out of proportion to the site and the other houses
in the hamlet. This further aggravates the PCs concerns regarding Policy
DS3, which states that the development must be ‘of proportionate scale
..."and that 'small-scale development in non-principal settlements will be
permitted providing that it meets certain criteria, including that it:
‘complements the form and character of the settlement’. In no way does
this ‘complement’ the form of the hamlet of Kineton.

1.3 Policy DS3 also states that the development must ‘demonstrably
support(s) or enhance(s) the vitality of the local community and the

Page 121



7.5

8.1

8.2

2.1

3.1

4.1

continued availability of services and facilities locally'. The proposal does
none of these.

Biodliversity loss

The reason that the house has been relocated seems to be to allow a
small pond to be located behind the house to compensate in some way
for the biodiversity loss noted by the Biodiversity Officer. However, the
location would not allow wildlife to survive as it would be in the shade
and very close to the house. In addition the house has a large footprint
on a small site. This does not allow scope for biodiversity but prioritises
parking. Temple Guiting Parish Council agrees with the Biodiversity
Officer in that this attempt does not compensate for the loss of
biodiversity which would be caused if this development were permitted.

Windows and light pollution

The new plans show much larger windows - some the full height of the
building. The PC's concerns regarding light pollution and the elimination
of dark skies and the impact of this on wildlife have not only not been
addressed, but have been increased by the revised plans.

Affordability

The proposal is still not for affordable housing. Temple Guiting Parish
Council listed eight (8) major concerns in its previous comments. There
were also 17 comments of objection from residents. The above 4 points
deal with additional concerns due to the changed site plan and design.

The PC have also included a copy of their original comments as outlined above.

Other Representations:

Approximately 27 representations of objection were received in relation to the
original proposal. In summary the concerns raised are as follows:

Principle

Site has been used by the family of the local saddler who have lived and
worked in the village for 45+ years. The saddlery has operated from the
workshop in the adjoining property for many years

Concern raised over loss of active stables in the village

Page 122



8.3

e Stables have provided a hub for people in the community with local people
keeping their horses at the site.

e Children from Cheltenham and Gloucester with special education needs and
intellectual disabilities have come to the stables to visit the ponies, ducks
and chickens. Many children have learnt to ride here

e Itis disappointing that the proposal does not relate to affordable housing

e Loss of important asset in the community

e Stables have provided a fundamentally important role in maintaining
community and its values in Kineton

e Proposal would destroy a key element of the village's history and add
nothing of use to the community in return

e Removal of the stables and pond would result in a loss of amenity as they
are used for therapy sessions with children.

e There is no real range of homes' in the village that would suit future
generations.

e How can the application accord with all the requirements of Policy DS3 when
in both pre-applications it was noted that it falls down against criteria b) and
Q).

e Considers site to fall outside of Kineton and the proposal fails to accord with
Policy DS4

Design

e Development would be at odds with the rural and transitional character of
this part of the settlement

e Proposed dwelling is much higher and wider than the existing stables

e Virtually no garden proposed

e Loss of gap in the village

e The proposal will create an urban feel

e It will dominate the plot with an excessively large building, a very small
garden and large drive way.

e Access will carve into a grass verge and remove traditional Cotswold stone
wall, loss of character

e Building is out of character with immediate neighbouring buildings

e Dwelling will be detrimental to the surrounding landscape, including views
from the neighbouring road and nearby PROW

e House will be elevated, should be single storey

e Design and materials are out of keeping with surrounding buildings

e The proposal looks to develop on the peripheries of the village which is
where so much of the original rural character and original buildings lie

e Encroachment of urban built form into the open countryside and fails to
conserve the special qualities and character of the part of the National

Page 123



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

Landscape contrary to Local Plan Policies EN1, EN2, EN4 and EN5 and
sections 12 and 15 of the NPPF

Residential Amenity

e Proposed development will have a detrimental impact on privacy and
sunlight to neighbouring properties.

e The new development will overlook Greenbank Cottage, looking into both
the garden and kitchen window

e Dwelling will overlook the two neighbouring properties to the north and
east, loss of amenity

e Private garden belonging to Kineton Place would be overlooked

Biodiversity

e Queries the accuracy of the Biodiversity report as there are several features
in proximity to the site

e Loss of habitat for wildlife

e The duck pond attracts all types of birds, frogs, toads, butterflies

e Concern raised over the loss of a tree

Highways

e Consider access to be insufficient, safety issues

e When the pub is busy cars park along the road and the loss of the verge
will lose valuable space for cars to park

e Speed limit is regularly exceeded at what is a pinch point in the road

Revised Drawings

8 Representations of objection have been received in relation to the amended
drawings. To summarise the following concerns have been raised:

Principle
e Loss of a much loved stable yard/local asset which the community have
benefitted from for over 40 years

e Should be an affordable house so a local family/resident stands a chance
of being able to buy it

Page 124



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

9.

Design

Revisions do not alleviate previous concerns. Detrimental visual impact on
the village

Impose on privacy and enjoyment of the neighbouring properties.
Overdevelopment of this important space

Height of the building will be overbearing in the surrounding area

Slight improvement in design, although extensive glazing will lead to loss of
privacy, light pollution.

West elevation is not in keeping with the area and will be visible from the
footpath

New position of the house is in the middle of the paddock and still two
stories in height, twice the width and height of the stables

Residential Amenity

Proposed design is trying to address objections about windows overlooking
neighbouring houses, results in windows facing the metal barn and doors
opening almost into the 'replacement pond'

Little outside amenity space to the rear of the property

Creation of the access will cause havoc due to the amount of excavation
required

Previous comments still valid, too close and overbearing towards the
neighbours

Development will overlook Greenbank Cottage impacting privacy

Invade privacy of Greenbank Cottage by looking directly into kitchen
window and garden

Biodiversity

Reducing the size of the pond and moving it to the east will not make up
for environmental loss

Highways

Additional driveway will be dangerous
Not sufficient room for a brand new driveway

Applicant’'s Supporting Information:

Drawings; BNG information; Design and Access Statement; Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal: Arboricultural Survey, Impact Assessment

Page 125



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

(a)

10.7

Officer's Assessment:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that 'If
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.'

The starting point for the determination of this application is therefore the
current development plan for the District which is the adopted Cotswold District
Local Plan 2011 - 2031.

The policies and guidance within the revised National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) are also a material planning consideration.

Background and Proposed Development

The application seeks full planning permission for the 'Removal of stables,
erection of a dwelling with associated works including parking, landscaping, and
new access'. The application has come forward following pre-application advice,
references 23/03489/PAYPRE and 23/02286/PAYPRE. The Conservation and
Design Officer has commented on the proposal during the planning application
process and this has led to further design amendments.

The proposed dwelling would be two storeys in height and agricultural in
character, with the proposed design reflective of a barn conversion, with large
timber doors and glazing along the front elevation. It would be set partially on
the existing footprint of the stable block and orientated so that the wider
frontage of the building faces north. The property would accommodate 3 no.
bedrooms.

The proposed access point will be in the northeast corner of the site and this
would involve some excavation work to the existing grass verge at the site.

Principle of Development

The application site lies within the village of Kineton. When considering the
sustainability of the location, the Cotswold District Local Plan sets out that:

"6.3.3 Due to the generally low levels of service provision, job opportunities and
public transport availability beyond the Principal Settlements, many of the 160+
villages and hamlets (rural settlements) are not sustainable locations for
residential development. Therefore, Development Boundaries have not been

Page 126



10.8

10.9

defined around rural settlements and no land has been specifically allocated for
residential development to help meet the District's objectively assessed needs
to 2031. Any development that accrues from this source will therefore be
‘windfalls’

"6.3.4 Some rural settlements, however, have greater sustainability credentials
than others and may, for example have ‘everyday’ facilities, such as a shop/
post office, a (non fee paying) school, and/or good public transport access to
neighbouring service / employment centres. Availability of everyday facilities is
important in reducing unnecessary traffic movements and engendering a sense

1

of community, which helps to prevent 'social isolation'

"In addlition, Paragraph 93 of the Report on the Examinations of the Cotswold
District Local Plan 20117- 2037 in which the Local Plan Inspector states "the
policy applies to any sites that could reasonably be considered to be any village
or hamlet in the district... what is important is that proposals comply with the
stated criteria which should ensure that the vitality of the local community is
supported, and that development is proportionate in scale to and complements
the form and character of the settlement having regard to cumulative impacts
with other developments”.

Kinetin is a modest village, comprising around 30 - 40 dwellings. The village
contains a public house, but does not contain any other services such as shops,
post office, or village/community hall. It is considered that Kineton can
reasonably be classed as a village, having regard to the findings of the Local
Plan Inspector. In addition, the presence of a public house contributes to the
vitality of the settlement and means that the village is more than just a collection
of dwellings.

Kineton is therefore considered to constitute a Non-Principal settlement. The
existing site is adjoined to the north by a residential properties and to the south
by agricultural buildings. The built form of the village lies to the east, and open
countryside to the west. The site currently contains an equestrian building and
yard and is not therefore within residential use. It is, however, noted that there
is a distinct western boundary separating the built form of the village from the
open countryside. As a result, the site is considered to be within the envelope
of the village. Local Plan Policy DS3 is therefore of relevance:

10.10 Local Plan Policy DS3 states:

7. In Non-Princijpal Settlements, small-scale residential development will
be permitted provided it:

Page 127



10.11

10.12

10.13

(a) demonstrably supports or enhances the vitality of the local
community and the continued availability of services and facilities
locally.

(b) is of a proportionate scale and maintains and enhances sustainable
patterns of development;

(c) complements the form and character of the settlement,

(d) does not have an adverse cumulative impact on the settlement
having regard to other developments permitted during the Local Plan
period.

The proposed development seeks the erection of one new, open-market
dwelling which could support the vitality of the local community and the
continued availability of services and facilities through additional residents.
Following a review of the Council's records, only 1 other dwelling
(24/02612/FUL) has been permitted within Kineton during the local plan period
following the removal of a holiday let use condition and as such it is considered
that there would therefore be no cumulative impacts on the settlement. It is
considered that criteria a and d are adequately satisfied by the proposal.

Criterion b and c requires development to maintain and enhance sustainable
patterns of development, and compliment the character of a settlement.
Kineton is a small rural settlement, with a scattered development pattern. Built
form is often separated by undeveloped open farmland which give the village
its rural identity. The western side of the village road where the site is located is
reflective of this, with limited residential properties interspersed by agricultural
fields and buildings. The design of the dwelling is considered in more detail
within the following section of the report, however, the amended design is
agricultural in appearance and respects the rural character of the village. On
balance the amended scheme is considered to complement the form and
character of the settlement and no conflict is identified respect of Policy DS3
criteria b) and ¢).

The site has historically been used to stable horses, and it is understood from
the representations received that some commercial activities have taken place
at the site in respect of do-it-yourself livery. In addition, it is apparent that
children/schools have visited the site to ride the horses and see other animals
at the duck pond. However, for the purposes of this application it should be
highlighted that the site does not have planning permission for an educational

Page 128



10.14

or commercial use. Policy INF2 'Social and community infrastructure' seeks to
protect community facilities and educational and sports facilities are listed
within the subtext of this policy as being a relevant facility. However, as this use
has never been formally authorised at the site through the planning process,
weight cannot be attributed to its loss in the overall planning balance and the
proposal is not required to satisfy Policy INF2 paragraph 2 in this instance.

Following the receipt of an amended design, it is considered that the proposed
development satisfies the requirements of policy DS3. Notwithstanding this, the
Local Planning Authority has to have regard to policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) when reaching a decision. The NPPF represents a
significant material consideration. In particular, it is noted that the December
2024 update of the NPPF introduced a new standard method for calculating
local housing need. Prior to the December changes to the NPPF, the Council
could demonstrate a 7.3 year supply of housing land. However, as a result of
the aforementioned changes, it is now anticipated that the Council will only be
able to demonstrate a 1.8-1.9 year supply. As the supply figure now falls below
5 years, it is necessary to have regard to paragraph 11 of the NPPF, which states:

"11. Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable
development,

For decision-taking this means:

¢) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a strong reason for refusing the development
proposeq; or

il. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework
taken as a whole having particular regard to key policies for directing
development to sustainable locations, making effective use of land, securing
well-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually or in
combination.”

Page 129



10.15

10.16

(b)

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Footnote 8 of the NPPF advises that 'out-of-date’ for the purposes of paragraph
11 includes ‘for applications involving the provision of housing, situations
where: the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of
deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer as set out in paragraph
78): or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of housing
was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirements over the
previous three years." In light of this guidance, it is considered that Local Plan
Policy DS3 is out-of-date at the present time (subject to confirmation in May)
and that paragraph 11 would be engaged in such circumstances.

The impact on protected areas having regard to criterion i is addressed in
subsequent sections of this report. With regard to criterion ii, the proposed
development would deliver a single dwelling within a settlement deemed to
benefit from reasonable access to everyday services, facilities either within the
settlement or at a neighbouring settlements. The delivery of a single dwelling
would offer a modest benefit, and the scheme would not result in conflict with
the NPPF paragraphs set out in Footnote 9. As such, the development would
not result in harm that would outweigh the benefits of the development, having
regard to criterion ii. Accordingly, the adverse impacts of the proposal would
not significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole.

Design and Impact on Heritage Assets

The application site is located within 30m of 'Kineton Farmhouse' a grade II
listed building and approximately 20 metres away from a grade II listed barn
which is set on the opposite side of the road to the south east of the site.

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that when considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the Local Planning
Authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses.

Considerable weight and importance must be given to the aforementioned
legislation.

Local Plan Policy EN1 seeks where appropriate, to promote the protection,
conservation and enhancement of the historic and natural environment.

Page 130



10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Local Plan Policy EN2 states that ‘Development will be permitted which accords
with the Cotswold Design Code. Proposals should be of design quality that
respects the character and distinctive appearance of the locality.’

Local Plan Policy EN10 states:

7 In considering proposals that affect a designated heritage asset or its
setting, great weight will be given to the asset's conservation. The more
important the asset, the greater the weight should be.

2 Development proposals that sustain and enhance the character,
appearance and significance of designated heritage assets (and their settings),
and that put them to viable uses, consistent with their conservation, will be
permitted.

3 Proposals that would lead to harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset or its setting will not be permitted, unless a clear and convincing

Justification of public benefit can be demonstrated to outweigh that harm. Any
such assessment will take account, in the balance of material considerations: -
The importance of the asset’ - The scale of harm, and - The nature and level of
the public benefit of the proposal.’

Section 16 of the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the historic environment.
Paragraph 199 states that when considering the impact of the proposed works
on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given
to the asset's conservation. Paragraph 213 states that any harm to or loss of
significance, through alteration or development within the asset's setting
should require clear and convincing justification. Paragraph 215 states that
"Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use.”

The stable block itself is a modern, late 20th century building and the demolition
of this structure is not objectionable from a heritage perspective.

The Conservation and Design Officer has made the following comments on the
application:

"The revised plans, which have evolved following negotiations, have responded

to the more rural character of the site by adopting the more vernacular
approach of echoing the appearance of a fairly traditional barn conversion.

Page 131



10.26

(c)

10.27

10.28

This barn-style is now comparatively convincing, taking a simple linear form,
but with a small area of catslide lean-to on the north elevation. The fenestration
is limited, & generally avoids an overly domestic appearance’ the only exception
is the western gable, which would be more open, but would be visually discrete,
and a reasonable compromise for what is a modern interpretation of a barn,
not an actual barn.

The amended design is considered to respect the rural character of the area
and it is considered that this results in a neutral impact to the setting of the
nearby listed buildings identified, in accordance with Policy EN10. Whilst the
proposal reflects a traditional barn conversion, on balance this design approach
is considered acceptable and subject to a condition ensuring suitable materials
at the site, it is considered that the dwelling would adequately harmonise with
the rural character of the village. Representations have raised concern that the
proposal will infill a gap in the street scene, however, approximately a third of
the footprint is situated where the existing stable block is positioned and the
wider frontage of the proposed dwelling is at right angles to the road, which
helps to retain a degree of openness in the street scene. A rural character is
adequately retained at the site and the proposal is therefore considered to
accord with Policies EN1, EN2, EN10 and DS3 of the Local Plan.

Landscape Impact

The site is located within the Cotswolds National Landscape (formerly known as
the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)) wherein the
Council, in performing or exercising any functions in relation to, or so as to
affect, the area 'must seek to further the purpose of conserving and enhancing
the natural beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty.’ (S85(A1) of the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000).

Local Plan Policy EN1 states that ‘New development will, where appropriate,
promote the protection, conservation and enhancement of the historic and
natural environment by:

a. ensuring the protection and enhancement of existing natural and historic
environmental assets and their settings in proportion with the

significance of the asset

b. contributing to the provision and enhancement of multi-functioning
green infrastructure;

Page 132



10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

C addressing climate change, habitat loss and fragmentation through
creating new habitats and the better management of existing habitats;

a. seeking to improve air, soil and water quality where feasible; and

e ensuring design standards that complement the character of the area
and the sustainable use of the development.

Local Plan Policy EN2 states that 'Development will be permitted which accords
with the Cotswold Design Code. Proposals should be of design quality that
respects the character and distinctive appearance of the locality.’

Local Plan Policy EN4 states that ‘Development will be permitted where it does
not have a significant detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape
(including the tranquillity of the countryside) of Cotswold District or
neighbouring areas, and that proposals will take account of landscape and
historic landscape character, visual quality and local distinctiveness. They will be
expected to enhance, restore and better manage the natural and historic
landscape, and any significant landscape features and elements, including key
views, the setting of settlements, settlement patterns and heritage assets.’

Local Plan Policy EN5 Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)
states that 7n determining development proposals within the AONB or its
setting, the conservation and enhancement of the natural beauty of the
landscape, its character and special qualities will be given great weight.’

Section 12 of the NPPF 'Achieving well-designed and beautiful places' is of
relevance.

Section 15 of the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment.

Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and
enhancing valued landscapes' and ‘recognising the intrinsic character and
beauty of the countryside'

Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states that ‘great weight should be given to
conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in .. Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection in
relation to these issues.’

Page 133



10.36 The application site is set within the Landscape Character Type (LCT) 'High Wold
Valley; and Landscape Character Area (LCA) Upper Windrush Valley, as defined
in the Cotswold AONB Landscape Strategy and Guidelines (June 2016). Local
forces for change within High Wold Valley include 'Development, expansion
and infilling of valley settlements including residential, industrial and leisure'.
Potential landscape implications of such development are stated as being;

10.37

Erosion of the rural character of the valleys and the landscape setting of
historic villages,

Intrusion of expanded settlements onto the highly visible valley sides;
Increase in light pollution;

Loss of village patterns and development of ‘rural sprawl’ due to settlement
growth and coalescence;

Degradation of views across and along the valley,

Upgrading of minor roads and lanes associated with new development and
the introduction of suburbanising features such as mini roundabouts, street
lighting, highway fencing and kerbs and traffic calming at village entrances,

Erosion of distinctive settlement patterns and loss of small fields and
network of narrow lanes associated with houses fringing the valley villages;

Loss/dlilution of organic growth patterns of settlements including the
relationship between the historic core and adjacent historic fields, paddocks
and closes;

Loss of archaeological and historical features, field patterns and landscapes;

Interruption, weakening or loss of the historic character of settlements and
the historic context in how have expanded, especially the importance of the
relationship between the historic core of the settlement and surviving
historic features such as churchyards, manor houses, burgage plots, historic
farms, pre-enclosure paddocks and closes.

The Landscape Officer has previously advised that Kineton is a small rural
settlement with a scattered development pattern. Development is often
separated by undeveloped open farmland which assists in reinforcing the
villages' rural identity, this is particularly evident to the western side of the

Page 134



10.38

10.39

10.40

(c)

10.41

10.42

village road where the site is located. It is recognised that the existing site has
a rural character and this positively contributes to the rural setting.

However, there is already a structure on the site and the proposed dwelling has
been positioned so that approximately a third of its footprint will be set in this
location. In addition, two large agricultural buildings lie to the south of the site.
It is considered that the amended design and scale of the proposal is acceptable
and would not have an adverse impact upon the character of the National
Landscape.

Representations have raised concern in respect of the level of glazing proposed
and potential light spill from the amended design. In response, it is recognised
that dark skies are intrinsic to the National Landscape. However, the current
stable block is not subject to any lighting restrictions. A degree of light spill
from windows is likely to be unavoidable from a new residential property.
However, a lighting condition ensuring any external lighting is agreed prior to
installation with the local planning authority is recommended, and on balance
subject to condition, it is considered that any impact would be low level and
not out of character with other properties located within the Non-Principal
Settlement so as to warrant refusal in respect of Policy EN5.

A landscaping condition is recommended to include boundary treatments to
ensure any landscaping is sensitively designed. Whilst the Landscape
Consultant has not provided formal comments on the planning application it
should be noted that comments were provided under the more recent pre-
application relating to the erection of 1 no. dwelling advising that "the proposal
is unlikely to result in undue landscape or visual harm". Subject to condition it
is considered that the proposal will not result in an adverse landscape impact
and is in accordance with Policies EN1, EN2, EN4 and EN5 of the Local Plan.

Impact upon Residential Amenity

Local Plan Policy EN2 refers to The Design Code (Appendix D) which sets out
policy with regard to residential amenity. This expects proposals to respect
amenity in regards to garden space, privacy, daylight and overbearing effect.
Local Plan Policy EN15 states that development will be permitted that will not
result in unacceptable risk to public health or safety, the natural environment

or the amenity of existing land uses through:

a. pollution of the air, land, surface water, or ground water sources; and/or

Page 135



10.43

10.44

10.45

b. generation of noise or light levels, or other disturbance such as spillage
flicker, vibration, dust or smell.

Section 12 of the NPPF requires good design with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users.

Criteria p, q and r of the Cotswold Design Code referenced by Policy EN2 are of
relevance and they state:

p. To ensure adequate privacy, the minimum distance between facing
windows of one and two storey dwellings should be no less than 22m and, for
buildings higher than two storeys, no less than 28m. Where the distance
between facing windows is less than 28m in one and two storey dwellings, or
less than 32m for buildings higher than two storeys, permitted development
rights may be removed. For these purposes, facing windows are those which
can readily be seen into from within principal rooms in another property,
including windows at an angle to one another, but excluding windows on front
elevations. Much will depend on the angle and the topography. A principal
room is a bedroom, living room, dining room, kitchen, study or other living
space, but not a hallway, stairs, bathroom, utility or store.

qg. To avoid undue loss of daylight when considering planning applications,
the Council will take into account the advice contained in the Building Research
Establishment publication IP 23/12 - Site Layout Planning for Daylight.

r. To ensure adequate garden space, the size of a private garden should
relate to the size and nature of the property. A large detached family house
should have a substantial garden, capable of providing enough space for
different family activities to take place at the same time, (e.g. sitting-out area
for adults, children’s play space clothes drying area). An elderly person's
bungalow requires a smaller, easily managed private area for quiet sitting-out.

The side elevation of Wayside is located approximately 30 metres away from
the front elevation of the proposed dwelling. The front elevation of the
proposed dwelling would be set approximately 24 metres away from the garden
to the side elevation of Wayside at its closest point. Residents of this
neighbouring property have raised concern that the dwelling will overlook
Wayside's garden and kitchen window. The windows along the front elevation
of the proposed dwelling at first floor height serve a landing and due to the
separation distance to Wayside, on balance, it is considered that the perceived
impact of overlooking would be low level and would not result in a degree of
harm which would warrant refusal in respect of Policy EN2.

Page 136



10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

Kineton Place is set on the opposite side of the road to the proposal and at a
lower land level (the boundary to this property is approximately 13 metres away
from the proposed side elevation). Concern has been received from this
property that their private garden would be overlooked. Kineton Place has a
single storey pitched roof garage adjacent to the road and also a single storey
rear extension adjacent to this structure. The amended design includes a
window at first floor height which serves a bedroom along the side elevation
facing Kineton Place. Due to the relationship between properties, it is
considered that any overlooking to the rear garden of Kineton Place would be
limited and adequate private amenity space would be retained at the
neighbouring dwelling. The proposal would therefore not result in a degree of
harm in respect of overlooking which would warrant refusal in respect of Policy
EN2.

Concern has been raised in respect of light pollution, however, subject to the
external lighting condition discussed above, it is considered that this is sufficient
to mitigate any impact of development in accordance with Policy EN15.

Concern has also been received in relation to construction works at the site,
particularly in relation to the formation of the new access. It is recognised that
work may result in a temporary disturbance to local residents, however, this
would not warrant refusal in respect of Policy EN15.

By virtue of the separation distance and relationship of the proposal to other
neighbouring dwellings it is considered that the proposal would not result in an
adverse impact in respect of loss of light, privacy or have an overbearing effect
in accordance with Policy EN2.

In terms of the residential amenity of future occupants of the dwelling,
representations have raised concern that the garden appears small. It is
considered that the proposal provides adequate amenity space for a single
dwelling to the front and rear of the property in accordance with Policy EN2.
Whilst the rear elevation of the property is in fairly close proximity to the
agricultural barns to the rear of the site (approximately 9.9 metres away), on
balance, it is considered that this would not result in an overbearing impact to
future occupants to such an extent as to warrant refusal.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal complies with Policies EN2 and EN15
of the Local Plan and section 12 of the NPPF.

Page 137



(e)

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

Biodiversity

Local Plan Policy EN8 seeks to protect features, habitats and species and as such
supports proposals which would conserve and enhances biodiversity. This
policy seeks to avoid fragmentation or loss of habitats, in accordance with
Section 15 of the NPPF.

A preliminary Ecological Appraisal accompanies the planning application. This
document advises that the structure on site was assessed to be of negligible
suitability for bats and some precautionary measures and enhancements have
been recommended. A replacement pond is proposed to the rear of the
dwelling to compensate for the loss of the pond to the front of the stable block.
The Biodiversity Officer has reviewed this document and subject to condition is
satisfied that the proposal complies with Policy EN8 of the Local Plan.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

Mandatory biodiversity net gain date was introduced for small sites on the 2nd
April 2024 and it is applicable to this application. The applicant has stated that
they will purchase off-site units in order to achieve the required net gains for
BNG. The Biodiversity Officer has reviewed the submission and is satisfied with
this approach subject to a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP)
condition to ensure appropriate establishment and aftercare details.

Trees

Local Plan Policy EN7 requires development to conserve and enhance natural
assets to be affected, including trees, hedgerows, and woodland of high
landscape amenity, ecological or historical value as well as veteran trees.

An Arboricultural Survey, Impact Assessment and Protection Plan accompany
the application and this document has been reviewed by the Arboricultural
Officer who has advised "The proposal results in the removal of one tree of low
quality which the attached report states has little long term viability regardless
of the proposal. The loss of the tree can be mitigated by the condjtioning of
tree planting via a landscape plan. There is a small amount of incursion into the
root protection area of T4, a B grade tree which is unlikely to have a detrimental
effect on the trees vitality. A landscaping condition and tree protection
condition are recommended. Subject to condition the proposal is considered
to accord with Policy EN7.

Page 138



(f)

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

Other

10.61

11.

11.1

12.

1.

notice.

Highways

Policy INF4 states that development will be permitted that provides safe and
suitable access and has regard, where appropriate, to the Manual for
Gloucestershire Streets.

Policy INF5 states that development will provide residential and non-residential
vehicle parking where there is clear and compelling evidence that such
provision is necessary to manage the local road network.

Section 9 of the NPPF promotes sustainable transport.

The proposal provides sufficient parking on site to the front of the dwelling. A
new site access is proposed and the access arrangements have been reviewed
by highways who have raised no objection not the proposal. As such it is
considered that the proposal is compliant with Policies INF4 and INF5 of the
Local Plan.

Matters

This application is CIL liable and there will be a CIL charge payable. Section 143
of the Localism Act 2011 states that any financial sum that an authority has
received, will, or could receive, in payment of CIL is a material 'local finance
consideration' in planning decisions.

Conclusion

For the reasons outlined above the proposal is considered to comply with Local
Plan Policies. Having regard to Paragraph 11d of the NPPF, the proposed
development would not result in harm to any protected areas and would result
in modest benefits, that would not be significantly and demonstrably
outweighed by adverse impacts. As such, the application is recommended for
approval.

Proposed Conditions:

The development shall be started by 3 years from the date of this decision

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

Page 139



2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following drawing numbers: 230220-01 Rev A, 230220-05 Rev A and 230220-11.

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework.

3. Prior to the construction of any external wall of the development hereby
approved, samples of the proposed walling and roofing materials shall be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason: To ensure that, in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2,
the development will be constructed of materials of a type, colour, texture and quality
that will be appropriate to the site and its surroundings.

4. Prior to the construction of any external wall of the development hereby
approved, a sample panel of walling of at least one metre square in size showing the
proposed stone colour, coursing, bonding, treatment of corners, method of pointing
and mix and colour of mortar shall be erected on the site and subsequently approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the walls shall be constructed only in
the same way as the approved panel. The panel shall be retained on site until the
completion of the development.

Reason: To ensure that in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2,
the development will be constructed of materials of a type, colour, texture and quality
and in a manner appropriate to the site and its surroundings. Retention of the sample
panel on site during the work will help to ensure consistency.

5. All door and window frames shall be recessed a minimum of 75mm into the
external walls of the building and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2.

6. The oak shall be left to weather and silver naturally and shall be permanently
retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan EN2.

7. The new rooflights shall be of a design which, when installed, shall not project

forward of the roof slope in which the rooflights are located and shall be permanently
retained as such thereafter.

Page 140



Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2.

8. No bargeboards or eaves fascias shall be used in the proposed development.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2..

0. No wires, plumbing or pipework other than those shown on the approved plans
shall be fixed on the external elevations of the building.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2..

10.  No external doors and windows shall be installed in the development hereby
approved, until their design and details, including their materials and finish has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The design and details shall be accompanied by drawings to a minimum scale of 1:5
with full size moulding cross section profiles, elevations and sections. The
development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
retained as such at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2.

11.  Prior to the first use/occupation of the development hereby approved, a
comprehensive landscape scheme shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme must show details of all planting areas, tree and plant species,
numbers and planting sizes. The proposed means of enclosure and screening should
also be included, together with details of any mounding, walls and fences and hard
surface materials to be used throughout the proposed development.

The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the first planting
season following the completion of the first building on the site.

Any trees or plants shown on the approved landscaping scheme to be planted or
retained which die, are removed, are damaged or become diseased, or grassed areas
which become eroded or damaged, within 5 years of the completion of the approved
landscaping scheme, shall be replaced by the end of the next planting season.

Page 141



Replacement trees and plants shall be of the same size and species as those lost, unless
the Local Planning Authority approves alternatives in writing.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner that is sympathetic to
the site and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy
EN2.

12.  Prior to the commencement of any works on site (including demolition and site
clearance), the tree protection measures as outlined in MHP Arboricultural Survey,
Impact Assessment and Protection Plan reference 24138A The Saddlery Kineton_TZ
AIA TPP_V2, shall be installed in accordance with the specifications set out within this
document. The protection measures shall remain in place until the completion of the
construction process. No part of the protection shall be removed or altered without
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Fires on site should be avoided if possible. Where they are unavoidable, they should
not be lit in a position where heat could affect foliage or branches. The potential size
of the fire and the wind direction should be taken into account when determining its
location, and it should be attended at all times until safe enough to leave. Materials
that would contaminate the soil such as cement or diesel must not be discharged with
10m of the tree stem. Existing ground levels shall remain the same within the
Construction Exclusion Zone and no building materials or surplus soil shall be stored
therein. All service runs shall fall outside the Construction Exclusion Zone unless
otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the retained trees in accordance with Cotswold District Local
Plan Policy EN7. It is important that these details are agreed prior to the
commencement of development as works undertaken during the course of
construction could have an adverse impact on the well-being of existing trees.

13. A 5-year Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to any above ground
works of the development hereby approved being undertaken. The plan shall be
prepared in accordance with the principles set out in the Biodiversity Gain Plan and
must include, but not necessarily limited to, the following information:

i. Description and evaluation of features to be managed, including locations
shown on a site map;

. Establishment details, including preparation of the land;

Page 142



ii. Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence
management;

V. iv. Aims and objectives of management, including ensuring the delivery of at
least a 10% net gain in habitat units;

V. Appropriate management options for achieving the aims and objectives; vi.
Prescriptions for all management actions;

Vi. A work schedule matrix (i.e. an annual work plan) capable of being rolled
forward over 5 or 10 year periods;

vii. Details of the body or organisation responsible for the implementation of the
plan;
viii. ~ Ongoing monitoring of delivery of the habitat enhancement and creation

details to achieve net gain as well as details of possible remedial measures that
might need to be put in place; and

IX. Timeframe for reviewing the plan. The LEMP shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and all habitats shall be retained in that
manner thereafter. Notice in writing shall be given to the Council when the
habitat creation and enhancement works as set out in the Biodiversity Gain Plan
have commenced and once all habitat creation and enhancements have been
completed.

Reason: To secure the delivery of at least a 10% biodiversity net gain through
successful establishment and management of all newly created and enhanced habitats
in accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021), paragraph 187, 192 and 193 of
the NPPF, and Local Plan policy ENS.

14.  The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the recommendations
contained within the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (All Ecology, November 2024 -
uploaded 17th December 2024). All of the recommendations shall be implemented in
full according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, and thereafter permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure wildlife is protected in accordance with the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011- 2031

Page 143



and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and
Rural Communities Act 2006.

15.  Within 3 months of commencement, a finalised biodiversity enhancement plan
based on the provision of a swift box and a bat box shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved specification and programme of implementation and
be retained thereafter.

Reason: To protect and enhance the site for biodiversity in accordance with
paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EN8
of the Cotswold District Council Local Plan, and for the Council to comply with Section
40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

16.  Prior to the installation of external lighting for the development hereby
approved, an external lighting plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The details shall show how and where external lighting
will be installed (including the type of lighting and timers), so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not affect bat roosting features or disturb or
prevent nocturnal species using wildlife corridors. All external lighting shall be installed
only in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in these details.

Reason: To protect nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (Chapter 15), Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-
2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment
and Rural Communities Act 2006.

17.  The existing stable block shall be demolished within its entirety within three
months of the first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure that the existing dwelling is removed from the site in accordance
with Local Plan Policies DS4, EN2, EN4, EN5 and EN9, and National Planning Policy
Framework Paragraph 84.

18.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, C and E of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order
2015, or any other statutory instrument amending or replacing it, no extensions or
outbuildings associated with the new dwelling shall be erected within the application
site nor any new windows, doors or rooflights installed/inserted in the new dwelling

Page 144



or garage/workshop hereby permitted other than those permitted by this Decision
Notice.

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity in accordance with Policies
EN2 and EN10 of the Local Plan.

Informatives:

1. Please note that the proposed development set out in this application is liable
for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended). A CIL Liability Notice will be sent to the applicant, and any other person
who has an interest in the land, under separate cover. The Liability Notice will contain
details of the chargeable amount and how to claim exemption or relief, if appropriate.
There are further details on this process on the Council's website at
www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

2. IMPORTANT: BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN CONDITION - DEVELOPMENT CANNOT
COMMENCE UNTIL A BIODIVERSITY GAIN PLAN HAS BEEN SUBMITTED (AS A
CONDITION COMPLIANCE APPLICATION) TO AND APPROVED BY COTSWOLD
DISTRICT COUNCIL.

The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
is that planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed
to have been granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that
development may not begin unless:

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan in writing.

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a
Biodiversity Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be
Cotswold District Council. There are statutory exemptions and transitional
arrangements which mean that the biodiversity gain condition does not always apply.
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will
require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because
none of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements are considered to apply.
If the onsite habitats include irreplaceable habitats (within the meaning of the
Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitats) Regulations 2024) there are
additional requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans. Advice
about how to prepare a Biodiversity Gain Plan and a template can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/submit-a-biodiversity-gain-plan.

Page 145


http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

The applicant will need apply to approve the details reserved by the 5-year Landscape
and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) and the Biodiversity Gain Plan at the same
time. A step-by-step guide on how to apply for approval of conditions can be found
here: https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/step-
bystep-guide-to-planning-permission/

Page 146


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/step-bystep-guide-to-planning-permission/
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/step-bystep-guide-to-planning-permission/

/1T abed

Slimbercote

Badgers

Kineton

Wayside

Home Far

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2024. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

]_O CATI O N P LA N O 20m 40m 60m

l:1250

A - EG |23.10.24
revisions initial date

Contractors, Sub Contractors and Suppliers are to check all
relevant dimensions and levels of site and buildings before
commencing any shop drawings or building work.

This drawing is copyright and may not be reproduced in any part
of form without the written consent of Fowler Architecture and
Planning

project

THE SADDLERY
Kineton

drawing

Location plan

scale drawn by date

1:1250@A3 EG Sep 24
230220-01 A
drawing no rev

«OWLEp

D L)
= 2
< <
A
(& \%
’URE &Q

39 High Street
Pewsey
Wiltshire
SN9 5AF
tel (01672) 569444
enquiries@faap.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



61T abed

e e A P 3 ok o

==
THE SADDLERY
Kineton
Gloucestershire
GLSE 5UG

Ei‘te Plan & Site
Sections

Py o
1:200 & 1:000 @ A1 EG Man'25

230220-05 A

33 High Street
Pewsey
Wit share:
3NS3 SAF
ted j01672) 5654482
enguiries@faap co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



TST abed

e 7
ST R B N e el IS D
lL-AI 3)61“_:@31“_1 C
|| 2esz R ed2 - — Bed !
. ) Hel
‘ ‘ 4& ﬂ/b + 7
X 5;2&{4&(9 v e “t . Hoim &
A | o "(,,5/) - _Q&Jr'—l_' ST D
o |
| ]
| |
- 5|

F /v & $ T F ¢ 6 o &~ P c 4 W~

revisions int] date
Contractors, Sub Contractors and Suppliers are to
check all relevant dimensions and levels of site and
buildings before commencing any shop drawings or

building work.
o
e £ A s T £ be & o & T o ~ Thisdrawingiscopyrightandmaynotbereproduced
in any part or form without the written consent of
Fowler Architecture & Planning.
4 project
" I
N{ i j_DE THe S&ADILERY
— Eidehon LaNETON
S‘F—Uo'j
N e [P
. . drawing
L/\/:'AO O ﬁ\&:f\{ ) H
e . f DESIGN SCHEME
ne) = ﬁ
1 {2 & oo/ — =
,Xg/ Hedl as Z/d\'i/ ‘
/ ' o | scale date
— i —) 8 | |1 00 @ Al MAR 28
Uhliky 1] m m
Nl % , drawing no 2307'2_50 ~ 1/ rev
[ [ [
i e _ 1
-k -’ 1
l l
G €4 o v ~ > F ¢ o o & P ¢ A N
[ |
- e
S o v T H E ¢ € v A T 1 ©o N

i " bim 39 High Street

#;Pﬂﬁﬁ Pewsey
Wiltshire
SN9 5AF

01672 569444
enquiries@faap.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

Erection of a new self-build dwelling at Land North East of Braecroft Upper
Oddington Gloucestershire GL56 0XJ

Full Application

25/00045/FUL
Applicant: Mr Peter Wilsdon
Agent: DS Planning Services
Case Officer: Helen Cooper
Ward Member(s): Councillor David Cunningham
Committee Date: 11 June 2025

RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION SUBJECT TO THE COMPLETION OF A

UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING

2.1

Main Issues:

Principle of Development

Design, Appearance and Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape
Impact on Residential Amenity

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Highways

Other matters

Reasons for Referral:

Cllr Cunningham has requested that the application is considered by the Planning
Committee on the following grounds:

2.1.1 "Twould, should you be minded to recommend approval of this application,
ask that such a recommendation be further reviewed by the Planning
Committee.

2.1.2 The new intended use of this site as a standalone dwelling appears to
undermine the rationale for the previous approval for a structure on the site
due to the additional requirements that a full-time residence will bring. Nb.
Decision Notice 23/02885/FUL Condition 8. The overdevelopment of this
site and the suburbanisation of the CNL via the expected addition of non-
rural paraphernalia, ie. sheds, garden furniture etc, represents an

Page 153



2.2

3.1

3.2

unacceptable encroachment of the built form into the countryside. NPPF
S715P189.

2.1.3 This site is in a prominent position on the ridgeline, with wide-ranging views
from several public footpaths and particularly Oddington Footpath 14.
Whilst a swimming pool complex, ancillary to the main dwelling, would have
benefited from limited use, e.g. lower light pollution, a new dwelling will, by
nature of its more intensive use, shift the level of harm to the appearance
and tranquillity of the Cotswolds National Landscape much closer to levels
which should be considered ‘substantial’. This goes against CODC LP EN4 and
ENS5.

2.14 The use of ancillary buildings by existing residents and within the curtilage
of existing sites place no further requirements on local services as envisaged
by CDC LP Policy DS3 (6.3.3). However, the addition of a standalone dwelling
in a non-principal settlement such as Oddington, whilst providing no
material public benefit, fails to address the other stated requirements of DS3
(a) and (d). The new building will be c25m (D&AS 5.33) from the existing
awelling, and as such the amenity safeguards set out in CDC LP EN2 appear
to be severely limited. Claims that the new dwelling will initially be in the
ownership of the existing resident does not constitute mitigation of this

policy.”

The Review Panel agreed the request for the application to be heard by the
Planning and Licensing Committee on the grounds that consideration should be
given to the intensification of the use of the site and the impacts on the landscape
and local facilities.

Site Description:

The application site is located to the southern side of Upper Oddington and is on
the eastern side of the lane into the village leading to the B4450 to the south.

The application site comprises an area of residential garden belonging to the
property known as Braecroft. This section of garden contains a tennis court,
grassland and some vegetation. Braecroft is a large detached modern dwelling
which lies to the southwest of the application site and it was erected post 2009
following the grant of planning permission for a replacement dwelling at the site.
New Braecroft, another detached dwelling which is contemporary in appearance,

Page 154



3.3

34

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

is set forward of the application site or to the northwest. New Braecroft was
originally granted for ancillary purposes to Braecroft, although it was allowed for
independent occupation following an appeal, planning application reference
19/01288/FUL.

New Braecroft lies on an elevated plateau that is characterised by landform that
gently slops down in a south-easterly and north-easterly direction towards the low-
lying River Evenlode some distance to the east. New Braecroft holds a prominent
position in the street scene and landscape, and it has been sensitively designed to
minimise impact upon the surrounding area by being set down into the landscape
with a flat roof.

There are no Public Rights of Way (PRoW) within the site, although a number are
present within the local landscape. Of particular importance are Oddington
Footpath 6 and 7 to the north and northwest of the site and north and Oddington
Footpath 14 which lies to the east of the site.

The site is outside of a Principal development boundary as defined in the Local
Plan; however, it is considered to be located within the Non-principal settlement
of Upper Oddington.

The site is set within the Cotswolds National Landscape (AONB).

Relevant Planning History:

The below history relates to both Braecroft and New Braecroft.

06/00973/FUL: Erection of two storey and single storey extensions. Granted
15.6.2006

06/02985/FUL: Demolition of building and erection of replacement dwelling.
Refused 17.1.2007

07/00555/FUL: Demolition of dwelling, erection of replacement dwelling. Granted
29.5.2007

09/01349/FUL: Erection of replacement dwelling (amendment to permission

07/00555/FUL to include changes to the scale and design of the boot room).
Granted 15.7.2009

Page 155



4.6

4.7

4.8

49

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

15/00434/CLEUD: Certificate of Lawful Existing Use or Development under Section
191 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 - for the construction and retention
of an unauthorised dwelling currently known as BraeCroft, Upper Oddington.
Granted 31.03.2015

16/00357/FUL Erection of ancillary building - withdrawn

16/03627/FUL Erection of ancillary building - Permitted 21.10.2016

16/04410/FUL Erection of carport structure - Permitted 24.11.2016

16/04765/FUL Variation of Condition 4 of planning permission 16/03627/FUL: use
of outbuilding for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the dwelling -

Permitted 23.12.2016

16/05255/COMPLY Compliance with conditions 3 (samples) and 5 (landscaping) of
application 16/04765/FUL - Erection of ancillary building - Permitted 31.01.2017

17/00904/NONMAT Non-material amendment to application 16/04410/FUL to
increase in eaves and ridge height - Refused

17/01301/FUL Erection of ancillary building - amendment to 16/04765/FUL -
Permitted 05.05.2017

17/03820/NONMAT Non-material amendment to application 17/01301/FUL for
various minor external and internal details - Refused 03.10.2017

18/04570/FUL Erection of ancillary building (revisions to that approved under
17/01301/FUL) (Retrospective) - Permitted 15.01.2019

19/00542/FUL Change of use of existing building from ancillary use to independent
dwelling - Withdrawn

19/01288/FUL Change of use of existing building from ancillary use to independent
dwelling- Refused 14.06.2019 Appeal allowed 08.11.2019

19/02884/FUL Change of use of ancillary building to independent dwelling
(resubmission of 19/01288/FUL with revised vehicular access) Withdrawn

Page 156



4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

19/04226/FUL Amendment to application 19/01288/FUL for change of use of
existing building from ancillary use to independent dwelling to incorporate revised
vehicular access - Permitted 19.12.2019

20/01295/PLP Construction of 2 residential dwellings — Withdrawn
20/01583/PLP Erection of a single dwelling house - Permitted 15.06.2020

20/02753/FUL Rear extension to existing ancillary outbuilding Permitted
30.09.2020

20/03877/FUL Variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission
20/02753/FUL (Rear extension to existing ancillary outbuilding) to omit first floor
accommodation in pitched roof form and replace with a pavilion style flat roof (part
retrospective) - Permitted 7.12.2020

20/04024/FUL Erection of a single storey rear extension (following demolition of
existing single storey rear addition) Permitted 08.01.2021

22/01507/FUL Erection of a single-storey rear extension (amendment to approved
application - 20/04024/FUL) - Permitted 16.06.2022

22/03249/FUL Single story rear extension (in lieu of approval 22/01507/FUL)
Permitted 02.11.2022

23/01504/PLP Permission in Principle application for erection of 1 no. dwelling -
Permitted 05.07.2023

23/01767/FUL Replace the existing flat roof of the dwelling with a double-hipped
roof - Permitted 10.08.2023

23/02369/TDC Technical Details Consent for erection of 1 no. dwelling following
grant of Permission in Principle ref 23/01504/PLP - Permitted 11.10.2023

23/02885/FUL Erection of a new residential annex building - Permitted 8.11.2024
24/00534/FUL Replace the existing flat roof of the dwelling with an asymmetrical

pitched roof and erection of extension to provide an entrance lobby - Permitted
10.05.2024

Page 157



6.2

6.3

6.4

Planning Policies:

e NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

e ENT Built, Natural & Historic Environment

e EN2 Design of Built & Natural Environment
e EN4 The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape
e EN5 Cotswolds AONB

e EN7 Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands

e EN8 Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species
e EN15 Pollution & Contaminated Land

e DS1 Development Strategy

e DS3 Small-scale Res Dev non-Principal Settle

Observations of Consultees:

Landscape Officer: Comments contained within the main body of the report.

Biodiversity Officer: Comments contained within the main body of the report.

CDC Drainage Engineer: No objection subject to condition

GCC Highways: Objection raised; comments contained in the main body of the

report.

View of Town/Parish Council:

Comments received on the 24.01.25:

an

'The Council objects to this application. Councillors had concerns about the
approved application for an ancillary swimming pool complex because of
the impact that this would have on the Cotswolds Landscape and the views
into the site from the footpath to the south. The same concerns remain but
are exacerbated by the fact that this application is for a stand-alone
awelling. Indeed Condlition 8 of the decision notice to approve the ancillary
building (23/02885/FUL) states 'The development hereby permitted shall
not be used other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the
awelling currently known as New Braecroft and for no other purpose.
Reason: The independent use of the building would raise potential issues
relating to the sustainability of the location, access, parking, residential
amenity and the impact of such a use on the character and appearance of

Page 158



the Cotswolds National Landscape having regard to Local Plan Policies DS3,
ENT, ENZ, EN4, EN5, INF4 and INF5.'

7.1.2 'The new awelling will add to the light pollution caused by the various
properties already on the site. The Council believes that an additional stand-
alone property represents over development of the site and the
suburbanisation of a satellite grouping of dwellings. We note that this is the
second time that the applicant has used the 'swimming pool route'to secure
permission for a new dwelling and feel that this is inappropriate use of the
planning process.’

8. Other Representations:

8.1  None received at the time of writing.

9. Applicant’s Supporting Information:

e Planning, Design and Access Statement

e Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal (LVIA)
e LVIA figures

o BNG Statement

10. Officer's Assessment:

10.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that 7
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination
to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.’

10.2 The starting point for the determination of this application is therefore the current
development plan for the District which is the adopted Cotswold District Local Plan

2011 - 2031.

10.3 The policies and guidance within the revised National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) are also a material planning consideration.

Background

10.4 The wider parcel of land within the applicant's ownership includes Braecroft, a large

Page 159



10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

modern detached dwelling to the southwest of the application site and New
Braecroft, a contemporary detached dwelling set forward of the site. The
characteristics of the wider site have significantly changed over the course of
approximately twenty years as evident from aerial photographs of the site.

Historically, a smaller single detached dwelling was set in a similar position to
Braecroft on the site, and the area of land where New Braecroft is located was
covered in trees. A hedgerow formed the boundary treatment at the site. In 2007
planning permission reference 07/00555/FUL was granted for a replacement
dwelling on the wider site and the dwelling known as Braecroft replaced the
original property. This was amended under application 09/01349/FUL and
subsequently a certificate of lawfulness was granted for the construction and
retention of an unauthorised dwelling.

In 2017 an application was granted for an ancillary building (New Braecroft).
Subsequently in 2019 planning permission was sought for a change of use of this
building into an independent dwelling. This was refused planning permission,
although this was later allowed on appeal.

New Braecroft is a modern contemporary dwelling with a flat roof which has been
designed to have minimal impact upon the landscape. It has been set down into
the hillside and the use of local materials has ensured that the building is in keeping
with the wider area. However, it should be noted that New Braecroft has recently
been granted planning permission for a pitched roof (reference 23/01767/FUL and
24/00534/FUL). Once implemented it is considered that the dwelling will appear
more prominent, although at the time of writing work has not started in respect of
either of these permissions.

More recently planning permission has been granted for the erection of a dwelling
on the site which would be located between New Braecroft and Braecroft reference
23/02369/TDC and 23/01504/PLP. It should be noted that prior to this, an
application was withdrawn for two dwellings reference 20/01295/PLP. Plot 2, of this
application was located to the rear of New Braecroft and concern was raised in
respect of its prominent position in the landscape.

Planning application reference 23/02885/FUL - Erection of a new residential annex
building associated with New Braecroft - was permitted on the 8.11.2024. The
design of the annex comprised two single storey elements, each with a pitched
roof, which would be linked by a modest glazed flat roof lobby. The permitted

Page 160



annex would accommodate a swimming pool, gym, shower room and 2 no. guest
bedrooms. The permission was subject to the following condition:

‘The development hereby permitted shall not be used other than for purposes
ancillary to the residential use of the dwelling currently known as New Braecroft
and for no other purpose.

Reason: The independent use of the building would raise potential issues relating
to the sustainability of the location, access, parking, residential amenity and the
Impact of such a use on the character and appearance of the Cotswolds National
Landscape having regard to Local Plan Policies DS3, EN1, ENZ, EN4, EN5, INF4 and
INF5.’

Proposed Development

10.10 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a new self-build

10.11

10.12

(a)

10.13

dwelling on Land Northeast of Braecroft. The dwelling would be located in the
same position as the permitted annex, and it would be of the same design.

The dwelling would comprise two single storey elements, each with a pitched roof,
which would be linked by a modest glazed flat roof lobby. The larger single storey
sections would be set adjacent to the northeast boundary, and it would measure
approximately 129 m by 6.3 m. The slightly smaller element would be set
approximately 5.4 metres back and it would measure approximately 11.9m by 6.4
metres in width. The eaves of the building would measure approximately 2.4
metres in height and the main ridgeline would measure approximately 5.9 metres
in height.

The dwelling would accommodate 2 no. bedrooms, 2 no. bathrooms, a gym and
sauna and a kitchen and living area. The drawing indicates that the building would
be constructed from Cotswold stone walls and grey standing seam sheet metal
roofing. Solar panels on both pitched roofs are also proposed.

Principle of Development

The development strategy as outlined by Policy DS1, within the Cotswold District
Local Plan, seeks to direct residential and employment development to a number
of Principal Settlements in the first instance, as development at these locations is
considered to 'positively promote sustainable growth'. The Principal settlements

Page 161



10.14

10.15

where residential development is directed to have Development Boundaries (Policy
DS2) as outlined on the Local Plan's Policy Map. Following this small-scale
residential development is directed to Non-Principal Settlements such as villages
and hamlets (Policy DS3).

Following the appeal decision in respect of planning application reference
19/01288/FUL, which allowed the use of New Braecroft as an independent
dwelling, and further to the Permission in Principle for erection of 1 no. dwelling
reference 23/01504/PLP on the wider site within the applicant's ownership, Policy
DS3 'Small-Scale residential development in Non-Principal Settlements' is
considered to be applicable to the proposal. This states:

7. In non-Principal Settlements, small-scale residential development will be
permitted provided it:

a) demonstrably supports or enhances the vitality of the local
community and the continued availability of services and facilities
locally;

b) is of a proportionate scale and maintains and enhances sustainable
patterns of development

c) complements the form and character of the settlement: and d. does
not have an adverse cumulative impact on the settlement having
regard to other developments permitted during the Local Plan
period.

2 Applicants proposing two or more residential units on sites in non-Principal
Settlements should complete a rural housing pro-forma and submit this
with the planning application.’

In terms of criteria a) it is considered that a single dwelling would support existing
services through additional residents and in respect of criteria d) due to the limited
number of dwelling commitments in Oddington, the erection of a two bedroom
dwelling which is located within the Non-Principal settlement would not result in
an adverse cumulative impact. Criteria b) and c) relate to the design and scale of
the building and character of the settlement. In this instance the design of the
dwelling is reflective of the extant permission for the annex and as such no conflict
is identified in respect of Policy DS3 criteria b) and c).

Page 162



10.16

10.17

(b)

10.18

10.19

It is recognised that the site originally accommodated 1 no. dwelling and two are
now in situ at the site, with permission in place for a further dwelling. However, due
to the incremental development of the site a rural pro-forma has not been required
to support the application in respect of Policy DS3 paragraph 2.

Subject to details of design, impact upon residential amenity, highway safety and
biodiversity, the erection of a dwelling on this area of residential garden is
considered acceptable in principle.

Design, Appearance and Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape (Area
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB))

The site is located within the Cotswolds National Landscape (CNL) (formerly known
as the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)) wherein the Council,
in performing or exercising any functions in relation to, or so as to affect, the area
'must seek to further the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty
of the area of outstanding natural beauty.' (S85(A1) of the Countryside and Rights
of Way Act 2000).

Local Plan Policy EN1 states that ‘new development wil] where appropriate,
promote the protection, conservation and enhancement of the historic and natural
environment by:

a. ensuring the protection and enhancement of existing natural and historic
environmental assets and their settings in proportion with the significance
of the asset;

b. contributing to the provision and enhancement of multi-functioning green
infrastructure,

C addressing climate change, habitat loss and fragmentation through creating

new habitats and the better management of existing habitats,
a. seeking to improve air, soil and water quality where feasible; and

e ensuring design standards that complement the character of the area and
the sustainable use of the development.’

Page 163



10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Local Plan Policy EN2 states that 'Development will be permitted which accords
with the Cotswold Design Code. Proposals should be of design quality that respects
the character and distinctive appearance of the locality.’

Local Plan Policy EN4 states that development will be permitted where it does not
have a significant detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape
(including the tranquillity of the countryside) of Cotswold District or neighbouring
areas, and that proposals will take account of landscape and historic landscape
character, visual quality and local distinctiveness. They will be expected to enhance,
restore and better manage the natural and historic landscape, and any significant
landscape features and elements, including key views, the setting of settlements,
settlement patterns and heritage assets.’

Local Plan Policy EN5 Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) states
that in determining development proposals within the AONB or its setting, the
conservation and enhancement of the natural beauty of the landscape, its character
and special qualities will be given great weight.’

Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by 'protecting and
enhancing valued landscapes' and 'recognising the intrinsic character and beauty
of the countryside'.

Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states that ‘great weight should be given to conserving
and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in ... National Landscapes which have
the highest status of protection in relation to these issues.’

As outlined above, the application site holds a prominent position within the
National Landscape, due to the local topography and the site's elevated position.
However, a material consideration relates to the fall-back position at the site, and
it must be recognised that an annex, of the same external design and appearance,
benefits from an extant planning permission, reference 23/02885/FUL.

It was considered under the previous application that the approved annex was, on
balance, acceptable in respect of its design and appearance following design
amendments which came forward during the application process. The building has
been designed to incorporate two separate single storey wings which are joined
by a simple glazed link extension. The proposed annex was considered not to
dominate or detract from the appearance of the main property, New Braecroft and

Page 164



10.27

10.28

10.29

whilst the current proposal is for an independent residential unit, the relationship
between the existing properties and the proposed dwelling remains acceptable. In
addition, the other extant permission for a dwelling at the site would not be
compromised by the proposal in respect of access or siting.

There are minor alterations to the external appearance under this application which
relate to the introduction of a driveway and car parking to the front of the
proposed dwelling. However, on balance, these additions are considered to be
relatively minor, and the design and scale of the dwelling is considered acceptable,
and its simple form and use of local stone with a metal roof will complement the
existing buildings in this area of Upper Oddington. In addition, the steep roof pitch
on the two single storey elements is considered to reflect the character of the
Cotswolds in accordance with Policy EN2.

The fall-back position at the site is that a building of the same design, albeit for
use as an annex, benefits from planning permission. The key consideration
therefore relates to whether the erection of a self-build dwelling of the same
design would lead to an intensification of use at the site which in turn would have
an adverse impact upon the Cotswolds National Landscape.

The site is located within the Pastoral Lowland Vale and Vale of Moreton of the
Cotswolds AONB Landscape Strategy and Guidelines (June 2016). This document
advises that 'development, expansion and infilling of settlements including
residential, industrial and leisure' is a local force for change in the Pastoral Lowland
Vale. The below landscape implications are listed by this document:

e Intrusion of expanded settlement fringes into the landscape including within
the setting of the AONB

e Degradation of views to, from and across the Pastoral Lowland Vale

o Impact or loss of views of key features such as church towers across the
landscape.

e Frosion of distinctive settlement patterns due to settlement growth and
coalescence.

Page 165



10.30

Loss/dilution of organic growth patterns of settlements including the
relationship between the historic core and adjacent historic fields, paddocks
and closes

Proliferation of suburban building styles, housing estate layout and materials
and the introduction of ornamental garden plants and boundary features.

Upgrading of minor roads and lanes associated with new development and the
introduction of suburbanising features such as mini roundabouts, street

lighting, Highway fencing, kerbs and traffic calming measures

Increased traffic leading to increased damage to road verges and roadside
hedges and walls and the creation of informal passing places

Introduction and accumulation of it areas and erosion of characteristically dark
skies.

Urban fringe impacts such as fly tipping and dumping of cars

Loss of wet meadows and riverine habitat.

Potential loss of archaeological remains and historic features.

Loss of archaeological and historical features, field patterns and landscapes.
Interruption, weakening or loss of the historic character of settlements and the
historic context in how they have expanded, especially the importance of the
relationship between the historic core of the settlement and surviving historic

features such as churchyards, manor houses, burgage plots, historic farms, pre-
enclosure paddocks and closes

The following outline strategies and guidelines have been produced in respect of
the potential implications. Those of relevance are listed below:

Maintain the open, sparsely settled character of the Pastoral Lowland Vale by
limiting new development to existing settlements;

Page 166



10.31

10.32

e Avoid development that will intrude negatively into the landscape and cannot
be successtully mitigated, for example, extensions to settlements in areas of
open landscape;

e fnsure that new development does not adversely affect the wider rural
landscape and views to and from the AONB;

e Avoid developments incorporating standardised development layout
suburban style lighting, construction details and materials that cumulatively can
lead to the erosion of peaceful landscape character;

e Layout of development should respect local built character and avoid cramming
up to boundaries resulting in a hard suburban style edge to the settlement;

e Control the proliferation of suburban building styles and materials;

e Conserve the existing dark skies; - Adopt measures to minimise and where
possible reduce light pollution, - Retain existing trees and hedges etc. as part
of the scheme; and

e Ensure new development is visually integrated into its surroundings and does
not interrupt the setting of existing settlements, break up harsh edges of new
development with appropriate and adequate tree planting ideally in advance
of the development taking place.

It is considered that the boundary to the southeast and northeast are the most
important in terms of potential visual impact on the wider area and it is recognised
that the site is very visible from Oddington Footpath 14 to the east and southeast
of the proposed dwelling. The Landscape Consultant previously recommended
planting in respect of the annex which was larger in ultimate form so that this
would become more noticeable in the rural scene.

The Landscape Consultant has reviewed this application and following
amendments to the planting schedule has no additional comments other than that
the hedge plant density has not been increased as requested, however, they have
increased the quantity of plants and added a note to say that the hedge plants will
be at 5 per m (in line with the initial request). The applicant has advised that the
hedging is at 5/m2 and if you measure the hedging and divide it by 5 the figures
are correct. This is reflected by the note on the revised landscape drawing. On

Page 167



10.33

10.34

(c)

10.35

10.36

10.37

balance this is considered acceptable, and it is considered that the proposed
landscaping will continue to mitigate any impact as was established under the
previous annex application reference 23/02885/FUL.

The proposed planting will therefore help ensure that the proposal will assimilate
with the character of the landscape. Considering the fall-back position at the site,
whereby the built form itself benefits from planning permission as an annex, on
balance it is considered that any impact through an intensification of use as an
independent dwelling would be very low level and would not warrant refusal.

Subject to a condition requiring the implementation of the landscaping plan, on
balance the design and impact upon the Cotswolds National Landscape is
considered acceptable and the proposal is considered to accord with policies EN1,
EN2, EN4 and EN5 of the Local Plan and the provisions of the NPPF.

Impact upon Residential Amenity

Local Plan Policy EN2 refers to The Design Code (Appendix D) which sets out policy
with regard to residential amenity. This expects proposals to respect amenity in
regard to garden space, privacy, daylight and overbearing effect. Section 12 of the
NPPF requires good design with a high standard of amenity for existing and future
users.

Local Plan Policy EN15 stated that development will be permitted where there will
be no unacceptable risk to public health or safety, the natural environment or the
amenity of existing land uses. This includes impacts from pollution, noise and light
as well as other disturbances such as spillage and smell.

The closest property to the proposed dwelling is 'New Braecroft’, which is in the
ownership of the applicant. The separation distance between New Braecroft and
the proposed dwelling is approximately 14 metres. However, due to the
topography at the site it is considered that there will be a limited impact upon this
dwelling in terms of overbearing impact as New Braecroft is set into the hillside. A
hedgerow is proposed in front of the glazed gable end of the dwelling which is in
proximity to the outdoor private amenity area belonging to New Braecroft. Whilst
the proposal might result in a degree of overlooking, as both dwellings are within
the applicant's ownership, on balance the planting mitigation is considered
acceptable and any resultant perceived overlooking would not warrant refusal in
this instance.

Page 168



10.38

10.39

10.40

(d)

10.41

10.42

The closest neighbouring dwelling outside of the applicant's ownership is number
2 Sunnyside, which lies approximately 95 metres away from the proposal. The
Design Code specifies that to ensure adequate privacy, the minimum distance
between facing windows of one and two storey dwellings should be no less than
22 m and, for buildings higher than two storeys, no less than 28m. The Design code
goes on to say much will depend on the angle and the topography. The proposed
building would hold an elevated position in relation to neighbouring dwellings and
it is recognised that this can lead to concerns around perceived overlooking.
However, by virtue of the large separation distance to neighbouring properties
outside of the applicant's ownership and the oblique angle of windows in relation
to these properties, it is not considered that the proposal would result in loss of
privacy or overlooking to such an extent as to warrant refusal. Due to the large
separation distances, it is considered that the proposal would not have an
overbearing impact or cause overshadowing. For these reasons the proposal is
considered to accord with Policy EN2 of the Local Plan.

Solar panels are proposed on the roof slope and due to their position on the roof
slope and elevated position in the surrounding area it is considered that any impact
upon residential amenity in terms of glint and glare would be minimal in this
instance.

The proposal is for a dwelling, and it is considered that this land use retains the
existing character of the site and will not lead to issues of noise or disturbance in
respect of Policy EN15. Concern has been raised in respect of an intensification of
use at the site, however, it is considered that this is unlikely to lead to a level of
light spill over and above that which could be generated by the permitted annex
at the site in accordance with Policy EN15.

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Local Plan Policy EN8 outlines that development will be permitted that conserves
and enhances biodiversity and geodiversity, providing net gains where possible.
Furthermore, it outlines that proposals that would result in the loss or deterioration
of irreplaceable habitats and resources, or which are likely to have an adverse effect
on internationally protected species, will not be permitted.

Section 15 of the NPPF also outlines that development should conserves and where

possible enhance biodiversity and geodiversity and should not result in the loss or
deterioration of irreplaceable habitats and resources.

Page 169



10.43 The Biodiversity Officer has reviewed the application and has advised that the site

photographs submitted demonstrate reasonably low significance amenity habitats
and a precautionary working methods condition is recommended. The Biodiversity
Officer has also advised that three species on the planting plan P04 should be
replaced with native species. On balance, it is considered that the proposed
planting plan is acceptable following comments from the Landscape Consultant
and as such it has not been considered necessary to seek changes in this instance.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

10.44 The new, statutory requirements for Biodiversity Net Gain for small development

(e)

10.45

apply to this application, as it was submitted after to 2nd April 2024. However, self-
build dwellings are exempt from this requirement subject to the applicant entering
into a unilateral undertaking (UU) to secure the property as a self-build dwelling.
The applicant has submitted a draft UU, and it is anticipated that the agreement
will be binding and completed shortly.

Highways

Local Plan Policy INF 'Highway Safety' states:

‘Development will be permitted that:

a. is well integrated with the existing transport network within and beyond the
development itself, avoiding severance of communities as a result of measures to
accommodate increased levels of traffic on the highway network;

b. creates safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and
cyclists or pedestrians, avoids street clutter and where appropriate establishes

home zones;

c. provides safe and suitable access and includes designs, where appropriate, that
incorporate low speeds;

d. avoids locations where the cumulative impact of congestion or other undesirable
impact on the transport network is likely to remain severe following mitigation; and

e. has regard, where appropriate, to the Manual for Gloucestershire Streets or any
guidance produced by the Local Highway Authority that may supersede it.’

Page 170



10.46 Policy INF5 states that development will provide residential and non-residential
vehicle parking where there is clear and compelling evidence that such provision
is necessary to manage the local road network.

10.47 Section 9 of the NPPF 'Promoting sustainable transport' is relevant to the
application. Paragraph 115 states:

In assessing sites that may be allocated for development in plans, or specific
applications for development, it should be ensured that:

a) sustainable transport modes are prioritised taking account of the vision for
the site the type of development and its location,

b) safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users;

c) the design of streets, parking areas, other transport elements and the
content of associated standards reflects current national guidance
including the National Design Guide and the National Model Design
Code48; and

d) any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in
terms of capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost
effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree through a vision-led
approach.’

10.48 4.3 Paragraph 116 states: ‘Development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network, following mitigation, would
be severe, taking into account all reasonable future scenarios.’

10.49 The proposed development would utilise an existing residential access which is
shared with Braecroft. The existing access was also previously considered to be
suitable for extant permission 23/02369/TDC. The vehicular access would therefore
potentially serve 3 no. residential dwellings and an annex at Braecroft if this
application is permitted and the extant permission implemented. Adequate
parking would also be possible on the site for the proposed dwelling, which would
satisfy Policy INF4 and INF5 of the Local Plan.

Page 171



10.50

10.51

10.52

Despite the site having a suitable vehicular access, Highways have recommended
that the application is refused on the following grounds:

10.50.7 '"The location of this proposed dwelling is considered to be in an
unsustainable location where essential journeys for daily household needs such as
access to bus services, schools, shopping, employment and other essential services
would by necessity have to be made by private vehicles.

10502 The site is accessed via country lanes devoid of street lighting and
footways. Whilst the access into the site is from a 30mph single lane highway,
access to the nearest bus stop at The Horse and Groom, a distance of just over
200m, this is on a road with no footways or street lighting, Further there are very
limited services on a Thursday only so this is not a an option for reqular travel.

10.50.3 The nearest centre providing services is located in Stow on the Wold, a
distance of 3.714km to the west where the nearest primary school is located.
However, pedestrian or cycle access would be along the A436 or B4450, neither of
which have footways or street lighting; it follows that occupiers of the dwelling
would be reliant on private cars to access essential services.

10.504 Manual for Streets (MfS) states that walkable neighbourhoods are
characterised by having a range of facilities within 10 minutes' walk, which is
approximately 800 metres. However, this is not an upper limit and industry practice
considers that 2km is a maximum walking distance door to door, but this should
be on safe routes with footways and street lighting, with Stow on the Wold being
located over 3km distant the application fails to provide a development in a
sustainable location.”

Whilst it is acknowledged that there is limited access to services in this location, it
has previously been established following the appeal decision relating to
application reference: 19/01288/FUL, that Braecroft lies within a Non-Principal
Settlement. The Local Plan advises that residential development in Non-Principal
Settlements will be permitted provided a number of criteria are met as detailed in
section (a) of this report.

Development within Non-Principal Settlements is therefore considered to
constitute a sustainable location in respect of the Local Plan and whilst the highway
constraints as outlined above are acknowledged, the site is acceptable in
accessibility terms with regard to Policy DS3. In addition, whilst the proposal will

Page 172



(f)

10.53

10.54

CiL

10.55

11.

11.1

12.

increase the number of vehicular trips to and from the site, the use of the entrance
should not harm highway safety and Highways have raised no concerns in respect
of this aspect. As such no conflict is identified in relation to Local Plan Policies INF4
and INF5.

Flood Risk

Local Plan Policy EN14 requires that proposals should not increase the level of risk
to the safety of occupiers of a site, the local community or the wider environment
as a result of flooding, through the appropriate application of the sequential and
exception tests, and the provision of site specific flood risk assessments where
applicable. It requires the incorporation of flood risk management and mitigation
measures in the design and layout of development proposals that provide
adequate provision for the lifetime of the development, and that include a
Sustainable Drainage System unless this is demonstrably inappropriate. This is in
accordance with Section 14 of the NPPF.

The site is located within Flood Zone 1 which has a low probability of flood risk.
The application has been reviewed by CDCs Drainage Engineer who has
recommended a drainage condition. Subject to condition it is considered that the
proposal will not increase flood risk at the site or within the surrounding area in
accordance with Policy EN14.

This application is CIL liable and there will be a CIL charge payable. Section 143 of
the Localism Act 2011 states that any financial sum that an authority has received,
will, or could receive, in payment of CIL is a material 'local finance consideration' in
planning decisions.

Conclusion:

The proposal is considered to comply with Local Plan Policies and as such is
recommended for permission.

Proposed Conditions:

The development shall be started by 3 years from the date of this decision notice.

Page 173



Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following drawing number(s): 7591-01 Rev B, 8022-02, 8022-03, 8022-04, 8022-01A and
22303-1YL-8050-XX-DR-L-2000 Rev PO6.

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework.

3. Prior to the construction of any external wall of the development hereby approved,
samples of the proposed walling and roofing materials shall be approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and only the approved materials shall be used.

Reason: To ensure that, in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2, the
development will be constructed of materials of a type, colour, texture and quality that
will be appropriate to the site and its surroundings.

4. No windows, doors, PV Panels, retaining walls or surfacing shall be installed or
constructed in the development hereby approved, until their design and details (including
the finish/colour of the windows and doors) have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The design and details shall be accompanied by drawings to a minimum scale of 1:5 with
full size moulding cross section profiles, elevations and sections. The development shall
only be carried out in accordance with the approved details and retained as such at all
times.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan policies EN2 and

EN12.

5. All door and window frames shall be recessed a minimum of 75mm into the
external walls of the building and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the development is completed in a manner sympathetic to the site
and its surroundings in accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2.

Page 174



6. Prior to the installation of any external lighting for the development hereby
approved, a lighting design strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The details shall show how and where external lighting will be
installed (including the type of lighting), so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas
to be lit will minimise light spill and clearly demonstrate that areas to be lit will not disturb
or prevent nocturnal species using their territory. All external lighting shall be installed
only in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in these details.

Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the Cotswolds National Landscape and to
protect nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended),
Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the revised National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and in order for the
Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006.

7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Detailed Planting Plan, drawing number 22303-IYL-8050-XX-DR-L-2000 Rev
PO6.

The entire landscaping scheme shall be completed by the end of the first full planting
season following the substantial completion or first use of the annex hereby approved.

Any trees or plants shown on the approved landscaping scheme to be planted or retained
that die, are removed, are damaged or become diseased, or grassed areas that become
eroded or damaged, within 5 years of the completion of the approved landscaping
scheme, shall be replaced by the end of the next planting season. Replacement trees and
plants shall be of the same size and species as those lost, unless the Local Planning
Authority approves alternatives in writing.

Reason: To protect the visual amenity of the site in accordance with Policy EN5 and to
enhance the site for biodiversity in accordance with paragraphs 187, 189 of the revised
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-
2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Section 40 of the Natural Environment
and Rural Communities Act 2006.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, C and E of the

Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, or
any other statutory instrument amending or replacing it, no extensions or outbuildings

Page 175



associated with the new dwelling shall be erected within the application site nor any new
windows, doors or rooflights installed/inserted in the new dwelling hereby permitted
other than those permitted by this Decision Notice.

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity in accordance with Policies EN2
and EN5 of the Local Plan.

0. Prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme,
and results of soakage tests carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate.
Three tests should be carried out for each soakage pit as per BRE 365, with the lowest
infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for design. The development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development
hereby approved. Development shall not take place until an exceedance flow routing plan
for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure
flooding is not exacerbated in the locality (National Planning Policy Framework and
Planning Practice Guidance). If the scope of surface water drainage is not agreed before
works commence, it could affect either the approved layout or completed works.

10.  The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations in
Cotswold District Council's Precautionary Method of Working document. All the
recommendations shall be implemented in full, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure biodiversity is protected in accordance with the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-
2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and
Rural Communities Act 2006.

Informatives:
Please note that the proposed development set out in this application is liable for a charge

under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended). A CIL
Liability Notice will be sent to the applicant, and any other person who has an interest in

Page 176



the land, separately. The Liability Notice will contain details of the chargeable amount and
how to claim exemption or relief, if appropriate. There are further details on this process
on the Council's website at www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

Page 177


http://www.cotswold.gov.uk/CIL

This page is intentionally left blank



6.1 abed

Existing dwelling - New Braecroft

Red line site area -2618m?

Existing driveway for Braecroft

Existing dwelling - Braecroft

Location Plan
1:1250

Om 25m 50m 75m ‘1 00m ‘1 25m
[TITITITIT] [ \ [ \ \ \

Scale 1:1250 @ AT ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

Red line site area - 5495m?

Existing dwelling - New Braecroft

Brick low level retaining wall

Enclosing fence

Steps up to tennis court

Enclosing fence

Ten’nis court s

4 N
Brick low level retaining wall
s

Enclosing fence

7 Black metal estate fence
Enclosing fence -

Brick steps

Enclosing fence

s Brick low level retaining wall

Block Plan
1 /500

0om 10m 20m 30m AOm 50m
\
T

Existing dwelling - Braecroft

Scale 1:500 @ A1

N\
Q S
N N <&
& N .
. N
& \
©°
S
! AN N
x ®?
S
& “
v
\"
o
oY
x
flower bed
\Y
Y
x \gv
| x|
\Y
| N |
"
| |
S
[ I I
N loose stone
x
x
& x
\ \J
S W Q
& A Q
Y
N~
O x
0 X
7
N\
) o
[
x,
P
s
'
P
/ x,
P /
. s
A
S / x
& P
v S
/ Q
: N
s N
v
P s
s
v
s
Q
s &
(D
x
. b
v x
,Q\\\ s
w v
a -
s
/ X
P ;
. v & /\\\\
s & =~
o
s

y \\\\<paving /
© . N

N
(S

" stone building
ridge level 105.13
eaves level 102.57

/ paving

\
\ N
Q N

N\

loose stone

Topographical Survey
1:200

Oom 4m 8m 12m 16m ?0m
\
T

| | | |
[T T T I [ | [ | \
‘Scale1:200 @ A1 ‘ ‘ ‘

NOTE:

A detailed and accurate topographical survey has been prepared by Midland Surveys,
providing accurate information within the site ownership boundaries, this has been
integrated with a digital Ordnance Survey download (under licence) to show information
outside of the applicant's ownership/control, all information outside of the site boundary
is taken from the above noted digital Ordnance Survey map and was not undertaken as
part of the detailed topographical survey.

General Notes:

1. Stable Architecture retain full copyright of the design and of

the content of this drawing.

Do not scale drawings. Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimetres unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding

with the work.

5. Stable Architecture shall be notified in writing of any
discrepancies.

6. Contractor/builder to carry out their own survey work prior

AN

\ to quantification and construction.

\Y
N N
R
N
*®

N\ 3
- / NS 04500 &
o4 (ht 10.0)

grass

ST06

\Y
Y / D
<&

@
Brick low level retaining wall x "7,8

RN %,

'C

L.
& /7
) , Enclosing fence

Steos up to tennis court

x

v
N //

; ;
W v .
Hedge // K 4 / « N
/ ; N A ’
< . / tennis court Qv o s
o7 ey Brick low level retaining wall
N ;
\/ Sy
ST 7 !
Vs P 7/
. 24&0/ A . P
Enclosing fence “// Y Tennis court /
- 7
<§‘Q ) 4 / Fence enclosure
/XV é
% 7 ;
. \\Y /. R
)
x / ¢
- , ;
& // \\ O o e
S o ;
h // 5 . / o W Black metal estate fence s /
” W4 , P
/ / ) : - 7
%@ s . , ’
x x S x ,
N O
N y
NN . .
2\ \\ Brick steps v v
N , .
\ N N\ /
AN ,
N /
\
N 7
6% ,
x ¢ 5 .
2 » P
Ve e

Enclosing fence

s .
Enclosing fence g 4
7/
Hedge / /
x Brick low level retaining wall 7 .
QN ’
5 /
grass
s
/ 7 ’
P )
. s s
3 s
N s ’
,.\\\\ & s
& s
s
s
s
s s
0.15 o s 7/
(htS.Q)\\\\ P - o
3 4 )
v s s
s s
s s
s s
7/
7/ 7/
7/ 7/
X 7/
N )
o
7/
7/
7/
b private
| s property
X 7/
7/
x
S

SN

Revision"b" - Red and blue lines adjusted for new dwelling application site area 27/11/2024

Revision"a" - Adjustment to drawing sheet layout and addition of notes on main
topographical survey view 20/3/2023

PN

Existing Site Layout

STABLE
ARCHITECTURE

. JEREMY DUNN .
17 FIR TREE CLOSE
BANBURY
OXON OX16 1JS
MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565
EMAIL - stablearchitecture@me.com
©Stable Architecture Ltd

Job:

Braecroft
Upper Oddington

Client:
Mr P. Wilsdon

Braecroft
Oddings

Drawing No: Date Scale
7591-01b 25/2/19 As indicated@ A1




This page is intentionally left blank



18T abed

Existing dwelling - New Braecroft

Red line site area -2618m?

Proposed new building - GIA 135m?

Existing driveway

Existing dwelling - Braecroft

Existing dwelling - New Braecroft

Location Plan
1:1250

0om 25m 50m 75m ‘1 00m ‘1 25m

Scale 1:1250 @ AT

' \ Existing boundary hedge

Proposal:

[

This proposal is to create a new dwelling.

The existing tennis court is to be removed, the proposed dwelling is to
sit partly over the tennis court with the finished floor level of the
annexe being installed approximately at the same height as the

existing tennis court. An external patio area is shown along with a
footpath from the main dwelling.
The building has been positioned to be against the existing boundary

@\ hedgerow and set away from the South-east black estate fencing, so
D

/

Existing boundary hedge Proposed new building - GIA 135m?

Existing driveway for Braecroft

Driveway as to reduce its overall visibility from long distance views.
|

| Sewage treatment plant
) & /

.‘ - i ) The proposed building is designed with a rural/agricultural overall

K ) appearance with a modern and contemporary twist. The overall
Proposed patio. o e proportions and dimensions are based on common dimensions used
, ) A o o for traditional stone agricultural buildings, however the stonework is to
2x Parking spaces % R ’ be a dry stone appearance using a traditional material installed as a
7 ) // 7 i R \ traditional boundary wall, that is used to construct modern external
Extend existing boundary hedge s / walls of the property.

S g Recess openings are incorporated in the design simulating open
<A - . o fronted car shed style openings, these are recessed beyond the

7 ’ surface of the stone wall and finished in horizontal oak boarding.
The proposed roof is a traditional pitched design, but finished in a

v - / modern grey standing seam metal sheeting giving a contemporary
% g P » twist on traditional roofing.
. - P Existing boundary fence

Materials:

/

P Tennis court
s ’ enclosure (shown in
g green) to be removed

Tennis court layoute (shown in blue)

) Proposed landscaping along this South East boundary

{Y\ o Walls: new walls to be natural Cotswold stone laid as a dry stone wall
g finished with no pointing to create a contemporary style appearance to
a a traditional wall.

p , Where noted recessed wall panels are to be installed, these are to be

L . set back 100 mm from the face surface of the stonework and

7 . constructed in natural horizontal oak boarding left to seasoned

7 7 naturally.

/ Pitched Roof: new roof finish to be grey colour powder coated

. v aluminium standing seam metal sheeting with integrated grey powder
' y 2 coated guttering, and square profile downpipes, this design creates a
Existing dwelling 20 , traditional pitched roof using a modern contemporary material.

L y Link Roof: grey rubberised flat roofing EPDM such as Sarnafil with

. o grey powder coated guttering and square profile downpipes, this

g g design creates a traditional pitched roof using a modern contemporary
g material.

% : .’ Solar Panels: grey framework and black solar panels to blend in with
’ , proposed grey roof.

P d / Windows and Doors: frames to be Anthracite grey powder coated
’ ! aluminium with double glazing.

2 g Glazing: External glazing to the South-East elevation to be Pilkington
. 7 SunCooal, this offers a Light transmittance performance ranging from
% s 70% to 28% giving excellent light/heat ratios reducing light spillage
/ 2 through these glazed panels.

. / Driveway / Parking: new driveway and parking/turning area to be
. , self draining porous gravel surface.

Block)?Ian
1:500

Om J10m 20m 30m AOm §Om
[TITITITIT] [ \ [ \ \ \
‘Scale 1:500 @ At ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

General Notes:

1. Stable Architecture retain full copyright of the design and of
the content of this drawing.
Do not scale drawings. Dimensions govern.
All dimensions are in millimetres unless noted otherwise.
All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding
with the work.

5. Stable Architecture shall be notified in writing of any
> discrepancies.

6. Contractor/builder to carry out their own survey work prior
to quantification and construction.

HWOWN

N\
Y )
Existing hedgerow

Solar panels

Existing dwelling - New Braecroft

Proposed new building - GIA 135m?

Existing post and wire fence (boundary)

Turning area

Solar panels

w% Existing hedgerow
\

Driveway

Solar panels

New patio area

\ 2
A o
s/ N\ P
4 ) 7
4 7/ ,New low level retaining wall
7/
’ 7 i
4 s a
4 s /
/.
New patio area m
P /
, /
y I
/
/. 7 // /
/
/ /\ ‘ % :
’ . » . / %
Location of existing tennis court - / %

2x Parking spaces

Solar panels

\ -
Ve
L

\ Edsting tennis court (to be removed)
- \shown here as blue dotted lines

N

Sewage treatment plant

A

enclosing fences (to be ya
removed) shown here as green
dotted lines

Extend existing boundary hedge

\\
N

Proposed/landscaping along this South East boundary

Existing tennis (shown here as blue dotted lines) court
including all fences, retaining walls (shown here as /
green dotted lines) and hard surfaces to be removed ~ ~
and returned back l} grass lawn o

Revision "a" - Addition of Sewage treatment plant 16/1/2025

PN

Proposed - Site Plans

Overall layout Plan ~STABLE

1:200 ARCHITECTURE
om 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m - JEREMY DUNN .
lS‘ ! I‘ ‘1 ‘2‘0‘0‘ ‘@1A1 | | ‘ | 1 1 BANBURY
cale 1: OXON OX16 1JS
C MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565
. EMAIL - stablearchitecture@me.com
NOTE: ©Stable Architecture Ltd
A detailed and accurate topographical survey has been prepared by Midland Surveys,
providing accurate information within the site ownership boundaries, this has been Job:
integrated with a digital Ordnance Survey download (under licence) to show information )
outside of the applicant's ownership/control, all information outside of the site boundary BraeCI’Oﬁ
is taken from the above noted digital Ordnance Survey map and was not undertaken as .
part of the detailed topographical survey. Bmmrﬁdd |ngt0n

Upper Oddington

Client: .
Mr P. Wilsdon
Braecroft
Oddings
Drawing No: Date Scale

8022-01a 26/11/2024 As indicated@ A1




This page is intentionally left blank



Stable Architecture retain full copyright of the design and of

General Notes

1.

[
L
@
=
£
°
c8
15}
TR
3 a
S o
e}
R
c5
9o
n N
=
EE

hall be verified on site before proceed

o

c£O=
goE
S EE
[
8
£

fdm
Obo
=k
285
C
oo E
Cn..m
© o=
£0<
oo

ing

imensions s

4. Ald

Stable Architecture shall be notified in writing of any

with the work.

5.

Iscrepancies.

d
6. Contractor/builder to carry out their own survey work prior

to quantification and construction.

te area 27/11/2024

ion si

Revision"a" - Red line adjusted for new dwelling applicati

Revision Notes

Existing Site Sections

Date

Rev.

STABLE

.JEREMY DUNN.

17 FIR TREE CLOSE
BANBURY
OXON OX16 1JS
MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565
EMAIL - Jeremy.Dunn@Virgin.net

Job:

Client

Mr P. Wilsdon

Braecroft
Oddings

Drawing No
7591-02a

Scale
As indicated@A0

Date
11/10/22

tennis cour

Existin,

round level (shown dashed green

Existin,

rt enclosure

IS cou

ing tenni
=

|
|
Exi§t

5 ; \\\
<]
o |
0 1
c
c
5]
2
£
5 J N
2 B
fin} o,
v
=\ . A
7
c
B ,
. i
B )
< ( .
° \ T
c , \
W )
<
@
2
° /i
H _;
°
c
3 |
°
<]
S)
ok
£
=
R
%
w =
= = )
E i e
b T bl
L e S
e ah
. <
( \ S o
BSERSEREEEEEEEEIEEEEE
& :,,\M,P
— 23
g “2
2
b =
o i
s =
S =
= = 1
3 i =
3 .
o - =
2 ) / 8
S )
2 | . ]
o | <
e , g
m A kel
5 \ c
b I
| | W
| <
e @
o . i h o ]
7= — ~ £
A U B\ o
R% \ oy AR - c
s« 5
. . °
b <]

! i1
] L

IR R EKSS
RIS
B R IR

1 t&%gx‘uﬁ%@u@x&%@%&&w
< SRESE

IS ESEES

B R R
R S O e |

Existing tennis court enclosul

100

1

Section 1

Page 183

i

Section 2

Section 3

100

10m

8m

6m

4m

2m

om

1100 @ At

Scale 1



This page is intentionally left blank



GgT abed

]

Section 1
1:100

SN
This section cuts through the building,
therefore entrance shown as section profil

This drawing sheet has been populated with spot levels around the
building and within the building, these related directly to the
topographical survey levels shown on existing drawing sheet 7591-01a

Proposed buildin

Ground level reduced mainly in
area of existing tennis court

01.50m

Existing ground level (shown dashed green) taken from
section on drawing sheet 7591-02 (existing sections)

I“

s S ST ae A e e s s e

Section 2
1:100

Section 3
1:100

Om 2m 4m

101.15m

This section cuts through the
building, therefore buildin
shown as section profil

S

—

Scale 1:100 @ A1

10m

s E—

Proposed buildin

Ground level slightly raised around the perimeter of
the proposed building to create level access

Existing ground level (shown dashed green) taken from
section on drawing sheet 7591-02 (existing sections)

{;17(%.21271 {;101 25m

2572

101.97m

Ground level reduced mainly i
area of existing tennis cou

7

General Notes:

1. Stable Architecture retain full copyright of the design and of
the content of this drawing.

LN

with the work.

o

discrepancies.

Do not scale drawings. Dimensions govern.
All dimensions are in milimetres unless noted otherwise.
All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding

Stable Architecture shall be notified in writing of any

6. Contractor/builder to carry out their own survey work prior
to quantification and construction.

Existing ground level (shown dashed green) taken from
section on drawing sheet 7591-02 (existing sections)

{

Rev. Date Revision Notes

Proposed - Site Sections

~STABLE
"ARCHITECTURE

.JEREMY DUNN.

17 FIR TREE CLOSE
BANBURY
OXON OX16 1JS

MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565

EMAIL - Jeremy.Dunn@Virgin.net

Job:
Braecroft
Upper Oddington
Client: '
Mr P. Wilsdon
Braecroft
Oddings
Drawing No: Date Scale
8022-03 26/11/2024 As indicated@A0




This page is intentionally left blank



Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing Solar panels

Solar panels W
\ \ ,/

Y

Oak posts

|
Horizontal oak |

cladding infill panels \ \
\

/ Grey aluminium window frames

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls Stone low level walls enclosing patio

0Om 2m 4m 6m §m 10m
[TIT T IT T [ \ [ \ \ \
Scale 1:100 @ A1

South-West Elevation
1:100

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing *\ Solar panels ‘\ Solar panels W

’ J% i

=

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

N L1 |

!

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

Grey aluminium window frames \

Stone low level walls enclosing patio

North-East Elevation
1:100

/8T abed

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels

Solar panels \

EPDM roofing

Existing black estate boundary fence

Stone low level walls enclosing patio *\

Solar panels / Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels
Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

L
Grey aluminium window frames
/ / Existing black estate boundary fence

Existing post and rail fence (boundary) 0

/ I
I

I

\ Existing hedgerow

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Grey aluminium window frames -

Stone lintols

Stone low level walls enclosing patio

Wadding infill panels

L}Iﬂ\ A

]
’ ‘ \é - Oak beam

North-West Elevation
1:100

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels

Solar panels

Solar panels \

EPDM roofing

Stone low level walls
enclosing patio

Perspective 1

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

Stone lintols

Grey aluminium window frames

Stone low level walls
enclosing patio

This drawing sheet has been populated with spot levels around the

building and within the building, these
topographigal survey levels shown on existi

Existing tennis court (to be removed) |
shown here as blue dotted lines

related directlytothe ' == === —— B [ i i -
ng drawing sheet 7591-01a

N-—-------

removed) shown here as
blue dotted lines

/ Proposed level retaining wall
A

e

I
|
I
I
I
. I
. : :
| | |
— Locatiqn of existing tennis court | i Existing tennis (shown here as blue .dpned
enclosing fences (to be removed) ) I lines) court including all fences, retaining
shown here as green dotted lines walls (shown here as green dotted lines)
! : | and hard surfaces to be removed and
I
|
Existing tennis court (to be T TTTEETEETE T A======- -

'
— Red line show previous design size / position -
this revlised design in reduced in size

|

|

I

I

I

I

|

, r

Proposed patio |
‘ I
I

I

I

|

I

|

I

I

I

I

I
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
|
I
I
I
I

e e e e e e e e e e b b 49V _______| returned back to grass lawn |
I
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
|
I
I
I
I

I
Red line show previous design size / position - this =
| | revised design in reduced in size
|
I \\
| :' ____________________ A
|
: I 101.40 m | Bedroom 1
| ! |
1 S A T |
I | |
: ' ] 2 ! Location of existing tennis court
L= = T : enclosing fences (to be removed) shown
N here as green dotted lines
|
101.40 m Ensuite : \ Proposed level retaining wall
: Bedroom 2 |
|
101.50 m [~—————=——] |
| J ) N S
5 : Shewer
i [ ] 101.40m
Sitting Area : T Sauna :
101.18 m : 101.50 m 101.33 m
101.40 m | !&
$ |
GIA 135m? . 101.50 m L
/ I LObby?i Gym
! ro T T 7
: h | | |
] | | |
Dining Area 1 | | |
° ' AN - | w w w
| | |
I [ [ [
N | | |
o Glass link creating entrance area \1 01.33m I I
I S
101.09 m . ﬂ ™.101.35 m - | |
: & | | |
| | Y A ! G d | |
il 1:100 | | |
Red line show previous design size / position - Om 2m 4m 6m §m ‘1 Om
this revised design in reduced in size 1 [T T T I [ | [ | | |
{ ,,,,, Scale 1:100 @ A1

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels

Solar panels

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

Oak beams over

Oak post

Fround level ouside of courtyard

B e

larger opening

Stone low level walls enclosing patio

Horizontal oak cladding infill panels

Perspective 2

Grey aluminium window frames

Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing
Grey standing seam sheet metal roofing

Solar panels Solar panels

Stone low level walls enclosing patio ‘

ﬁ_,__ — Stone low level walls enclosing patio

South-East Elevation - Inside Courtyard
1:100

This view is taken 1.0m away from the face of the elevation

South-East Elevation - Outside Courtyard

1:100

This view is taken 10.0m away from the face of the elevation

Drystone affect Cotswold stone walls

Perspective 3

General Notes:

1. Stable Architecture retain full copyright of the design and of

the content of this drawing.

Do not scale drawings. Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimetres unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding

with the work.

5. Stable Architecture shall be notified in writing of any
discrepancies.

6. Contractor/builder to carry out their own survey work prior
to quantification and construction.

AN

Proposal:

This proposal is to create a new dwelling.

The existing tennis court is to be removed, the proposed dwelling is to
sit partly over the tennis court with the finished floor level of the
annexe being installed approximately at the same height as the

existing tennis court. An external patio area is shown along with a
footpath from the main dwelling.
The building has been positioned to be against the existing boundary
hedgerow and set away from the South-east black estate fencing, so
as to reduce its overall visibility from long distance views.

The proposed building is designed with a rural/agricultural overall
appearance with a modern and contemporary twist. The overall
proportions and dimensions are based on common dimensions used
for traditional stone agricultural buildings, however the stonework is to
be a dry stone appearance using a traditional material installed as a
traditional boundary wall, that is used to construct modern external
walls of the property.

Recess openings are incorporated in the design simulating open
fronted car shed style openings, these are recessed beyond the
surface of the stone wall and finished in horizontal oak boarding.
The proposed roof is a traditional pitched design, but finished in a
modern grey standing seam metal sheeting giving a contemporary
twist on traditional roofing.

Materials:

Walls: new walls to be natural Cotswold stone laid as a dry stone wall
finished with no pointing to create a contemporary style appearance to
a traditional wall.

Where noted recessed wall panels are to be installed, these are to be
set back 100 mm from the face surface of the stonework and
constructed in natural horizontal oak boarding left to seasoned
naturally.

Pitched Roof: new roof finish to be grey colour powder coated
aluminium standing seam metal sheeting with integrated grey powder
coated guttering, and square profile downpipes, this design creates a

traditional pitched roof using a modern contemporary material.

Link Roof: grey rubberised flat roofing EPDM such as Sarnafil with
grey powder coated guttering and square profile downpipes, this
design creates a traditional pitched roof using a modern contemporary
material.

Solar Panels: grey framework and black solar panels to blend in with
proposed grey roof.

Windows and Doors: frames to be Anthracite grey powder coated
aluminium with double glazing.

Glazing: External glazing to the South-East elevation to be Pilkington
SunCool, this offers a Light transmittance performance ranging from
70% to 28% giving excellent light/heat ratios reducing light spillage
through these glazed panels.

Driveway / Parking: new driveway and parking/turning area to be
self draining porous gravel surface.

Stone lintols

Proposed - Main Sheet

.JEREMY DUNN.
17 FIR TREE CLOSE
BANBURY
OXON OX16 1JS
C MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565
EMAIL - stablearchitecture@me.com
©Stable Architecture Ltd
Job:
Braecroft
Brammrdftidington
Upper Oddington
Client: _
Mr P. Wilsdon
Braecroft
Oddings
Drawing No: Date Scale
8022-02 26/11/2024 1:100@ A1




This page is intentionally left blank



Critical note: Within the views shown below all planting (trees, bushes
and hedgerows) Have been set to a partial transparency of 20% allowing

some element of seeing through the trees to give a more realistic
assessment of the site

/
RN
/

7

/ /

Roof of proposed new building Braecroft N
NS ey ' ~ Rear boundary fence NP ﬁ
New braecroft : > IS Y LOYEN S ; Lol ) T N\

O /> /7O
\ TS
»“lb)\\\\ ’,/‘bl N '
D b
A '
{

|

Highway Section

This view is a two dimensional scaled view of the entire site taken by cutting through the public highway all that will shown to scale and taken from top of graphical survey
1:200

This blue dashed line indicates the position of the highway section

69T abed

The Perspective view shown below is a three dimensional view, it has been created by picking a camera position in a three dimensional model and looking towards the site wit the site having been cut
through cut at the point of the public highway to demonstrate show the existing ground levels along the highway.

T
NL,

2!!€|

]

( J/%ﬁmj%\)
L (A %

s

|85
= BRI )
A
Mﬁ >, ; “‘3%“

T AT
g1 oD D P T

s,

Street Perspective View point / Camera level set at 2.0m above highway

Section Key
1:500

Rev. Date Revision Notes
Road / Highways Views
.JEREMY DUNN.
17 FIR TREE CLOSE
BANBURY
OXON OX16 1JS
C MOBILE (07710) 461860
TELEPHONE (01295) 270565
EMAIL - Jeremy.Dunn@Virgin.net
Job:
Braecroft
Upper Oddington
Client: .
Mr P. Wilsdon
Braecroft
Oddings

Drawing No: Date Scale
8022-04 26/11/2024 A0




This page is intentionally left blank



TREES

Abbreviation | Species Girth Height Specification Density | Number
Bet pen Betula pendula |14-16cm | 4.0-5.0m |Root Zone:C Min.Breaks/Branches:4/7brks Form:Multi-Stemmed | Counted | 11
N FagSyl Car Bet Carpinus betulus | 14-16cm | 425-600cm | Root Zone:C  Min.Breaks/Branches:3/5brks Form:Clear Stem Counted | 2
— 1No.Querob 3 No. Bet pen rz No. Bet pen AN GORAV Fag Syl Fagus sylvatica |14-16cm | 425-600cm | Root Zone:C Min.Breaks/Branches:3/5brks Form:Clear Stem Counted | 4
/\\ { 7Ne. ﬁ_if” Que rob Quercus robur | 14-16cm | 425-600cm | Root Zone:C Min.Breaks/Branches:3/5brks Form:Clear Stem Counted | 3
o 7o Ve Til Cor Tilia cordata 14-16cm | 425-600cm | Root Zone:C  Min.Breaks/Branches:3/5brks  Form:Clear Stem Counted | 2
5 v Y
\?
\ V 9 No. Vib lau CONIFERS
A \ 10 No. Hyd arb SA |Abbreviation | Species |Girth |Height |Pot Size | Specification | Density |Number
] 21 No. Dry aff 18 No. Ses aut Pin Syl Pinus sylvestris | 14-16cm | 350-400cm | 3-4L Root Zone:C | Counted | 3
12 No. C MF HEDGES
40 No. Fag syl H 7 No. Ski con KG Percentage \Species |Height |Specification | Density Note:
10% Corylus avellana 60-80cm | Root Zone:C | 2/m 20 I*?edg'”g rilantsép Ee Pl:ab”ted a(; Sto t?le
o : - inear meter, which will be prodomently
75% Crataegus monogyna | 60-80cm | Root Zone:C |2/m 365 the Crataegus monogyna, with the other
1 No. Car Bot 5% llex aquifolium 60-80cm | Root Zone:C | 2/m 11 the hedge.
5% Viburnum opulus 60-80cm | Root Zone:C | 2/m 11
HEDGES
. - Abbreviation | Species |Height Specification Density | Number
] Fag syl H Fagus sylvatica (Hedge) | 60-80cm | Root Zone:BR (1+1) or Root Zone:C (3L) Planting:Double-Staggered | 6/m 40
2 No. Til Cor
SHRUBS
Abbreviation |Species Height |Pot Size | Specification | Density | Number
Cor san MF Cornus sanguinea 'Midwinter Fire' 60-80cm | 3L Root Zone:C Habit:Bushy | 1/m? 27
Hyd arb SA Xﬁifﬁjﬁa arborescens 'Strong 40-60cm | 3L Root Zone:C Habit:Bushy | 1/m? 24
0 Ski con KG Skimmia confusa 'Kew Green' 30-40cm | 5L Root Zone:C Habit:Bushy | 1/m? 19
Vib lau Viburnum laurustinus 60-80cm | 3L Root Zone:C Habit:Bushy | 1/m? 26
HERBACEOUS
|Abbreviation |Species |Pot Size | Specification |Density|Number|
Dry aff Dryopteris affinis 3L Root Zone:C Habit:Bushy 2/m? 46
1 No. Car Bet GRASSES
3 No- Pin S | Abbreviation |Species | Pot Size | Specification | Density | Number |
/”'j| Ses aut Sesleria autumnalis 3L Root Zone:C Habit:Tufted 2/m? 45
13 No. Dry aff Note:
7 No. Cor san MF 50mm of bark mulch to be spread across all new planting areas
14 No. Ses aut
1 No. Que rob P06 17/03/25 - Note added MS  SEI
1 No. Fag Syl P05 |14/03/25 | - Plant numbers updated, driveway MS SEI
. hanged
| KEY P04 |07/02/25 -CDarir\]/%svay and tree planting updated MS SEI
[ ;C 7 No. Hyd arb SA P03 |11/10/24| - Plant Schedule Updated CAT SEI
6No. SKiconKG —Lre o b Nl n o a B 9 No. Viblau P02 |26/09/24| - Planting Revised CAT | SEI
N Ao Existing Tree PO1 |04/06/24 | - First Issue CAT | SEI
1 No-Bueu REV | DATE | BY [CHKD
8 No. Vib lau 1 No-1aq
1 No. Viop
1 No. Fag Syl
Existing Hedge
3 No. Bet pen !/ Q —0 = ' ,
@ Proposed Tree
12 No. Dry aff -
8 No. Cor san MF
Project
E)/ Proposed Planting
oo — Breacroft, Upper Oddington
3No. llag
3 No. Viop
{:} Proposed Hedge Q Client
Deborah Smith
1 No. Que rob Title
NOTES Detailed Planting Plan
1. The use of this data by the recipient acts as an agreement of the following statements.
Do not use this data if you do not agree with any of the following statements.
2. This drawing remains the copyright of lliman Young Landscape Design. Scale Size Date Drawn Checked
3. Do not scale the drawing, t for planni . All dimensi i .
B e el 1:200 | A2 |31/0524| CAT | SEl
dimensions on site. Status Revision
4. Report di i issions to the Land Architects bef ding.
5. This document i to be read in conjunction wih the speciication and all other project FOR ISSUE P06
documentation. Drawing no.

6. OS information reproduced from Ordnance Survey Map with permission of Promap,

Crown Copyright; lllman Young Landscape Design Licence number LIG0169 22303_ IYL-8050-XX-D R-L-ZOOO




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new dwelling at Outbuilding
to the East of Poplars Barn Green Lane Evenlode Moreton-In-Marsh
Gloucestershire GL56 ONN

Full Application

21/01892/FUL
Applicant: Clarissa Astor
Agent: LPC (Trull) Ltd
Case Officer: Charlotte Van De Wydeven
Ward Member(s): Councillor David Cunningham
Committee Date: 11 June 2025
RECOMMENDATION: PERMIT

UPDATE: This application was an Agenda Item (No.8) on the Planning and
Licensing Committee of 14 May 2025. Due to the Case Officer being absent, the
Committee resolved to defer consideration of this application to the Planning
and Licensing Committee of 11 June 2025.

1. Main Issues:

(a) Principle of Development

(b)  Impact on the Character and Appearance of Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds
Special Landscape Area

Q) Impact on Setting of Evenlode Conservation Area

(

(d) Residential Amenity
(e)  Access and Parking

(f) Biodiversity

9) Other considerations
(h) CIL

2. Reasons for Referral:

2.1 Not relevant
3. Site Description:

3.1 This application relates to an existing timber building located on a parcel of
land measuring approximately 650sgm hectares in size located on the north-
eastern side of the village of Evenlode. The site lies to the north-east of Poplars
Barn and is accessed via a track between this and Pump Green House. The
access track is also a PROW; serves a parking area to Pump Green House; and

Page 193



3.2

3.3

34

3.5

4.1

provides access to the rear of Martlett House to the northwest and agricultural
land beyond the site to the north. The building on the site is of timber
construction and the supporting information with the application states that it
is used for covered parking, storage and studio use having previously been
stabling.

The north-eastern boundary of the site adjoins agricultural fields, to which the
access track leads with a 5-bar gate providing access into the fields. The eastern
boundary abuts land in the ownership of Pump Green House which was (June
2020) granted planning permission for use as residential curtilage under
20/01632/FUL. The northeastern boundary of this site is formed by a tall,
established hedgerow with it being concluded that the land had residential
characteristics and its use as domestic garden would not adversely impact upon
either the Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds Special Landscape Area or the
Evenlode Conservation Area. To the northwest of the site is the substantial
garden to Martlett House.

The site is located within Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds Special Landscape Area.

The site is located outside Evenlode Conservation Area (CA). The boundary of
the CA extends along the south-western boundary of the application site.

A Public Right of Way (HEV6) extends in a north-east to south-west direction
along the north-western side of the application site.

Relevant Planning History:

97.01793 - Erection of timber loose box and associated storage, erection of
timber field shelter - Permitted

Planning Policies:

e TNPPF The National Planning Policy Framework
e EN2 Design of Built & Natural Environment

e EN4 The Wider Natural & Historic Landscape

e ENG6 Special Landscape Areas

e EN8 Bio & Geo: Features Habitats & Species

e EN10 HE: Designated Heritage Assets

e EN11 HE: DHA - Conservation Areas

e INF4 Highway Safety

e DS3 Small-scale Res Dev non-Principal Settle

e INF5 Parking Provision

Page 194



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

Observations of Consultees:

GCC Highways: Objection as it was considered that the proposed dwelling
would increase peak hour vehicle trips on the existing outbuilding in an
unsustainable location without regular commutable bus services nearby to
significant settlements and associated education, shops, employment and
amenities.

CDC Drainage: No objection subject to condition

Biodiversity Officer: No objection subject to condition

Environmental Health: No objection

View of Town/Parish Council:

Evenlode PC object to the application on the following grounds:

(i) Over-development of the Poplars Barn property. Already a guest annexe
adjacent to the main property.

(i) Widening of the building on the site brings it closer to the farm access
track and PROW.

(ili)  For such a small village an additional AirBnB type property is excessive.

Other Representations:

Five letters of objection have been received from 4 households within the village
raising the following concerns:

(1) Design

(i) Highways access and parking

(ili)  Over development

(iv)  Privacy, Light and Noise

(V) Other issues not considered material planning considerations
(restrictive covenants, financials)

Applicant’'s Supporting Information:
e Design and Access Statement

e Bat Survey and Report
e Preliminary Ecological Appraisal

Page 195



10.

10.1

(a)

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Officer's Assessment:
Proposed Development

This application is for the demolition of the existing timber outbuilding, and the
erection of a single storey detached dwelling, comprising two bedrooms, an
open plan living, kitchen, dining area, shower room and utility area following
the demolition of the existing timber outbuilding on the site. An area of private
amenity space is proposed to the southeast side, adjacent to the recently
extended garden at Pump Green House. Off-street parking provision for 2 no.
vehicles, along with a turning area, would be provided to the northeast end of
the site, where there is currently an area of concrete hard standing.

Principle of Development

The application site is located within the village of Evenlode. The village contains
40-50 dwellings, a church and a village hall. It is also served by a very limited
bus service. However, it has no other services or facilities that would typically
be used by residents on a day-to-day basis. Future occupiers of the new
dwellings would therefore be reliant on the use of the motor car to undertake
most day-to-day activities. Notwithstanding this, the site is located midway
between two Principal Settlements (Moreton-in-Marsh and Stow-on-the-
Wold). A range of services and facilities can be found in the aforementioned
settlements including a railway station, hospital, primary schools, foodstores
and employment estates. Paragraph 83 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) also states that 'housing should be located where it will
enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. Planning policies should
identify opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially where this will
support local services. Where there are groups of smaller settlements,
development in one village may support services in a village nearby'.

In light of the size of the settlement and its proximity to two Principal
Settlements, it is considered that the village could reasonably be classed as a
Non-Principal Settlement for the purposes of the Cotswold District Local Plan
2011-2031.

When viewing the site in the context of the surrounding uses, including the
previously approved residential garden land to the rear of Pump Green House,
it is considered that the site lies within the village of Evenlode, which is a non-
principal settlement.

Policy DS3 of the Local Plan supports small-scale residential development in
non-principal settlements subject to a number of criteria:

Page 196



10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

(a) demonstrably supports or enhances the vitality of the local community and
the continued availability of services and facilities locally.

(b) is of a proportionate scale and maintains and enhances sustainable patterns
of development;

(c) complements the form and character of the settlement;

(d) does not have an adverse cumulative impact on the settlement having
regard to other developments permitted during the Local Plan period.

The village of Evenlode has a church and village hall but there is no shop or
public house and so there are limited facilities. However, the erection of the
proposed dwelling will seek to support and enhance these services and may
also help support services in nearby villages, as suggested within paragraph 83
of the NPPF. The proposal will also provide a small home, which the NPPF says
can make an important contribution meeting the housing requirement of an
area, as they are often built-out relatively quickly. The type of dwelling that is
proposed for this site is capable of being constructed quickly and therefore
point (a) is met.

The provision of one additional unit would be of a proportionate scale to the
village and the services and facilities within the village would be accessible from
the proposed dwelling. The proposal would therefore accord with point (b) of
DS3.

The proposed dwelling would be single storey in height and a simple linear
layout as per the existing outbuilding on site. The existing outbuilding is 15m x
5.4m and the proposed dwelling would be 17.6m x 5.9m. As such, while the
proposed dwelling would be marginally wider and longer than the existing
outbuilding it is considered that its scale, simple linear layout and use of
materials conducive to the original outbuilding would complement the form
and character of this part of the settlement in accordance with point (c) of DS3
given the existing building on site.

With regard to point (d) of Local Plan Policy DS3, no other new-build dwellings
have been permitted in the Local Plan period in the village of Evenlode although
it is noted that there is a currently application for a replacement dwelling and
one additional dwelling currently in the planning system at Little Orchard. The
proposal is not considered to have an adverse cumulative impact on the
settlement having regard to other developments permitted during the Local
Plan period.

Page 197



10.10

(b)

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Taking the above into account, the proposal is considered to comply with the
Local Plan Policy DS3 and paragraph 83 of the NPPF.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds
Special Landscape Area

The site is located within Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds Special Landscape Area
(SLA).

Local Plan Policy EN4 The Wider Natural and Historic Landscape states:

1. '‘Development will be permitted where it does not have a significant
detrimental impact on the natural and historic landscape (including the
tranquillity of the countryside) of Cotswold District or neighbouring
areas.

2. Proposals will take account of landscape and historic landscape
character, visual quality and local distinctiveness. They will be expected
to enhance, restore and better manage the natural and historic
landscape, and any significant landscape features and elements,
including key views, the setting of settlements, settlement patterns and
heritage assets.'

Local Plan Policy EN6 Special Landscape Areas states:

'‘Development within Special Landscape Areas will be permitted provided it
does not have a significant detrimental impact upon the special character and
key landscape qualities of the area including its tranquillity'.

In addition, paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by 'protecting and enhancing valued landscapes' and 'recognising the intrinsic
character and beauty of the countryside'. On the basis of the SLA designation,
it is considered that the site would fall within a valued landscape. Paragraph 187
of the NPPF would therefore be applicable when considering this proposal.

The site is located within the village and between existing residential dwellings
and associated gardens. The site is seen in context with existing village
development and the proposal will not result in an encroachment of
development into the open countryside. Subject to the existing vegetation
located along the boundaries of the site being retained or replaced with a

Page 198



10.16

(c)

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

suitable alternative, the proposal is also unlikely to have a material impact on
the setting of the village within the SLA landscape. It Is therefore considered
that the proposals would not an adverse impact on the character or appearance
of the SLA.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development will not have an adverse
impact on the character or appearance of the SLA. The proposal is considered
to accord with Local Plan Policies EN4 and EN6.

Impact on Setting of Evenlode Conservation Area

The south-western boundary of the site adjoins Evenlode Conservation Area.
The following Local Plan policies are considered relevant to this proposal:
Local Plan Policy EN10 Designated Heritage Assets states:

1 'In considering proposals that affect a designated heritage asset or its
setting, great weight will be given to the asset's conservation. The more
important the asset, the greater the weight should be.

2 Development proposals that sustain and enhance the character,
appearance and significance of designated heritage assets (and their
settings), and that put them to viable uses, consistent with their
conservation, will be permitted.

3 Proposals that would lead to harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset or its setting will not be permitted, unless a clear and
convincing justification of public benefit can be demonstrated to
outweigh that harm. Any such assessment will take account, in the
balance of material considerations:

e The importance of the asset;
e The scale of harm; and

e The nature and level of the public benefit of the proposal.’

Local Plan Policy EN11 Designated Heritage Assets - Conservation Areas
states:

'‘Development proposals, including demolition, that would affect Conservation
Areas and their settings, will be permitted provided they:

Page 199



10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

a. Preserve and where appropriate enhance the special character and
appearance of the Conservation Area in terms of siting, scale, form,
proportion, design, materials and the retention of positive features;

b. Include hard and soft landscape proposals, where appropriate, that
respect the character and appearance of the Conservation Area;

C. Will not result in the loss of open spaces, including garden areas and
village greens, which make a valuable contribution to the character
and/or appearance, and/or allow important views into or out of the
Conservation Area.

d. Have regard to the relevant Conservation Area appraisal (where
available); and

e. do not include internally illuminated advertisement signage unless the
signage does not have an adverse impact on the Conservation Area or
its setting.'

In terms of national guidance, paragraph 212 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) states that 'when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight
should be given to the asset's conservation.'

Paragraph 215 states that 'Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.'

The site lies adjacent to existing residential gardens and has a number of
residential characteristics. At present, it appears as a transitional area between
the existing houses and the open fields to the north-east. The site provides a
relatively soft edge to both the settlement and the CA. Notwithstanding this, it
is not truly agricultural in character or appearance and as such the boundary of
the CA does not appear as if it lies immediately adjacent to agricultural land.
The current character of the site means that the CA boundary appears to be
located adjacent to existing village development rather than the open
countryside.

In light of the current managed character of the existing site, it is considered

that the proposed garden use will not be materially different in character or
appearance to the existing land use. In addition, the proposal is considered not

Page 200



10.25

(d)

10.26

10.27

10.28

to have an adverse impact on the setting of the CA when viewed from the Right
of Way to the north. The existing boundary hedgerow is residential in character
and already has an influence on the setting of the CA. The proposed use does
not involve the erection of any buildings and as such the existing verdant nature
of the site will remain.

It is considered that the proposed change of use is considered not to have an
adverse impact on the setting of the CA or its relationship with the designated
heritage asset. The proposal is considered to accord with Local Plan Policies
EN10 and EN11 and guidance in Section 16 of the NPPF.

Impact on Residential Amenity
(i) Nationally Described Space Standards and Amenity of Future Occupiers

The proposals are for a single storey 2 double bedroomed property. The NDSS
requires a minimum internal space of 70sgm plus 2sgm of built in storage. The
proposals would provide a total internal floorspace of 89sgm. In addition, the 2
double bedrooms exceed the minimum width of 2.75m for the 1st room and
2.55m for the 2nd. Therefore, the proposals would provide adequate internal
living space to serve the future occupants and as such comply with the NDSS
and Policy H1 of the Cotswold District Local Plan.

(i) Amenity of Neighbouring Properties

Local Plan Policy EN2 refers to The Design Code (Appendix D) which sets out
policy with regard to residential amenity. This expects proposals to respect
amenity in regard to garden space, privacy, daylight and overbearing effect.
Section 12 of the NPPF requires good design with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users.

The proposed development would not impinge on the residential amenities of
the neighbouring properties having regard to loss of light, overlooking or have
an overbearing impact. The proposed works would be set away from other
neighbouring properties and would not cause unacceptable harm to the
residential amenities of the neighbouring properties. The building is single
storey which limits any potential overlooking and there is also limited
fenestration on the elevations with the use of rooflights proposed for additional
light. The proposed development is considered to accord with the objectives of
Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2 and Section 12 of the NPPF referred to
previously in the report.

Page 201



(e)

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Access and Parking

Local Plan Policy INF4 (Highway Safety) supports development that is well
integrated with the existing transport network and beyond the application site,
avoiding severance resulting from mitigation and severe impact upon the
highway network. Developments that create safe and secure layouts and access
will be permitted.

Local Plan Policy INF5 (Parking Provision) seeks to ensure sufficient parking
provision to manage the local road network.

Section 9 of the NPPF advocates sustainable transport, including safe and
suitable accesses to all sites for all people. However, it also makes it clear that
development should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds where
there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network are severe.

The application site enjoys existing vehicular access from Green Lane to the
existing building and the farmland to its northeast. The field access to the
applicant's land to the northeast will be retained, as will the area where vehicles
park to the northeast of the existing building.

The proposed dwelling will be accessed on foot in the same manner that the
existing building is accessed but the entrance will be on the southeast side
where it will be accessible to pedestrians or visitors in a car.

There is provision within the curtilage of the dwelling for the parking and
turning of two cars so that each vehicle will be able and leave the site in a
forward gear. There is adequate room within the curtilage for the parking of
cycles.

The Highways Officer raised concerns stating that the proposed dwelling would
increase peak hour vehicle trips on the existing outbuilding as there are limited
regular commutable bus services nearby to significant settlements and
associated education, shops, employment and amenities. Whilst this may be the
case, based on the analysis of the information submitted, it is considered that
there would not be an unacceptable impact on Highway Safety or a severe
impact on congestion as a result of an increase in peak hour vehicle trips. There
are no justifiable grounds on which an objection could be maintained. Overall,
it is considered that the proposal accords with Local Plan Policies INF4 and INF5
and the NPPF.

Page 202



(f)

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

(9)

10.40

(h)

10.41

Biodiversity

The submitted bat report has confirmed likely absence of roosting bats;
therefore, this constraint does not need to be considered further. However, the
bat report did identify the presence of two swallow nests and a disused
blackbirds' nest in the open fronted section of the existing outbuilding.

To secure appropriate mitigation for nesting birds, Cotswold District Council's
Precautionary Method of Working document will need to be adhered to. To
secure compensatory bird nesting features, the above enhancement condition
is recommended; swift bricks are also recommended as these features are
known to support a number of bird species that feature of the Red List, and will
deliver a biodiversity enhancement in accordance with Chapter 15 of the NPPF
and local plan policy EN8.

Two ponds were identified within 250m of the proposed development. The
submitted great crested newt survey returned a negative eDNA result from
Pond 1, indicating great crested newts are likely to be absent from this pond.
Pond 2, identified within 50m of the proposed development is no longer
present, and therefore an assessment was not undertaken. The results of the
phase 1 and 2 surveys indicate great crested newts are highly unlikely to be a
constraint to the proposed development, nevertheless, there are other ponds
present in the wider landscape and as such, precautionary mitigation outlined
in Section 5 of the submitted ecology report will need to be adhered to.

As such the proposal is considered to accord with Section 15 of the NPPF, Policy
EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan and Section 40 of the Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

Other Considerations

As mentioned previously, there is a public footpath along the northwestern
boundary of the application site and this proposal will ensure that this is
retained. It will be fenced off with an appropriate fencing.

CIL

This development is liable for CIL because it is a new build that results in the
creation of a dwelling.

Page 203



11. Conclusion:

11.1  Overall, it is considered that the proposed change of use will not have an
adverse impact on the character or appearance of Moreton-in-Marsh Surrounds
Special Landscape Area or the setting of Evenlode Conservation Area. It is
therefore recommended that the application is granted permission.

12. Proposed Conditions:

1. The development shall be started by 3 years from the date of this decision
notice.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following drawing number(s): LPC,5077,21,03 A; 807_PL_404_SE-2; 807_PL_403_SE-1;
807_PL_402_RE; 807_PL_401_FE

Reason: For purposes of clarity and for the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework.

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), or any other statutory
instrument amending or replacing it, no extensions, structures, hardstandings,
openings, buildings, fences, walls or other means of enclosure shall be erected,
constructed or inserted in the building the subject of this permission, other than those
permitted by this Decision Notice.

Reason: The site has a distinct and attractive character and appearance which should
be maintained. In order to protect these qualities, it is essential for the Local Planning
Authority to maintain control over the types of development listed above, in
accordance with Cotswold District Local Plan Policy EN2 and the NPPF.

4. Prior to the commencement of development, details of a sustainable drainage
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall then be carried out fully in accordance with approved details prior
to the first occupation of the development and shall be maintained in accordance with
the approved details thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 204



Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve water quality and to
maximise the value for wildlife of drainage features in accordance with Cotswold
District Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. It is important that
these details are established prior to the commencement of development so that the
measures can be fully incorporated into the development scheme as it progresses
thereby reducing the risk of flooding in the locality.

5. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the recommendations
contained in Section 5 of the consultancy report (Great Crested Newt eDNA Analysis,
prepared by All Ecology, dated May 2022) and Cotswold District Council's
Precautionary Method of Working document. All of the recommendations shall be
implemented in full according to the specified timescales, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and thereafter permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure great crested newts and nesting birds are protected in accordance
with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, Section 15 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan
2011-2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

6. Prior to the erection of any external wall, details of the provision of 2no. swallow
nest cups and 2no. universal swift bricks on north or east-facing elevations of the new
dwelling shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. The details
shall include a technical drawing showing the types of features, their locations within
the site, including elevations and heights and a timetable for their provision. The
approved details shall be implemented within 3 months of completion of the
development hereby approved, and thereafter permanently retained.

Reason: To provide additional opportunities for nesting birds as biodiversity
enhancements in accordance with Section 15 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy EN8 of the Cotswold District Local Plan 2011-2031 and Section 40
of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

Informatives:

1. This development is liable for CIL because it is a new build that results in the
creation of a dwelling.

2. If a protected species (such as any bat, great crested newt, dormouse, badger,

reptile, barn owl or any nesting bird) is discovered using a feature on site that would
be affected by the development or related works all activity which might affect the

Page 205



species at the locality should cease. If the discovery can be dealt with satisfactorily by
the implementation of biodiversity mitigation measures that have already been drawn
up by your ecological advisor and approved by the Local Planning Authority, then
these should be implemented. Otherwise, a suitably experienced ecologist should be
contacted and the situation assessed before works can proceed. This action is
necessary to avoid possible prosecution and ensure compliance with the Wildlife &
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Protection of Badgers Act 1992 and the Wild
Mammals Act 1996. This advice note should be passed on to any persons or
contractors carrying out the development/works. Cotswold District Council's
Precautionary Method of Working document can be found here:
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-
biodiversity/biodiversityspecifications/

3. The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate
Sustainable Drainage Techniques in order to ensure compliance with;

e Techniques in order to ensure compliance with;

¢ Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))

e Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in sustainable home building practice-
The local flood risk management strategy published by Gloucestershire County
Council, as per the Flood and Water

e Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1))

e CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015

e The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England,
produced by the Environment

e Agency in July 2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and Water
Management Act 2010.

e Updated Planning Practice Guidance on Flood Risk and Coastal Change,
published on 25th August 2022 by the Environment Agency -
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change .

e Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015)

Page 206


https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversityspecifications/
https://www.cotswold.gov.uk/planning-and-building/wildlife-and-biodiversity/biodiversityspecifications/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-

~
| Map data |

e
i E\'Qf&?"‘\

SITE LOCATION PLAN
AREA 2 HA
SCALE 1:1250 on A4
CENTRE COORDINATES: 422329, 229238

N N F

Supplied by Streetwise Maps Ltd
www.streetwise.net
Licence'No: 100047474
14/04/202111:26

Page 207



This page is intentionally left blank



N/ N
/ /// S \<>\\:
e N

\ B ettt X Z:

EXISTING ) 0 251
POPLARS BARN , EVENLODE

SITE PLAN-EXISTING

SCALE  1,500/A4
DRG No LPC,5077,21,02 A
DATE 12 APRIL 2027

Trull -Tetbury
Gloucestershire
GL8 8s5sQ
Tel:01285 841433
Fax:01285 841489

| TOWN AND

n
0
[
Z
pui
x
<

CONSULTANTS

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



POPLARS
BARN
/ M2
K hlcular access \\
public foot path ( h
- AN

PROPOSE 0 |25

POPLARS BARN , EVENLODE
SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

SCALE  1,500/A4
DRGNo LPC,5077,21,03A
DATE 12 APRIL 2021

Trull = Tetbury
Gloucestershire
GL8 8S5Q
Tel:01285 841433
Fax:01285 841489

| TOWN AND

CONSULTANTS

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



€Tz 9bed 5949 mm

J

LIVING ROOM

CTTONUN
( —
NS e

Y

(PIVOT DOOR)

PLANT

| c/B

UTILITY

SAUNA
UNIT

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

iz

©ono
U

SHOWER SAUNA
ROOM BENCH

www.hebrideanhomes.com

I — i
|
3919 mm
. . Hebndean Homes DRAWING SET CLIENT
0 05 25m f q PLANNING APPLICATION H_807 BERNING
tel +44 (0)141 550 7360
PROPOSED HOUSE FOR: i info@hebrideanh DRAWING TITLE
' Proposed External Finishes > LJ emal info@hebrideanhomes.com | o6 Np FLOOR
web

CLARISSA BERNING
SITE ADDRESS:
POPLARS BARN
EVENLODE
MORETON-IN-MARSH
GL56 ONN

Walls: Vertical untreated siberian larch

Roof: Profiled aluminium in dark grey

Gutters: Galvanised metal

Windows: Timber framed windows in dark grey

To be read in conjunction with the specification and all relevant drawings. Contractor to check
all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing for production or construction. Architect
to be advised of any variation between the drawings and site conditions.

Note: Construction must comply with alt NHBC and industry standards.

DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY DATE
807 _PL_201_GF JW 20/04/2021
CAD FILE NAME SCALE
H_807_PL_BERNING_REV 1:50 @ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



GTz abed

% ;ﬁl

PROPOSED HOUSE FOR:

CLARISSA BERNING
SITE ADDRESS:
POPLARS BARN
EVENLODE
MORETON-IN-MARSH
GL56 ONN

0 0.5 2.5m

Proposed External Finishes

Walls: Vertical untreated siberian larch

Roof: Profiled aluminium in dark grey

Gutters: Galvanised metal

Windows: Timber framed windows in dark grey

i

N

L

J

NON GLAZED PIVOT DOOR

Hebridean Homes

tel
email

web

+44 (0)141 550 7360
inffo@hebrideanhomes.com

www.hebrideanhomes.com

To be read in conjunction with the specification and ail relevant drawings. Contractor to check
all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing for production or construction. Architect
to be advised of any variation between the drawings and site conditions.

Note: Construction must comply with all NHBC and industry standards.

DRAWING SET CLIENT
PLANNING APPLICATION H_807_BERNING
DRAWING TITLE

FRONT ELEVATION — SoutH EAST

DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY DATE
807_PL_401_FE w 20/04/2021
CAD FILE NAME SCALE
H_807_PL_BERNING_REV 1:50 @ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



/T2 abed

B T

T A N P R P e e T P o S S

e e e e e e

PROPOSED HOUSE FOR:

CLARISSA BERNING
SITE ADDRESS:
POPLARS BARN
EVENLODE
MORETON-IN-MARSH
GL56 ONN

0 0.5 2.5m

Proposed External Finishes

Walls: Vertical untreated siberian larch

Roof: Profiled aluminium in dark grey

Gutters: Galvanised metal

Windows: Timber framed windows in dark grey

REAR ELEVATION WITH SHUTTER

((Hebridean Homes

tel +44 (0)141 550 7360

email info@hebrideanhomes.com

L) web www.hebrideanhomes.com

To be read in conjunction with the specification and all relevant drawings. Contracter to check
all dimensions on site. Do not scale from this drawing for production or construction. Architect
to be advised of any variation between the drawings and site conditions.

Note: Construction must comply with all NHBC and industry standards.

DRAWING SET CLIENT

PLANNING APPLICATION H_807_BERNING
DRAWING TITLE

REAR ELEVATION = NORTH WES'[' .

DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY DATE
807_PL_402 RE JW 20/04/2021
CAD FILE NAME SCALE
H_807_PL_BERNING_REV 1:50 @ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



6T abed

AT =
) 1 ¢ \\ ;
; ’/( s 3
A QY
NN
AN
e “e\
\\\k
N N
4 4 S
> i =
. (Hebridean Homes [ormneser
0 05 2.5m f PLANNING APPLICATION H 807 BERNING
tel +44 (0)141 550 7360 — -
DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED HOUSE FOR: . . .
CLARISSA BERNING Proposed External Finishes L J email info@hebrideanhomes.com | /e £ EVATION 1 = SovTH WE;r .
SITE ADDRESS: web www_hebrideanhomes.com
POPLARS BARN Walls: Vertical untreated siberian larch DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY DATE
EVENLODE Roof: Profiled aluminium in dark grey a dimensons an she. Do ot scal om i raving o Pt o eraecsr o check 1 807_PL_403_SE-1 JW 20/04/2021
MORETON-IN-MARSH Gutters: Galvanised metal fo be advised of any variation between the drawings and site condilions.
GL56 ONN Windows: Timber framed windows in dark grey CAD FILE NAME SCALE
, . ) H_807 _PL_BERNING REV 1:50 @ A3
Note: Construction must comply with all NHBC and industry standards. - el — o




This page is intentionally left blank



T2z abed

= |
i |
== ”7,’ N
4
A A
: o
1 § oY
r d ; N
A R
o1 = i 7
i
|
up JE 4qp 0g q
. . q Heb”dean Homes DRAWING SET CLIENT
0 05 2.5m PLANNING APPLICATION H_807_BERNING
tel +44 (0)141 550 7360
i DRAWING TITLE
PROPOSED HOUSE FOR: | . . .
CLARISSA BERNING , ’ . Proposed External Finishes y J email info@nhebrideanhomes.com | gy ne £y EVATION 2 ~ N ORTYH EAST .
SITE ADDRESS: ¥ i web www.hebrideanhomes.com
’ It . .
POPLARS BARN ; Walls: Vertical untreated siberian larch A ) ) ) DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY DATE
EVENLODE Roof: Profiled aluminium in dark grey 2hdimensions on ste. Do not seal o s i fo e, Contracor o check 1 807_PL_404_SE-2 JW 20/04/2021
MORETON-IN-MARSH Gutters: Galvanised metal to be advised of any vaglation between the drawings and site conditions. -
GL56 ONN Windows: Timber framed windows in dark grey ne : CAD FILE NAME SCALE
Note: Construction must comply with all NHBC and industry standards. H— 80 7—-PL—BERN/NG—REV 150 @ A3




This page is intentionally left blank



g towards proposed s

ghway lookin

View from entrance/h

ite

Exit from site onto highway

Page 223



Existing building

Page 224



Towards rear of existing building
. S

Page 225



Rear of existing building

[ A

Rear of existing site, looking towards neighbouring boundary

Page 226



Rear of building, showing neighbouring boundary

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	 Schedule of Applications
	Planning & Licensing Committee - 11 June 2025 - Additional Pages
	Planning  Licensing Committee - 11 June 2025 - Additional Pages Update 2

	8 24/02854/OUT - Land West of Kingshill Lane, Cirencester.
	1 - 24.02854.OUT - Site Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	2 - 24.02854.OUT - Alternative Illustrative Masterplan
	01 [Masterplan]
	5/23
	5/24
	5/26
	3/03
	5/02
	3/05
	1/03
	1/06
	1/07
	1/08
	3/11


	3 - 24.02854.OUT - Site Access Priority Junction (Appendix E)
	4 - 24.02854.OUT - Cycle Route Details - Route 1
	5 - 24.02854.OUT - Cycle Route Details - Route 2
	6 - 24.02854.OUT - Cycle Link Initial Concept
	Sheets and Views
	Work


	7 - 24.02854.OUT - Parish Council Comment

	9 24/03111/FUL - The Saddlery, Kineton, Guiting Power.
	1 - 24.03111.FUL - Site Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	230220-01-Location Plan


	2 - 24.03111.FUL - Site Plan & Site Sections
	3 - 24.03111.FUL - Design Scheme

	10 25/00045/FUL - Land North East of Braecroft, Upper Oddington.
	1 - 25.00045.FUL - Existing Location & Site Plans
	Sheets
	7591-01b - Existing Site Layout


	2 - 25.00045.FUL - Proposed Location & Site Plans
	Sheets
	8022-01a - Proposed - Site Plans


	3 - 25.00045.FUL - Existing Site Sections
	Sheets
	7591-02a - Existing Site Sections


	4 - 25.00045.FUL - Proposed Site Sections
	Sheets
	8022-03 - Proposed - Site Sections


	5 - 25.00045.FUL - Proposed Floor Plan & Elevations
	Sheets
	8022-01 - Proposed - Site Plans
	8022-02 - Proposed - Main Sheet


	6 - 25.00045.FUL - Proposed Road Highway Views
	Sheets
	8022-04 - Road / Highways Views


	7 - 25.00045.FUL - Detailed Planting Plan
	Sheets and Views
	22303-4100



	11 21/01892/FUL - Outbuilding to the East of Poplars Barn,  Evenlode,  Moreton-In-Marsh.
	1 - 21.01892.FUL - Site Location Plan
	2 - 21.01892.FUL - Existing Site Plan
	3 - 21.01892.FUL - Proposed Site Plan
	4 - 21.01892.FUL - Ground Floor Plan
	5 - 21.01892.FUL - Front Elevation (South East)
	6 - 21.01892.FUL - Rear Elevation (North West)
	7 - 21.01892.FUL - Side Elevation (South West)
	8 - 21.01892.FUL - Side Elevation (North East)
	9 - 21.01892.FUL - Photographs




